
               
THROUGH THESE DOORS WALK ONLY THE FINEST PEOPLE – THE CITIZENS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY. DECISIONS ARE MADE IN
THIS ROOM AFFECTING THE DAILY LIVES OF OUR PEOPLE. DIGNIFIED CONDUCT IS APPRECIATED. 
 

CHAMBER RULES
 
1. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK, YOU WILL BE HEARD.
2. YOU MUST SIGN UP TO SPEAK. SIGN-UP SHEETS ARE AVAILABLE AT THE BACK OF THE ROOM.
3. YOU ARE REQUESTED TO KEEP YOUR REMARKS BRIEF AND FACTUAL.
4. BOTH SIDES ON AN ISSUE WILL BE GRANTED UNIFORM/MAXIMUM TIME TO SPEAK.
5. DURING QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS (I.E., REZONINGS), CONDUCT IS VERY FORMAL AND
    REGULATED BY SUPREME COURT DECISIONS. VERBAL REACTION OR APPLAUSE IS NOT 

    APPROPRIATE.
 

PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL BCC MEETINGS ARE RECORDED AND TELEVISED
 

AGENDA
Board of County Commissioners

Regular Meeting –January 6, 2011– 5:30 p.m.
Governmental Complex – First Floor

             
 

1. Call to Order. 
 
(PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONE TO THE VIBRATE, SILENCE, OR OFF
SETTING)  

 

2. Invocation – Commissioner White.
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

4. Are there any items to be added to the agenda? 
 
Recommendation : That the Board adopt the agenda as prepared (or duly
amended).

 

5. Commissioners’ Forum.
 

6. Did the Clerk’s Office receive the proofs of publication for the Public Hearing(s) on
the agenda and the Board’s Weekly Meeting Schedule? 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board waive the reading of the legal advertisement(s)
and accept, for filing with the Board’s Minutes, the certified affidavit(s) establishing
proof of publication for the Public Hearing(s) on the agenda, and the Board of County
Commissioners – Escambia County, Florida, Meeting Schedule.

 



             
7. 5:31 p.m. First of Two Public Hearings and Schedule and Advertise Second Public

Hearing Designating 3300 Mobile Highway as a Brownfields Area
 

Recommendation:  That the Board, at the 5:31 p.m. Public Hearing, take the following
action concerning designating 3300 Mobile Highway as a Brownfields Area:

A. Hold the first Public Hearing to receive input on the proposed designation of 3300
Mobile Highway as a Brownfields area; and 

B. Approve the scheduling and advertising the second of two Public Hearings for
January 20, 2011, at 5:31 p.m., to consider adoption of a Resolution of the Board of
County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, designating 3300 Mobile Highway
as a Brownfields area within the Brownsville Redevelopment Area of Escambia County
for the purpose of economic development and environmental rehabilitation; authorizing
the Community & Environment Deputy Bureau Chief to notify the Department of
Environmental Protection of said designation; and providing for an effective date.
 

 

8. Committee of the Whole Recommendation
 

Recommendation:  The Committee of the Whole (C/W), at the December 16, 2010, C/W
Workshop, recommends that the Board take the following action:

A. Adopt the list of priorities for bridges for the next five years (as outlined in the
Escambia County Bridge Prioritization & Budget Needs PowerPoint Presentation
prepared by Hatch Mott MacDonald [C/W Item 3]);

B. Authorize the County Attorney to advertise a Non-Binding Request for Letters of
Interest/ Request for Proposals for Outside Counsel for BP Oil Spill Issues (C/W Item 4);
and

C. Direct staff in the County Attorney's Office and the Planning Division to prepare, and
schedule a Public Hearing for consideration of adopting, an Ordinance, similar to those
adopted by other communities, that would prohibit fraternity housing and other
unsuitable types of activities in the R 1, Single-Family District, Low Density (C/W Item 7).
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9. Reports:
 

Clerk of the Courts & Comptroller's Report
   

Growth Management Report
   

County Administrator's Report 
   

County Attorney's Report 
   

10. Items added to the agenda.
 

11. Announcements.
 

12. Adjournment.
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AI-187     Item #:  7.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: 5:31 p.m. First of Two Public Hearings and Schedule and Advertise Second Public
Hearing Designating 3300 Mobile Highway as a Brownfields Area

From: Sandra Prince Jennings, P.E. Bureau Chief
Organization: Comm & Env Neigh Redevelopment
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation:  That the Board, at the 5:31 p.m. Public Hearing, take the following action
concerning designating 3300 Mobile Highway as a Brownfields Area:

A. Hold the first Public Hearing to receive input on the proposed designation of 3300 Mobile
Highway as a Brownfields area; and 

B. Approve the scheduling and advertising the second of two Public Hearings for January 20,
2011, at 5:31 p.m., to consider adoption of a Resolution of the Board of County Commissioners
of Escambia County, Florida, designating 3300 Mobile Highway as a Brownfields area within the
Brownsville Redevelopment Area of Escambia County for the purpose of economic development
and environmental rehabilitation; authorizing the Community & Environment Deputy Bureau
Chief to notify the Department of Environmental Protection of said designation; and providing for
an effective date.
 

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County purchased the property at 3300 Mobile Highway on September 3, 2010 as
part of the County’s Community Redevelopment Initiative. The property is located within the
Brownsville Redevelopment Area and the Escambia County Enterprise Zone. Designating the
property as a Brownfield will provide state funded economic incentives for the redevelopment of
the property. The project will be consistent with the land use plan by reducing slum and blight. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Florida Statute requires two advertised public hearings to allow for public comment. All
advertisements to be funded through CRA Admin, Fund 151, Cost Center 220523, Object Code
54901. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Escambia County Legal Office has reviewed and approved the Resolution as to form and legal



Escambia County Legal Office has reviewed and approved the Resolution as to form and legal
sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Florida Statute requires two advertised public hearings to allow for public comment. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A 

Attachments
Resolution_Legal Description_Maps













AI-258     Item #:  8.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Committee of the Whole Recommendation
From: Doris Harris
Organization: Clerk & Comptroller's Office
CAO Approval: N/A

Information
RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation:  The Committee of the Whole (C/W), at the December 16, 2010, C/W
Workshop, recommends that the Board take the following action:

A. Adopt the list of priorities for bridges for the next five years (as outlined in the Escambia
County Bridge Prioritization & Budget Needs PowerPoint Presentation prepared by Hatch Mott
MacDonald [C/W Item 3]);

B. Authorize the County Attorney to advertise a Non-Binding Request for Letters of Interest/
Request for Proposals for Outside Counsel for BP Oil Spill Issues (C/W Item 4); and

C. Direct staff in the County Attorney's Office and the Planning Division to prepare, and schedule
a Public Hearing for consideration of adopting, an Ordinance, similar to those adopted by other
communities, that would prohibit fraternity housing and other unsuitable types of activities in the
R 1, Single-Family District, Low Density (C/W Item 7).
 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A



N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
CW Recommendation





Escambia County Escambia County 
Bridge PrioritizationBridge Prioritization

& Budget Needs& Budget Needs

Hatch Mott MacDonaldHatch Mott MacDonald
December, 2010December, 2010



Condition of Escambia County Bridge Inventory

• 123 County maintained bridges

• 19% - meet FDOT Standards

• Bridges are Safe - deficient 
bridges either Posted or Closed

• 66% - Posted for Weight 
Restrictions

• 8 Bridges  - Reduced Weight 
Limits in last 6 months

• 11 Bridges – Closed for repairs 
in last 2 years

81% Need Repair or81% Need Repair or
ReplacementReplacement

19% 19% meetmeet
FDOT standardsFDOT standards

County Maintained BridgesCounty Maintained Bridges



Increasing Number of Problems

Bridge Material

• Structures nearing or beyond useful service life - 42% at least 50 years old

• Typical age for significant problems: Concrete/Steel – 50 years; Timber – 35 years



Purpose of Prioritization & Budget

Reduce the Need for 
Repair or Replacement

Increase the Increase the 
GoodGood

• Evaluate Inventory 
Condition State

• Establish Process to Rank 
Bridges for funding 
allocation

• Identify Minimum LOS 
and Long-Term Goals

• Develop Work Plan  & 
Required Budget

• Start Process to Reduce  
Deterioration Rate, 
Improve Safety & 
Functionality

County Maintained BridgesCounty Maintained Bridges



Background - Sufficiency Rating (SR)

•• Sufficiency Rating (SR) Sufficiency Rating (SR) 
formula developed by formula developed by 
FHWA to compare a bridge FHWA to compare a bridge 
to Current Standardsto Current Standards

•• SR essential to FHWA & SR essential to FHWA & 
most state funding and most state funding and 
ranking ranking 

•• FHWA uses SR to FHWA uses SR to 
determine eligibility for determine eligibility for 
bridge replacement or bridge replacement or 
rehabilitation fundingrehabilitation funding

•• 16%16% County bridges have County bridges have 
SR < 50% (replacement)SR < 50% (replacement)

•• 72%72% County bridges have County bridges have 
SR < 80% (rehabilitation)SR < 80% (rehabilitation)

Structural 
Adequacy & Safety

(55%)

Essentiality for 
Public Use

(15%)

Serviceability
& Functional
Obsolescence

(30%)



Background – FHWA Bridge Deficiency

•• Structurally Deficient:Structurally Deficient:

a.a. Significant load carrying elements are in poor conditionSignificant load carrying elements are in poor condition

b.b. Bridge is not strong enough (requires load posting) Bridge is not strong enough (requires load posting) 

c.c. Waterway opening is insufficient and bridge floods frequentlyWaterway opening is insufficient and bridge floods frequently

d.d. 11%11% of County Bridges are Structurally Deficienof County Bridges are Structurally Deficientt

•• Functionally Obsolete:Functionally Obsolete:

a.a. Bridge does not meet Current StandardsBridge does not meet Current Standards

b.b. Too narrow, not enough clearance, inadequate alignmentToo narrow, not enough clearance, inadequate alignment

c.c. Not strong enough to carry current design loadsNot strong enough to carry current design loads

d.d. Waterway opening inadequateWaterway opening inadequate

e.e. 19%19% of County Bridges are Functionally Obsoleteof County Bridges are Functionally Obsolete



Bridge Prioritization – Ranking Formula

•• Developed a Priority Rating (PR) formula to rank bridges from Developed a Priority Rating (PR) formula to rank bridges from 
worst to bestworst to best

•• Applies reductions to the SR to emphasize CountyApplies reductions to the SR to emphasize County’’s prioritiess priorities

•• Places greater importance on the Places greater importance on the Structural Condition & StrengthStructural Condition & Strength

•• Bridge Bridge SafetySafety is top priority for Countyis top priority for County

Escambia County Bridge Ranking Formula:

PR = SR  – [Condition Reduction]  – [Strength Reduction]



Ranking & Budget Spreadsheet

•• Provides form for entering Provides form for entering 
bridge condition and cost bridge condition and cost 
datadata

•• Automatically ranks bridges Automatically ranks bridges 
based on the PR formulabased on the PR formula

•• Calculates maintenance, Calculates maintenance, 
repair and replacement costs repair and replacement costs 
and performs financial and performs financial 
comparisonscomparisons

•• Calculates repaired service Calculates repaired service 
life, SR, and PRlife, SR, and PR

•• Analyzes repaired bridge Analyzes repaired bridge 
deficiency and FDOT goals deficiency and FDOT goals 
compliancecompliance

•• Provides decision data and Provides decision data and 
allows entry of bridge allows entry of bridge 
disposition decisionsdisposition decisions

•• Summarizes 5Summarizes 5--year Budget year Budget 
and Workplanand Workplan



Five-Year Bridge Budget



Recent Bridge Expenditures

Bridge Repairs last 2 years:Bridge Repairs last 2 years:

•• Repaired 10 bridges with Total Repair Cost = $467,110Repaired 10 bridges with Total Repair Cost = $467,110
•• Does not include recent closure, CR 99 at Pine Barren Creek ($10Does not include recent closure, CR 99 at Pine Barren Creek ($100,000 estimated)0,000 estimated)

Bridge Replacements:Bridge Replacements:

•• Replaced 1 bridge: $471,000 Replaced 1 bridge: $471,000 -- 20102010
•• In the process of replacing 2 additional bridges: $1,000,000 estIn the process of replacing 2 additional bridges: $1,000,000 estimated cost imated cost –– 20112011

Future Allocated Budget for Replacement & Repairs:Future Allocated Budget for Replacement & Repairs:

•• 2013 2013 -- $2 million$2 million
•• 2014 2014 -- $1 million$1 million
•• 2015 2015 -- $1 million$1 million
•• 2016 2016 -- $500,000$500,000
•• 2017 2017 -- $500,000$500,000



What’s Next?

Expanding Bridge Maintenance Pricing Expanding Bridge Maintenance Pricing 
AgreementAgreement
Standard Plans for Small Bridge Standard Plans for Small Bridge 
ReplacementsReplacements
Search for Funding Sources needed to Search for Funding Sources needed to 
implement the planimplement the plan

CR99 at Pine Barren Creek

Crutch Bent at Jack’s Branch

































AI-263     Item #:  9.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 01/06/2011  

Information
SUBJECT:
Clerk of Court's and Comptroller's Report

Attachments
20110106 CR



               

BACKUP NOT INCLUDED WITH THE CLERK'S REPORT IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW
IN

THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK TO THE BOARD
ESCAMBIA COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL COMPLEX, SUITE 130

 

CLERK OF THE COURTS & COMPTROLLER'S REPORT
January 6, 2011

             
 

I.   CONSENT AGENDA
 

1. That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following seven
Reports prepared by the Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller's Finance
Department:

A. The following two Payroll Expenditures:

    (1) Pay Date December 10, 2010, in the amount of $2,208,680.65; and

    (2) Pay Date December 23, 2010, in the amount of $2,272,788.11; 

B. The following four Disbursements of Funds:

    (1) December 2, 2010, to December 8, 2010, in the amount of $2,230,957.92;

    (2) December 9, 2010, to December 15, 2010, in the amount of $5,050,585.17;

    (3) December 16, 2010, to December 22, 2010, in the amount of $33,811,423.20;
and

    (4) December 23, 2010, to December 29, 2010, in the amount of $877,171.92; and 

C. The Investment Report for the month ended November 20, 2010.

 

 

2. That the Board approve Records Disposition Document No. 444 , for disposition of
Board of County Commissioner's Records, Item 32a, Minutes: Official Meetings
(Transcripts: Microfilmed on Rolls 466 through 468), for the period June 10, 2010,
through September 23, 2010, in accordance with State Retention Schedule GS1,
since the permanent records have been scanned and/or microfilmed.

 

 



             
3. That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following

three documents provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The Financial Statements for Pensacola-Escambia County Promotion and
Development Commission for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2010, as
prepared and audited by Saltmarsh, Cleaveland & Gund, Certified Public Accountants
and Consultants, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on December 8,
2010;

B. The Financial Statements for the Santa Rosa Island Authority for the Fiscal Year
ended September 30, 2010, as prepared and audited by Carr Riggs & Ingram,
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, and received in the Clerk to the Board's
Office on December 16, 2010; and

C. The Financial Statements for the Escambia County Housing Finance Authority for
the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2010, as prepared and audited by Calvin
Charles Johnson, Certified Public Accountant, and received in the Clerk to the Board's
Office on December 16, 2010.

 

 

4. That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following documents
provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The Northwest Florida Water Management District 2009 Annual Report, and the
Governing Board Meeting Schedule for 2011, as provided by Robin K. Tucker,
Executive Assistant, Northwest Florida Water Management District, and received in the
Clerk to the Board's Office on December 13, 2010; and

B. The FY/PY 2010/2011 CDBG Program Grant Agreement Number B-10-UC-12-0012
Amendment, FY/PY 2010/2011 HOME Program Grant Agreement Number
M10-DC120225 Amendment, and FY/PY 2010/2011 ESG Program Grant Agreement
Number S10-UC-12-0022 Amendment, as executed by the County Administrator on
December 1, 2010, based on the Board's July 8, 2010, action authorizing the Interim
County Administrator to execute the 2010 Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan
and all related documents, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on
December 20, 2010.

 

 

5. That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports prepared by
the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work Session
held December 9, 2010;

B. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held December 9, 2010;

C. Approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held December 16, 2010;

D. Approve the Minutes of the Attorney-Client Session held December 16, 2010; and

E. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of the
Whole Workshop held December 16, 2010.

 

Clerk of the Courts & Comptroller's Report
January 6, 2011
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Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  1.           
Date: 01/06/2011  

Acceptance of Reports
From: Doris Harris

Information
Recommendation:
That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following seven Reports prepared
by the Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller's Finance Department:

A. The following two Payroll Expenditures:

    (1) Pay Date December 10, 2010, in the amount of $2,208,680.65; and

    (2) Pay Date December 23, 2010, in the amount of $2,272,788.11; 

B. The following four Disbursements of Funds:

    (1) December 2, 2010, to December 8, 2010, in the amount of $2,230,957.92;

    (2) December 9, 2010, to December 15, 2010, in the amount of $5,050,585.17;

    (3) December 16, 2010, to December 22, 2010, in the amount of $33,811,423.20; and

    (4) December 23, 2010, to December 29, 2010, in the amount of $877,171.92; and 

C. The Investment Report for the month ended November 20, 2010.

Attachments
CR I-1



















Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  2.           
Date: 01/06/2011  

Disposition of Records
From: Doris Harris

Information
Recommendation:
That the Board approve Records Disposition Document No. 444, for disposition of Board of
County Commissioner's Records, Item 32a, Minutes: Official Meetings (Transcripts: Microfilmed
on Rolls 466 through 468), for the period June 10, 2010, through September 23, 2010, in
accordance with State Retention Schedule GS1, since the permanent records have been
scanned and/or microfilmed.

Attachments
CR I-2







Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  3.           
Date: 01/06/2011  

Financial Statements
From: Doris Harris

Information
Recommendation:
That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following three documents
provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The Financial Statements for Pensacola-Escambia County Promotion and Development
Commission for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2010, as prepared and audited by
Saltmarsh, Cleaveland & Gund, Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, and received in
the Clerk to the Board's Office on December 8, 2010;

B. The Financial Statements for the Santa Rosa Island Authority for the Fiscal Year ended
September 30, 2010, as prepared and audited by Carr Riggs & Ingram, Certified Public
Accountants and Consultants, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on December 16,
2010; and

C. The Financial Statements for the Escambia County Housing Finance Authority for the Fiscal
Year ended September 30, 2010, as prepared and audited by Calvin Charles Johnson, Certified
Public Accountant, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on December 16, 2010.

Attachments
CR I-3









Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  4.           
Date: 01/06/2011  

Acceptance of Documents
From: Doris Harris

Information
Recommendation:
That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following documents provided to
the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The Northwest Florida Water Management District 2009 Annual Report, and the Governing
Board Meeting Schedule for 2011, as provided by Robin K. Tucker, Executive Assistant,
Northwest Florida Water Management District, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on
December 13, 2010; and

B. The FY/PY 2010/2011 CDBG Program Grant Agreement Number B-10-UC-12-0012
Amendment, FY/PY 2010/2011 HOME Program Grant Agreement Number M10-DC120225
Amendment, and FY/PY 2010/2011 ESG Program Grant Agreement Number S10-UC-12-0022
Amendment, as executed by the County Administrator on December 1, 2010, based on the
Board's July 8, 2010, action authorizing the Interim County Administrator to execute the 2010
Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan and all related documents, and received in the Clerk
to the Board's Office on December 20, 2010.

Attachments
CR I-4
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Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  5.           
Date: 01/06/2011  

Minutes and Reports
From: Doris Harris

Information
Recommendation:
That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports prepared by the Clerk
to the Board's Office:

A. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work Session held
December 9, 2010;

B. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held December 9, 2010;

C. Approve the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held December 16, 2010;

D. Approve the Minutes of the Attorney-Client Session held December 16, 2010; and

E. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of the Whole
Workshop held December 16, 2010.

Attachments
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AI-231     Item #:  9.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 01/06/2011  

Information
SUBJECT:
Growth Management Report

Attachments
GMR Report



               
GROWTH MANAGEMENT REPORT

January 6, 2011
             

 

I.    PUBLIC HEARING
 

1. Review of the Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning Board on December 13, 2010
  RECOMMENDATION:

 

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning cases heard by the Planning
Board on December 13, 2010:

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s recommendations for
Rezoning Cases Z-2010-18 and Z-2010-19 or remand the case(s) back to the Planning
Board; and

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners for the rezoning cases that were reviewed.

B.

1. Case No.: Z-2010-18
  Location: 300 Beverly Parkway
  Property Reference No.: 46-1S-30-2001-001-037
  Property Size: 0.34 (+/-) acres
  From: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District

(cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre)
  To: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District

(cumulative) (25 du/acre)
  FLU Category: MU-1, Mixed Use & C, Commercial
  Commissioner District: 3
  Requested by: Tom Hammond, PE, Agent for Ramzan Ali, Owner
  Planning Board

Recommendation:
Approval

  Speakers: Tom Hammond
     
2. Case No.: Z-2010-19
  Location: 3407 N Tarragona Street
  Property Reference No.: 04-2S-30-6001-005-021
  Property Size: 0.16 (+/- acres)
  From: R-3, One-family and Two-family District (cumulative) Medium

Density (10 du/acre)
  To: R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District (Cumulative)

High Density (20 du/acre)
  FLU Category: C, Commercial
  Commissioner District: 3
  Requested by: Leonard and Carrie Walker, Owners
  Planning Board

Recommendation:
Approval

  Speakers: Leonard Walker
Della Cruse



 
 

2. 5:45 p.m. – Thursday, January 6, 2011 – Public Hearing – Amendment to the Official
Zoning Map

  RECOMMENDATION:

 
That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the rezoning
cases heard by the Planning Board on December 13, 2010 and approved during the previous
agenda item and to provide for severability, inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

 

3. 5:46 p.m. – Thursday, January 6, 2011 – Public Hearing – LDC Ordinance – Articles 2
& 3 “Spot Zoning”

  RECOMMENDATION:

 

That the Board review and adopt an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC)
amending Article 2 “Administration,” to amend the language describing what constitutes
“spot zoning”; and amending Article 3 “Definitions,” to add a definition for “spot zoning.”

 

III.   CONSENT AGENDA
 

1. Schedule of Public Hearings
  RECOMMENDATION:

 

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings: 

A.  Thursday, January 20, 2011

1.  5:45 p.m. - Public Hearing - Compliance Agreement with the Florida Department of
Community Affairs regarding the EAR Based Amendments to the Escambia County
Comprehensive Plan.
 
2.  5:46 p.m. - Public Hearing - Comprehensive Plan Evaluation & Appraisal Report (EAR)
Based Amendments Adoption Hearing Remedial Amendments. 
 

B.  Thursday, February 3, 2011 

1.  5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the following
Rezoning Case to be heard by the Planning Board on January 10, 2011.
 
Case No.: Z-2011-01
Location: 300 Highway 95-A
Property Reference No.: 14-1N-31-1004-001-004
Property Size: 13.3 (+/-) acres
From: VM-1, Villages Mixed Residential/Commercial District 

(gross density for residential uses 4 du/per acre)
To: GBD, Gateway Business District
FLU Category: I, Industrial & MU-6, Mixed-Use 6
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Wiley C. “Buddy” Page, Agent for Universal Fabricators, Inc.

2.  5:46 p.m. - Public Hearing - LDC Ordinance - Articles 3 & 6 “Wind Turbines”
 



    Public Hearing    Item #:  1.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Review of the Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning Board on December 13,
2010

From: T. Lloyd Kerr
Organization: Development Services

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning cases heard by the Planning
Board on December 13, 2010:

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s recommendations for
Rezoning Cases Z-2010-18 and Z-2010-19 or remand the case(s) back to the Planning
Board; and

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners for the rezoning cases that were reviewed.

B.

1. Case No.: Z-2010-18
  Location: 300 Beverly Parkway
  Property Reference No.: 46-1S-30-2001-001-037
  Property Size: 0.34 (+/-) acres
  From: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential District

(cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre)
  To: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing District

(cumulative) (25 du/acre)
  FLU Category: MU-1, Mixed Use & C, Commercial
  Commissioner District: 3
  Requested by: Tom Hammond, PE, Agent for Ramzan Ali, Owner
  Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

  Speakers: Tom Hammond
     
2. Case No.: Z-2010-19
  Location: 3407 N Tarragona Street
  Property Reference No.: 04-2S-30-6001-005-021
  Property Size: 0.16 (+/- acres)
  From: R-3, One-family and Two-family District (cumulative) Medium

Density (10 du/acre)



  To: R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District (Cumulative) High
Density (20 du/acre)

  FLU Category: C, Commercial
  Commissioner District: 3
  Requested by: Leonard and Carrie Walker, Owners
  Planning Board
Recommendation:

Approval

  Speakers: Leonard Walker
Della Cruse

 

BACKGROUND:
The above cases were owner initiated and heard at the December 13, 2010 Planning Board
meeting. Under the Land Development Code (LDC) 2.08.00.E.1., “the Board of County
Commissioners shall review the record and the recommendation of the Planning Board and
either adopt the recommended order, modify the recommended order as set forth therein, reject
the recommended order, or remand the matter back to the Planning Board for additional facts or
clarification. Findings of fact or findings regarding legitimate public purpose may not be rejected
or modified unless they are clearly erroneous or unsupported by the record. When rejecting or
modifying conclusions of law, the Board of County Commissioners must state with particularity
its reasons for rejecting or modifying the recommended conclusion of law and must make a
finding that its substituted conclusion of law is as or more reasonable than the conclusion that
was rejected or modified. However, the Board of County Commissioners may not modify the
recommendation to a more intensive use than recommended by the Planning Board; rather the
matter shall be remanded with instructions. The review shall be limited to the record below. Only
a party of record to the proceedings before the Planning Board or representative shall be
afforded the right to address the Board of County Commissioners and only as to the correctness
of the findings of fact or conclusions of law as based on the record. The Board of County
Commissioners shall not hear testimony."
 
To further the County’s policy of “decreasing response time from notification of citizen needs to
ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning Board
recommended order and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning cases. This report
item addresses only the review and upholding of the Planning Board’s recommendation. The
next report item will address the Public Hearing for the LDC Zoning Map Amendment.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This action may increase the ad valorem tax base for Escambia County.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The recommended order is the result of deliberations by the Planning Board based on staff
analysis, public testimony, and knowledge of the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development
Code as well as case law and Florida Statutes.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Chairman will need to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners either denying or approving the rezoning requests.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION: 
The cases under review are presented to the Planning Board for collection of evidence. The
Planning Board conducts a quasi-judicial public hearing and issues a recommended order to the
Board.

Attachments
Z-2010-18
Z-2010-19



 

 

 

Z-2010-18 
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             FOR ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
              ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

       Quasi-judicial proceedings held before the Escambia

County Planning Board, on Monday, December 13, 2010, at

the Escambia County Central Office Complex, 3363 West Park

Place, First Floor, commencing at 8:30 a.m.

___________________________________________________________

APPEARANCES

PLANNING BOARD:

WAYNE BRISKE, CHAIRMAN
TIM TATE, VICE CHAIRMAN
DOROTHY DAVIS
STEVEN BARRY
R. VAN GOODLOE
KAREN SINDEL
ALVIN WINGATE
PATTY HIGHTOWER, SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER
STEPHANIE ORAM, NAVY REPRESENTATIVE    
STEPHEN WEST, ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BUREAU:

T. LLOYD KERR, AICP, BUREAU CHIEF
HORACE JONES, DIVISION MANAGER, LONG RANGE PLANNING
LYNETTE HARRIS, PROJECTS AND COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING
DAVID FORTE, PROJECTS AND COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING        
GENERAL PUBLIC

REPORTED BY: LINDA V. CROWE, COURT REPORTER
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Opening remarks by Chairman Briske               3

County staff sworn 7

Composite Exhibit A, Staff's Findings and Legal
Advertisement

9

CASE NO: Z-2010-18 10

Presentation by Thomas G. Hammond 12
Presentation by David Forte 14
Public Comments: None

CASE NO: Z-2010-19 18

Presentation by Leonard Walker 21
Presentation by David Forte 25
Public Comment: Della Cruse 29

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 33

3

P R O C E E D I N G S 1

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning everyone.  I would 2

like to call the meeting of the Escambia County 3

Planning Board for December 13, 2010 to order.  And 4

it looks like we do have a full board here, so we do 5

have a quorum.  6

I would like to ask Mr. Wingate to lead us in 7

the Invocation and the Pledge, please.8

MR. WINGATE:  Please stand.9

(Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.) 08:33 10

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Wingate.  We will 11

start with our quasi-judicial hearings.  And to 12

start with, do we have Proof of Publication?  13

MS. SPITSBERGEN:  Yes, sir.  The meeting was 14

advertised in the November 24th, 2010 Pensacola News 15

Journal. 16

MR. BRISKE:  Does that publication meet all of 17

the legal requirements?18

MS. SPITSBERGEN:  Yes, sir, it does. 19

MR. BRISKE:  The Chair will entertain a motion 08:34 20

to waive the reading of the legal.  21

MR. BARRY:  So moved.  22

MR. TATE:  Second.  23

MR. BRISKE:  A motion and a second.  All those 24

in favor, say aye.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

4

(Aye.) 1

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed.  2

(None indicated.) 3

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  It passes unanimously. 4

(The motion passed unanimously.)  5

MR. BRISKE:  At this hearing the Planning Board 6

is acting under its authority to hear and make 7

recommendations to the Board of County Commissioners 8

on rezoning applications.  These hearings are 9

quasi-judicial in nature.  Quasi-judicial hearings 08:34 10

are like evidentiary hearings in a court of law, 11

however, less formal.  12

All testimony will be given under oath and 13

anyone testifying before the Planning Board may be 14

subject to cross-examination.  15

All documents and exhibits that the Planning 16

Board considers will be entered into evidence and 17

made part of the record.  18

Opinion testimony will be limited to experts 19

and closing arguments will be limited to the 08:35 20

evidence in the record.  21

Before making its decision, the Planning Board 22

will consider the relevant testimony, the exhibits 23

entered into evidence and the applicable law.  24

Each individual who wishes to address the 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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5

Planning Board must complete a speaker request form 1

and submit it to the planning clerk.  These forms 2

are located on the table in the back of the 3

chambers.  You will not be allowed to speak unless 4

we receive a completed form.  Please note that only 5

those individuals present today and giving testimony 6

on the record at this hearing will be allowed to 7

speak at the subsequent hearing before the Board of 8

County Commissioners.  No new evidence can be 9

presented at the Board of County Commissioners 08:35 10

meeting.  Therefore, all testimony and evidence must 11

be presented today.  12

The Planning Board will provide a 13

recommendation for each rezoning request to the 14

Board of County Commissioners which will review the 15

testimony, documents and exhibits, consider the 16

closing arguments and make a final decision.  All 17

decisions by the BCC are final.  Anyone who wishes 18

to seek judicial review of the decision of the Board 19

of County Commissioners must do so in a court of 08:36 20

competent jurisdiction within 30 days of when the 21

Board of County Commissioners either approves or 22

rejects the recommended order of the Planning Board.  23

All written or oral communication outside this 24

hearing with members of the Planning Board is 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

6

considered ex parte' communication.  Ex parte' 1

communications are presumed prejudicial under 2

Florida law and must be disclosed as provided in the 3

Board of County Commissioners Resolution 96-13.  As 4

each case is heard, the Chair will ask that any 5

Board members who have been involved in any 6

ex parte' communication, please identify themselves 7

and describe the communication.  8

As required by Section 2.08.02.D of the 9

Escambia County Land Development Code, the Planning 08:37 10

Board's recommendation to the Board of County 11

Commission shall include consideration of the 12

following six criterion.  13

A, consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.  14

Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with 15

the Comprehensive Plan.  16

B, consistency with the code.  Whether the 17

proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion 18

of the Land Development Code and is consistent with 19

the stated purpose and intent of the Land 08:37 20

Development Code.  21

C, compatibility with surrounding uses.  22

Whether and to the extent to which the proposed 23

amendment is compatible with the existing and 24

proposed uses in the area of the subject property.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

7

D, changed conditions.  Whether and to the 1

extent to which there are any changed conditions 2

that impact the amendment or the property.  3

E, effect on the natural environment.  Whether 4

and to the extent to which the proposed amendment 5

would result in significant adverse impacts on the 6

natural environment.  7

And, F, development patterns.  Whether and to 8

the extent to which the proposed amendment would 9

result in logical and orderly development patterns.  08:38 10

At the beginning of each case as long as there 11

are no objections from the applicant we will allow 12

the staff to present the location and zoning maps 13

and photographs for the property.  Next we will then 14

hear from the applicant and any witnesses that he or 15

she may wish to call.  Then we will hear from the 16

staff and any witnesses they may wish to call.  17

Finally, we will hear from members of the public who 18

filed a speaker request form.  19

At this time I would like to have our court 08:38 20

reporter swear in members of the staff that will be 21

testifying. 22

(County staff sworn.) 23

MR. BRISKE:  Board members, you have previously 24

received qualifications to the expert testimony in 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

8

the area of land use and planning of these staff 1

members.  Does anyone have questions regarding their 2

qualifications or ability to offer expert testimony?  3

(None noted.)  4

MR. BRISKE:  None noted.  The Chair will 5

entertain a motion to accept them as experts in the 6

area of land use and planning. 7

MR. TATE:  So moved.  8

MR. WINGATE:  Second.  9

MR. BRISKE:  A motion and a second.  All those 08:39 10

in favor, say aye. 11

(Aye.) 12

(The motion passed unanimously.) 13

MR. BRISKE:  Our first case today is 14

rezoning -- excuse me.  The rezoning hearing package 15

for December 13th with the staff's Findings-of-Fact 16

has previously been provided to the Board members.  17

The Chair will entertain a motion to accept that 18

package and the staff's findings and the legal 19

advertisement into evidence.  08:40 20

MS. SINDEL:  So moved.  21

MR. GOODLOE:  Second.  22

MR. BRISKE:  A motion and a second.  All those 23

in favor, say aye. 24

(Aye.)25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  1

(None.) 2

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  3

(The motion passed unanimously.) 4

MR. BRISKE:  The rezoning hearing package with 5

the staff's findings and the legal advertisement 6

will be marked and included in the record as 7

Composite Exhibit A for today's cases.  8

(Composite Exhibit A, Staff's Findings and 9

Legal Advertisement, was identified and admitted.) 08:40 10

MR. BRISKE:  Today we have two cases.  11

(The transcript continues on Page 10.) 12

      *         *         *13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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10

      *    *    *1
CASE NO:            Z-2010-182
Location:          300 Beverly Parkway

Parcel:            46-1S-30-2001-001-0373
From:              R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and     

                   Residential District, (cumulative) 4
                   High Density (25 du/acre)

To:                 C-2, General Commercial and Light    5
                   Manufacturing District, (cumulative) 

                   (25 du/acre)6
FLU Category:      MU-1, Mixed Use & C, Commercial

BCC District:      37
Requested by:       Thomas G. Hammond, Jr., P.E., Agent.

8
MR. BRISKE:  The first rezoning application for 9

consideration is Case Z-2010-18, which requests the 08:40 10
zoning from R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and 11
Residential, to C-2, General Commercial Light 12
Manufacturing, and it's going to be presented today 13
by Thomas Hammond, who is an engineer. 14

Members of the Board, has there been any 15
ex parte' communication between you and the 16
applicant, the applicant's agents, attorneys, 17
witnesses, with any fellow Planning Board members or 18
anyone from the general public prior to this 19
hearing?  I will also ask if you have visited the 08:40 20
subject property and please also disclose if you are 21
a relative or business associate of the applicant or 22
the applicant's agent.  23

Starting at the far end, welcome back 24
Stephanie.  Stephanie will be here it looks like for 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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this next year and so welcome back.  Any ex parte' 1

communications on this case? 2

MS. ORAM:  None from me.  3

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Ms. Hightower.  4

MS. HIGHTOWER:  None. 5

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Goodloe.  6

MR. GOODLOE:  No communication but I have 7

visited the site.  8

MR. BARRY:  No communication. 9

MR. BRISKE:  For the Chairman, none. 08:41 10

MR. TATE:  No communication. 11

MS. DAVIS:  None.  12

MR. WINGATE:  I drove by. 13

MR. BRISKE:  Ms. Sindel?  14

MS. SINDEL:  No communication. 15

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  16

Staff, was notice of the hearing sent to all 17

interested parties? 18

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir, it was. 19

MR. BRISKE:  Was there also notice posted on 08:41 20

the subject property?  21

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir, it was.  22

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  We will now have the 23

staff present the maps and photographs for Case 24

Z-2010-18. 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. FORTE:  Once again this is Z-2010-18.  1

David Forte, Urban Planner Development Services 2

Bureau, from R-6 to C-2, 300 Beverly Parkway.3

Here's the location and wetlands map.  The 2009 4

aerial.  The Future Land Use and existing land use, 5

a Future Land Use of MU-1.  Your zoning map with the 6

current zoning of R-6.  The public notice sign on 7

the actual site.  8

Looking east along Beverly Parkway.  Looking 9

west along Beverly Parkway.  Looking south from the 08:42 10

subject property.  Looking east from the subject 11

property.  The subject property itself.  And those 12

are all the maps.  13

MR. BRISKE:  Board members, are there any 14

questions about the pictures or the locations?  15

Hearing none, then we'll ask Mr. Hammond to 16

come forward, please.  Good morning, sir.  17

MR. HAMMOND:  Good morning.  How are y'all?  18

MR. BRISKE:  Good.  We would ask that our court 19

reporter please swear in Mr. Hammon. 08:43 20

(Thomas G. Hammond sworn.)  21

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Hammond, please state your 22

full name and address for the record.  23

MR. HAMMOND:  Thomas Hammond, 3802 North S 24

Street, Pensacola, Florida. 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  Did you receive a 1

copy of the rezoning hearing package with the 2

staff's Findings-of-Fact? 3

MR. HAMMOND:  Yes, sir.  4

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you have 5

the burden of proving by substantial competent 6

evidence that the proposed rezoning is consistent 7

with the Comprehensive Plan, furthers the goals, 8

objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 9

and is not in conflict with any portion of the 08:43 10

County's Land Development Code?  11

MR. HAMMOND:  Yes, sir.12

MR. BRISKE:  All right, sir.  13

We have previously qualified Mr. Hammond as an 14

expert due to his status as an engineer.  Do you 15

wish to be qualified today as an expert in the area 16

of land planning and zoning? 17

MR. HAMMOND:  I don't believe it's necessary.  18

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  Go ahead, sir. 19

MR. HAMMOND:  As you can see from the pictures 08:44 20

or if you drove by this site, it's an existing 21

development.  There has been a gas station there for 22

a long, long time but it's been closed for years, so 23

it was already a commercial use, I believe, probably 24

before zoning took place.  I played ball at Brent 25
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and grew up in Norwood.  I seem to remember stopping 1

there and getting sodas and riding my bike to ball 2

practice, that type of thing.3

But at any rate, it sat vacant for a long time.  4

And then as Frontier Motors expanded, they contacted 5

the owner and wanted to start parking cars on it as 6

part of their inventory.  And I'm not sure the gas 7

station was C-2, is a use that required C-2.  8

Anyway, there's C-2 all around it.  And I'm in total 9

agreement with staff's findings on it, on all six 08:45 10

criterion and I would ask that y'all make a 11

recommendation of approval to the Board.  12

MR. BRISKE:  So you will accept staff's 13

Findings-of-Fact as your presentation. 14

MR. HAMMOND:  Absolutely.  15

MR. BRISKE:  Any questions of Mr. Hammond?16

Staff do you wish to ask any questions?  17

MR. FORTE:  No, sir.  18

MR. BRISKE:  We'll have the staff presentation 19

then. 08:45 20

(David Forte, previously sworn.)  21

MR. FORTE:  The staff's Findings-of-Fact.  22

Criterion (1), consistent with the Comprehensive 23

Plan.  The proposed amendment of C-2 is consistent 24

with the intent and purpose of the Future Land Use 25
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category Mixed Use One (MU-1), and Commercial, C, as 1

stated in Comp Plan Policy 7.A.4.7.f.1, and Comp 2

Plan Policy 7.A.4.7.g.  The property meets the 3

locational criteria for roadway requirements for C-2 4

set forth in Comprehensive Plan Policy 7.A.4.13.C 5

because the property is located along an arterial 6

roadway, Beverly Parkway, within one-half mile of an 7

arterial/arterial intersection, Beverly Parkway and 8

"W" Street.  9

Criterion (2), consistent with the code.  The 08:46 10

proposed amendment to C-2 is consistent with the 11

intent and purpose of the Land Development Code and 12

meets the locational criteria roadway requirements 13

set forth in LDC 7.20.06.B because the property is 14

located along an arterial roadway, Beverly Parkway, 15

within one-half mile of an arterial/arterial 16

intersection, Beverly Parkway and W Street.  17

When applicable, further review from the 18

Development Review Committee will be needed to 19

ensure the buffering requirements and other 08:46 20

performance standards have been met.  21

MR. BRISKE:  Criterion (3), compatible with the 22

surrounding uses.  The proposed amendment to C-2 is 23

consistent with the 500-foot radius impact of the 57 24

surrounding parcels including the proposed property.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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Of the 57 parcels, 16 are zoned C-2, 34 are zoned 1

R-6.  There's one split zoned property of C-2/R-6 2

and six that are zoned C-1.  Staff observed 29 3

single-family homes, one mobile home park, five 4

mobile homes, six mobile homes -- I'm sorry, six 5

home offices, three auto repair, ten auto sales, two 6

vacant properties and one Dollar General.  7

Criterion (4), changed conditions.  Staff found 8

no changed conditions that would impact the 9

amendment or the property.  08:47 10

Criterion (5), effect on the natural 11

environment.  According to the National Wetland 12

Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not 13

indicated on the subject property.  When applicable, 14

further review from the DRC, Development Review 15

Committee process will be necessary to determine if 16

there would be any significant adverse impact on the 17

natural environment.  18

Criterion (6), development patterns.  The 19

proposed amendment would result in a logical and 08:48 20

orderly development pattern.  The proposed C-2 21

zoning would be compatible with the surrounding 22

zoning district of C-1, C-2 and R-6, and the 23

property meets the locational criteria.  That 24

completes staff's Findings-of-Fact.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. BRISKE:  Board members, any questions for 1

staff?  2

Mr. Hammond, did you wish to cross-examine the 3

staff?  4

MR. HAMMOND:  No, sir.  5

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  The Chair will 6

entertain a motion.  7

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, I move that we 8

recommend approval of the rezoning application to 9

the BCC and adopt the Findings-of-Fact provided in 08:48 10

the rezoning hearing package listed as Z-2010-18.11

MR. BARRY:  Second.  12

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  We have a motion and a 13

second.  Any discussion?  All those in favor, please 14

say aye. 15

(Aye.)16

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed.17

(None.) 18

MR. BRISKE:  It passes unanimously.  19

(The motion passed unanimously.) 08:49 20

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir. 21

MR. HAMMOND:  Thank you.22

(Case Z-2010-18 concluded.  The transcript 23

continues on Page 18.)  24

      *    *    *25
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                    *    *    *1

CASE NO:            Z-2010-192
Location:           3407 North Tarragona Street

Parcel:             04-2S-30-6001-005-0213
From:               R-3, One-family and Two-family District 

                   (cumulative) Medium Density (10 du/acre)4
To:                 R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office 

                   District (Cumulative) High Density 5
                   (20 du/acre)

FLU Category:       C, Commercial6
BCC District:       3

Requested by:       Leonard and Carrie Walker, Owners.7

MR. BRISKE:  Our next case today is Case 8
Z-2010-19 and this is a request for rezoning from 9
R-3, One-family and Two-family district, to an R-5, 08:49 10
Urban Residential/Limited Office District.  It's 11
being requested today by Leonard and Carrie Walker, 12
the owners.13

Members of the Board, has there been any 14
ex parte' communication between you, the applicant, 15
the applicant's agent, attorneys or witnesses, with 16
any fellow Planning Board members or anyone from the 17
general public prior to this hearing?  I would also 18
ask if you visited the subject property and also 19
disclose if you are a relative or business associate 08:49 20
of the applicant or the applicant's agent.  Again, 21
Stephanie?22

MS. ORAM:  None applicable.  23
MS. HIGHTOWER:  None applicable.  24
MR. GOODLOE:  I have not met with any of the 25
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individuals but I have visited the subject property.  1

MR. BARRY:  None. 2

MR. BRISKE:  None for the Chairman. 3

MR. TATE:  None. 4

MS. DAVIS:  None.  5

MR. WINGATE:  I did visit the site by a 6

driveby. 7

MR. BRISKE:  All right.8

MS. SINDEL:  None. 9

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  Staff, was the notice 08:50 10

on this case, the hearing, sent to all interested 11

parties?  12

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir.  13

MR. BRISKE:  And was it also posted on the 14

subject property?  15

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir, it was.  16

MR. BRISKE:  At this time we'll ask you to 17

present the maps and photographs for the case. 18

MR. FORTE:  Once again, this is Z-2010-19, 3407 19

North Tarragona Street, from R-3 to R-5.  You have 08:50 20

your location and wetlands map.  This is actually --  21

it appears the maps may not be correct, but we have 22

the subject site.  We can go through the signs and 23

photos.  24

MR. BRISKE:  It's correct in the package.  25
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MR. FORTE:  We'll just go through the photos 1

first and she's going to pull up the maps from the 2

actual packet itself.  3

MR. BRISKE:  That will be fine.  4

MR. FORTE:  There you go.  5

Here's your location and wetlands map.  Your 6

2009 aerial.  The Future Land Use and existing land 7

use.  The Future Land Use of Commercial.  Your 8

current zoning is R-3.  9

And we have your notice sign actually on the 08:52 10

site.  Looking north along North Tarragona Street.  11

Looking south along North Tarragona Street.  Looking 12

southeast from the subject property.  Looking 13

northeast from the subject property.  South from the 14

subject property.  North from the subject property.  15

Looking east across the street from the subject 16

property.  The subject property itself.  And that 17

conclude the maps and photos.  18

MR. BRISKE:  Any questions on the maps or 19

aerials?  All right.  08:53 20

And who will be presenting today for Leonard 21

and Carrie Walker?  Mr. Walker?  22

MR. WALKER:  Yes. 23

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir.  Please come to the 24

microphone, if you would.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BUREAU 
FINDINGS-OF-FACT 

REZONING CASE: Z-2010-18 
December 13, 2010 

I. SUBMISSION DATA: 

BY: Thomas G. Hammond Jr., P.E., Agent 

FOR: Ramzan Ali, Owner 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 46-1S-30-2001-001-037 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 300 Beverly Parkway 

FUTURE LAND USE: MU-1, Mixed Use & C, Commercial 

COMMISSIONER DISTRICT: 3 

BCC MEETING DATE: January 6, 2010 

II. REQUESTED ACTION:   REZONE 
 
 FROM:  R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and 

Residential District (cumulative), 
High Density (25 du/acre) 

 
 TO:  C-2, General Commercial and Light 

Manufacturing District (cumulative) 
(25 du/acre) 

III. RELEVANT AUTHORITY: 

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code 
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 

627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993) 
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings) 
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications) 
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CRITERION (1) 

Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) 7.A.4.7.f.1 (MU-1) states “This mixed-use 
category (subset) provides for an intense mix of residential/commercial/ 
recreation/light industrial uses within the urban areas of the county. Allowable uses 
within the subset include all types of residential uses, planned unit developments, 
compatible neighborhood, community and regional commercial uses (including 
offices), limited industrial uses (provided that such industrial uses are contained 
completely within a building(s) and where there is no permanent outside storage of 
raw materials or products, there is no noise, smoke, odor or glare resulting from the 
industrial use and that such use is compatible with adjacent and nearby uses), 
religious, medical and educational facilities, public utilities and facilities, and 
recreation uses.” 
“Rezonings and future land use map amendments to categories allowing higher 
densities will be allowed, provided that all other criteria are met, consistent with 
Policy 7.A.4.3.” 

CPP 7.A.4.3 Urban Sprawl To promote compact development and discourage 
urban sprawl, residential rezonings and future land use map amendments to 
categories allowing higher densities will be allowed for parcels located within the 
Mixed Use 1 Future Land Use category. 

CPP 7.A.4.7.g Commercial future land use category states, “the purpose of the 
category is to encourage and promote concentrations of commercial uses which 
have historically developed in response to market conditions and influences. It is the 
intent of this category that intensive commercial uses be generally confined to the 
area depicted on the future land use map thereby creating compact commercial 
development and infill commercial development opportunities and minimize the 
opportunity for continued ribbon of strip commercial development. Uses allowed 
within this category include all types of commercial activities including shopping 
centers, professional offices, medical offices and facilities, educational and religious 
uses, public utilities and facilities, convenience retail uses and other similar uses of a 
commercial nature.  Generally, residential uses are discouraged in this land use 
category.” 
 
CPP 7.A.4.13.C.2. General commercial and light manufacturing facilities (C-2): 
General commercial and light manufacturing land uses may be located along an 
arterial roadway up to one-half mile from the intersection when all of the following 
additional criteria are met: 
a.   The property shall not abut a single-family residential zoning district (R-1, R-2, V-
1, V-2, V-2A, and V-3); 
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b.   There shall be adequate fencing along with buffering and landscaping to ensure 
long-term compatibility with adjoining uses as described in Policy 7.A.3.8; 
c.   Lower intensity uses must be located next to abutting residential dwellings to 
reduce negative impacts; 
d.   Intrusions into residential subdivisions shall be limited; 
e.   A system of service roads or shared access facilities shall be required, to the 
maximum extent feasible, where permitted by lot size, shape, ownership patterns, 
and site and roadway characteristics; and 
f.   The property is located in areas where existing commercial or other intensive 
development is established and the proposed development would constitute infill 
development. The intensity of the use must be of a comparable intensity of the 
zoning and development on the surrounding parcels and must promote compact 
development and not promote ribbon or strip commercial development. 
 
CPP 8.A.1.13 Commercial Use Locational Criteria All new commercial 
development within the mixed use and urban residential categories and the activity 
areas shall be consistent with Policy 7.A.4.13. 

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment of C-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
Future Land Use category Mixed Use 1 (MU-1) and Commercial (C) as stated in 
CPP 7.A.4.7.f.1 and CPP 7.A.4.7.g. The property meets the locational criteria 
roadway requirements for C-2 set forth in CPP 7.A.4.13. C because the property is 
located along an arterial roadway (Beverly Pkwy) within one-half mile of an 
arterial/arterial intersection (Beverly Pkwy & “W” Street). 

CRITERION (2) 
 
Consistent with this Code. 
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is 
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.  

Land Development Code (LDC) 6.05.13. R-6 neighborhood commercial and 
residential district, (cumulative) high density. This district is intended to provide 
for a mixed use area of residential, office and professional, and certain types of 
neighborhood convenience shopping, retail sales and services which permit a 
reasonable use of property while preventing the development of blight or slum 
conditions. This district shall be established in areas where the intermixing of such 
uses has been the custom, where the future uses are uncertain and some 
redevelopment is probable. The maximum density is 25 dwelling units per acre, 
except in the low density residential (LDR) future land use category where the 
maximum density is 18 dwelling units per acre. 
 
LDC 6.05.16. C-2 General commercial and light manufacturing district 
(cumulative). This district is composed of certain land and structures used to 
provide for the wholesaling and retailing of commodities and the furnishing of several 
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major services and selected trade shops. The district also provides for operations 
entailing manufacturing, fabrication and assembly operations where all such 
operations are within the confines of the building and do not produce excessive 
noise, vibration, dust, smoke, fumes or excessive glare. Outside storage is allowed 
with adequate screening being provided (see section 7.01.06.E.). Characteristically, 
this type of district occupies an area larger than that of the C-1 retail commercial 
district, is intended to serve a considerably greater population, and offers a wider 
range of services. The maximum density for residential uses is 25 dwelling units per 
acre. 
 
All general commercial and light manufacturing (C-2) development, redevelopment, 
or expansion must be consistent with the locational criteria in the Comprehensive 
Plan (Policies 7.A.4.13 and 8.A.1.13) and in Article 7. 
 
B. Permitted uses. 

1.  Any use permitted in the C-1 district. 
2.  Amusement and commercial recreational facilities such as, but not limited to, 

amusements parks, shooting galleries, miniature golf courses, golf driving 
ranges, baseball batting ranges and trampoline centers. 

3.   Carnival-type amusements when located more than 500 feet from any   
  residential district. 
4.   Distribution warehousing, and mini-warehouses with ancillary truck rental  
  services. 
5.  New and used car sales, mobile home and motorcycle sales and mechanical 
  services. No intrusions are permitted on the public right-of-way (see section 
  6.04.09). 
6.   Automobile rental agencies. No intrusions are permitted on the public right-of- 
  way (see section 6.04.09). 
7.   Truck, utility trailer, and RV rental service or facility. No intrusions are 

permitted  on the public right-of-way (see section 6.04.09). 
8.  Automobile repairs, including body work and painting services. 
9.   Radio broadcasting and telecasting stations, studios and offices with on-site  
  towers 150 feet or less in height. See section 7.18.00 for performance   
  standards. 
10. Commercial food freezers and commercial bakeries. 
11.  Building trades or construction office and warehouses with outside on-site  
  storage. 
12. Marinas, all types including industrial. 
13. Cabinet shop. 
14.  Manufacturing, fabrication and assembly type operations which are contained 
  and enclosed within the confines of a building and do not produce excessive  
  noise, vibration, dust, smoke, fumes or excessive glare. 
15. Commercial communication towers 150 feet or less in height. 
16. Taxicab companies. 
17. Bars and nightclubs. 
18. Boat sales and service facilities. 
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19. Boat and recreational vehicle storage. (No inoperable RVs, untrailered boats, 
   repair, overhaul or salvage activity permitted. Storage facility must be   
   maintained to avoid nuisance conditions as defined in section 7.07.06.) 
20. Adult entertainment uses subject to the locational criteria listed below (See 

 Escambia County, Code of Ordinances sections 18-381 through 18-392 for 
definitions and enforcement; additionally refer to Chapter 6, article IV, Division 
2, titled "Nudity and Indecency"). However, these C-2 type uses are not 
permitted in the Gateway Business Districts. 

   a.  Adult entertainment uses must meet the minimum distances as specified  
    in the following locational criteria: 

  (1) One thousand feet from a preexisting adult entertainment   
  establishment; 

(2) Three hundred feet from a preexisting commercial establishment that 
in any manner sells or dispenses alcohol for on-premises consumption; 

  (3) One thousand feet from a preexisting place of worship; 
  (4) One thousand feet from a preexisting educational institution; 
  (5) One thousand feet from parks and/or playgrounds; 
  (6) Five hundred feet from residential uses and areas zoned residential  
        within the county. 

21.  Borrow pits and reclamation activities thereof (subject to local permit and 
 development review requirements per Escambia County Code of Ordinances, 
 Part I, Chapter 42, article VIII, and performance standards in Part III, the Land 
 Development Code, article 7). 

22.  Temporary structures. (See section 6.04.16.) 
23. Other uses similar to those permitted herein. Determination on other 

permitted uses shall be made by the planning board (LPA). 

LDC 7.20.06.B General commercial and light manufacturing locational criteria 
(C-2). General commercial land uses may be located along an arterial roadway up to 
one-half mile from the intersection provided that all of the following criteria are met: 
1.   Does not abut a single-family residential zoning district (R-1, R-2, V-1, V-2, V-2A 
or V-3); 
2.   Includes a six-foot privacy fence as part of any required buffer and develops the 
required landscaping and buffering to ensure long-term compatibility with adjoining 
uses as described in Policy 7.A.3.8 and article 7; 
3.   Negative impacts of these land uses on surrounding residential areas shall be 
minimized by placing the lower intensity uses on the site (such as stormwater ponds 
and parking) next to abutting residential dwelling units and placing the higher 
intensity uses (such as truck loading zones and dumpsters) next to the roadway or 
adjacent commercial properties; 
4.   Intrusions into recorded subdivisions shall be limited to 300 feet along the 
collector or arterial roadway and only the corner lots in the subdivision; 
5.   A system of service roads or shared access facilities shall be required, to the 
maximum extent feasible, where permitted by lot size, shape, ownership patterns, 
and site and roadway characteristics; 
6.   The property is located in areas where existing commercial or other intensive 
development is established and the proposed development would constitute infill 
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development. The intensity of the use must be of a comparable intensity of the 
zoning and development on the surrounding parcels and must promote compact 
development and not promote ribbon or strip commercial development. 

LDC 7.01.06. Buffering between zoning districts and uses. Spatial relationships 
between C-2 zoning districts where they are adjacent to multiple-family and office 
districts (R-3PK, R-4, R-5, R-6, V-4, VM-1, VM-2, PUD), require a buffer and that 
commercial land uses, where they are adjacent to residential uses require a buffer. 

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment to C-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
Land Development Code and meets the locational criteria roadway requirements set 
forth in LDC 7.20.06.B because the property is located along an arterial roadway 
(Beverly Pkwy) within one-half mile of an arterial/arterial intersection (Beverly Pkwy 
& “W” Street). 
 
When applicable, further review from the Development Review Committee (DRC) 
will be needed to ensure the buffering requirements and other performance 
standards have been met, should this amendment be granted. 

CRITERION (3) 

Compatible with surrounding uses. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with 
existing and proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s). 

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment to C-2 is consistent with the 500’ radius impact area, of 
the 57 surrounding parcels including the proposed property.  Of the 57 parcels, 16 
are zoned C-2, 34 are zoned R-6, one split zoned C-2/R-6, and six that are zoned 
C-1.  Staff observed 29 single family homes, one mobile home park, five mobile 
homes, six home offices, three auto repair, ten auto sales, two vacant parcels, one 
Dollar General.   

CRITERION (4) 
Changed conditions. 
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the 
amendment or property(s). 

FINDINGS 

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s). 
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CRITERION (5) 
Effect on natural environment. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant 
adverse impacts on the natural environment. 

FINDINGS 

According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not 
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the 
Development Review Committee (DRC) process will be necessary to determine if 
there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural environment. 

CRITERION (6) 

Development patterns. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical 
and orderly development pattern. 

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development 
pattern. 
The proposed C-2 zoning would be compatible with the surrounding zoning districts 
of C-1, C-2 and R-6 and the property meets the locational criteria.   

Note: The above technical comments and conclusion are based upon the information 
available to Staff prior to the public hearing; the public hearing testimony may reveal 
additional technical information. 
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DIVINA INVESTMENTS INC 

220 W GARDEN ST # 603  

PENSACOLA  FL 32502 

 

 MATHENY BEATRICE LIFE EST & 

223 MICHIGAN AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 FRONTIER MOTORS INC 

230 BEVERLY PKY  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

ALI RAMZAN TRUSTEE 

PO BOX 6231  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 STOLFI MARCO 

2576 GULF BREEZE AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32507 
 

 ROSENBLEETH ARNOLD L & CAROL L 

7631 RANDWICK RD  

PENSACOLA  FL 32514 

 
RABBANI ALI R 

2201 SCENIC HWY  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 JOHNSON SALTER LAURA A 

5190 BAYOU BLVD STE 7  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 AGNER DOROTHY E 

312 BEVERLY PKY  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

STRECKEL IVEN H & JENNIFER A 

5840 RED CEDAR ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32507 
 

 MADDOX BARBARA GRIMES 

222 CAROLYN WAY  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 EVERGREEN OF PENSACOLA CORP 

318 BEVERLY PKWY  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

MOON FOREST LLC 

812 N SPRING ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32501 
 

 CROSBY EDWARD & 

1153 WATER OAKS TRL  

CANTONMENT  FL 32533 

 

 BROWNING MILTON V 

306 MICHIGAN AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

MURPHY JOHN P & LORA 

6475 FIRST AVE SOUTH  

SAINT PETERSBURG  FL 33707 
 

 TA JASHICA PRINCESS 

3624 GENESSEE ST  

KANSAS CITY  MO 64111 
 

 LIGGON VIVIAN M 

619 PALM CT  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 

ZARAHN EDWARD A TRUSTEE FOR 

PO BOX 17105  

PENSACOLA  FL 325227105 
 

 NICODEMUS ROBERT E JR & 
BARBARA S 

1139 WINDCHIME WAY  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 RAPP ANDREW H & SHARIL A 

321 YOAKUM CT  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

INGRAM ROBERT D 

8530 JERNIGAN RD  

PENSACOLA  FL 32514 
 

 FLEMING MILDRED O EST OF 

C/O ROBERT BRYAN SR  

9000 ARCADIA RD  

PENSACOLA  FL 32534 
 

 WATSON SYLVIA B 

309 YOAKUM CT  
PENSACOLA  FL 32505 

MITH GARY R LIFE EST & 

752 BROOK MEADOW LN  

PENSACOLA  FL 32506 

 

 SELLERS RONALD & LETHIA 

617 ARMENIA DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 CLARK C A & SHIRLEY 

880 UPLAND RD  

CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

FORD SCOTT S 

850 APPALOOSA LN  

CANTONMENT  FL 32533 

 

 FUQUA DOUGLAS  T  

701 ARMENIA DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 

 

 ADKISON TIM 

321 MICHIGAN AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 

 
 



TESTON DONALD L &  

904 ARMENIA DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 BEASLEY GRADY O & MARY 

7579 LAKESIDE DR  

MILTON  FL 32583 
 

 DOLGENCORP INC 

100 MISSION RIDGE  

GOODLETTSVILLE  TN 37072 
 

JERNIGAN SYLVIA B WATSON 

309 YOAKUM CT  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 NERGER BARBARA J 

2340 FLEANCE DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 MCARTHUR JESSE D 

303 YOAKUM CT  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

SUKHERA IMRAN H & 

PO BOX 6231  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 WHITE RONALD E & VERA M 

9550 BRIDLEWOOD RD  

PENSACOLA  FL 32526 
 

 DREW WALTER P 

316 YOAKUM CT  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

SNOWDEN LINDA CAROL 

712 CONCORDIA BLVD  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 WEIGLE MARION R 

300 PALM CT  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 HANDLOWICK JAMES A JR 

1045 PORTER KITE RD  

MOHAWK  TN 37810 
 

SMITH JANNETTE C 

319 MICHIGAN AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 SMITH BARBARA P 

616 PALM CT  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
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MR. BRISKE:  Board members, any questions for 1

staff?  2

Mr. Hammond, did you wish to cross-examine the 3

staff?  4

MR. HAMMOND:  No, sir.  5

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  The Chair will 6

entertain a motion.  7

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, I move that we 8

recommend approval of the rezoning application to 9

the BCC and adopt the Findings-of-Fact provided in 08:48 10

the rezoning hearing package listed as Z-2010-18.11

MR. BARRY:  Second.  12

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  We have a motion and a 13

second.  Any discussion?  All those in favor, please 14

say aye. 15

(Aye.)16

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed.17

(None.) 18

MR. BRISKE:  It passes unanimously.  19

(The motion passed unanimously.) 08:49 20

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir. 21

MR. HAMMOND:  Thank you.22

(Case Z-2010-18 concluded.  The transcript 23

continues on Page 18.)  24

      *    *    *25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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                    *    *    *1

CASE NO:            Z-2010-192
Location:           3407 North Tarragona Street

Parcel:             04-2S-30-6001-005-0213
From:               R-3, One-family and Two-family District 

                   (cumulative) Medium Density (10 du/acre)4
To:                 R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office 

                   District (Cumulative) High Density 5
                   (20 du/acre)

FLU Category:       C, Commercial6
BCC District:       3

Requested by:       Leonard and Carrie Walker, Owners.7

MR. BRISKE:  Our next case today is Case 8
Z-2010-19 and this is a request for rezoning from 9
R-3, One-family and Two-family district, to an R-5, 08:49 10
Urban Residential/Limited Office District.  It's 11
being requested today by Leonard and Carrie Walker, 12
the owners.13

Members of the Board, has there been any 14
ex parte' communication between you, the applicant, 15
the applicant's agent, attorneys or witnesses, with 16
any fellow Planning Board members or anyone from the 17
general public prior to this hearing?  I would also 18
ask if you visited the subject property and also 19
disclose if you are a relative or business associate 08:49 20
of the applicant or the applicant's agent.  Again, 21
Stephanie?22

MS. ORAM:  None applicable.  23
MS. HIGHTOWER:  None applicable.  24
MR. GOODLOE:  I have not met with any of the 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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individuals but I have visited the subject property.  1

MR. BARRY:  None. 2

MR. BRISKE:  None for the Chairman. 3

MR. TATE:  None. 4

MS. DAVIS:  None.  5

MR. WINGATE:  I did visit the site by a 6

driveby. 7

MR. BRISKE:  All right.8

MS. SINDEL:  None. 9

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  Staff, was the notice 08:50 10

on this case, the hearing, sent to all interested 11

parties?  12

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir.  13

MR. BRISKE:  And was it also posted on the 14

subject property?  15

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir, it was.  16

MR. BRISKE:  At this time we'll ask you to 17

present the maps and photographs for the case. 18

MR. FORTE:  Once again, this is Z-2010-19, 3407 19

North Tarragona Street, from R-3 to R-5.  You have 08:50 20

your location and wetlands map.  This is actually --  21

it appears the maps may not be correct, but we have 22

the subject site.  We can go through the signs and 23

photos.  24

MR. BRISKE:  It's correct in the package.  25
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MR. FORTE:  We'll just go through the photos 1

first and she's going to pull up the maps from the 2

actual packet itself.  3

MR. BRISKE:  That will be fine.  4

MR. FORTE:  There you go.  5

Here's your location and wetlands map.  Your 6

2009 aerial.  The Future Land Use and existing land 7

use.  The Future Land Use of Commercial.  Your 8

current zoning is R-3.  9

And we have your notice sign actually on the 08:52 10

site.  Looking north along North Tarragona Street.  11

Looking south along North Tarragona Street.  Looking 12

southeast from the subject property.  Looking 13

northeast from the subject property.  South from the 14

subject property.  North from the subject property.  15

Looking east across the street from the subject 16

property.  The subject property itself.  And that 17

conclude the maps and photos.  18

MR. BRISKE:  Any questions on the maps or 19

aerials?  All right.  08:53 20

And who will be presenting today for Leonard 21

and Carrie Walker?  Mr. Walker?  22

MR. WALKER:  Yes. 23

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir.  Please come to the 24

microphone, if you would.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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Good morning, sir.  If you need to sit down we 1

can arrange to have the chair pulled up if that will 2

be more comfortable for you.  3

MR. WALKER:  I'm all right.4

MR. BRISKE:  Are you okay?  5

MR. WALKER:  Yes, sir.  6

MR. BRISKE:  All right, sir.  If you would 7

state your name and address for the record, please.8

MR. WALKER:  Leonard Walker, 3407 North 9

Tarragona.  08:53 10

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir, thank you.  We'll have 11

our court reporter swear you in, sir.  12

(Leonard Walker sworn.) 13

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  Sir, have you 14

received the staff's Findings-of-Fact package?15

MR. WALKER:  Yes, sir.  16

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you have 17

the burden of providing substantial competent 18

evidence that the proposed rezoning is consistent 19

with the Comprehensive Plan, furthers the goals, 08:54 20

objectives and policy of the Comprehensive Plan and 21

is not in conflict with any portion of the Land 22

Development Code?  23

MR. WALKER:  Yes, sir.  24

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir.  You may proceed.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. WALKER:  Well, I just want to get the 1

trailer.  I went and paid for the trailer.  I didn't 2

know this.  I thought because there was one in front 3

of me that I could get it.  I didn't know it.  So I 4

went and paid him for the trailer.  My children 5

helped me get the money up and I paid him cash and 6

he wouldn't refund my money back so I've got to have 7

somewhere to put it.  If I don't, I don't know what 8

they're going to do.  If I don't have no where to 9

put it I just lose all my lifetime away.  I've been 08:54 10

staying there for the last 60 years, ever since the 11

(inaudible) field was up there. 12

MR. BRISKE:  Have you had a chance to review 13

the staff's Findings-of-Fact, the package that the 14

staff provided to you? 15

MR. WALKER:  Yes, sir.  16

MR. BRISKE:  Are you in agreement with those 17

findings?  18

MR. WALKER:  I'm just going along with -- 19

whatever y'all do, I'll go along with because I 08:55 20

didn't know what I was doing.  I'm just going along 21

with y'all.  If I can't get it I just can't use it 22

there.  That's all.  23

MR. BARRY:  All right, sir.24

MR. WALKER:  I'm leaving it up to y'all. 25
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MR. BRISKE:  Can you tell us in your own words 1

a little bit about why you want to do the rezoning?  2

MR. WALKER:  Because I have to have somewhere 3

to stay.  4

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  All right.  5

MR. WALKER:  See, I had some children I was 6

keeping, but see my house burnt down so they even 7

come take my grandchildren out of the house because 8

I didn't have no presentable place for them to stay 9

and that's why I was trying to get the trailer, for 08:55 10

them to have somewhere to stay.  So they've done 11

pulled my children out of the house already.  12

MR. BARRY:  All right.  13

MR. WALKER:  I've been having a bad time on 14

everything.  15

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir. 16

Board members, any questions of Mr. Walker at 17

this time?  18

Sir, we may have more questions once we get a 19

little bit further into it, but at this time we'll 08:56 20

go ahead and have the staff go ahead and give their 21

presentation and then may have questions for you. 22

MR. WALKER:  I just hope they do right because 23

I don't know what I'm going to do.  24

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir. 25
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David, if you would, just give a little of 1

background -- he mentioned some of the things -- if 2

you know any of that.  3

MR. FORTE:  I'm not quite sure if I'm allowed 4

because it would be more of a site plan type.  5

Steve, I'm not sure.  In a general sense, I 6

believe -- I may have to ask Lynette as well to help 7

fill in.  I believe in R-3 you're not allowed to 8

have -- well, let's say it's a nonconforming use for 9

having a mobile home in R-3.  I'm not sure.  Maybe 08:57 10

Lloyd will be better.  11

MR. KERR:  In the R-3 zoned category you're not 12

permitted to have mobile homes.  R-5 does permit you 13

to have a mobile home.  This particular lot is a lot 14

of record and as a "lot of record" you are permitted 15

to put a single-family home on it and, evidently, 16

this is what Mr. Walker would like to do.  He would 17

like to rezone the property in order that he be able 18

to use it for the intended purpose that he has.  19

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  I think we were 08:58 20

just -- there was a comment written on the bottom of 21

the zoning verification request form.  It looks like 22

it was written there by a staff member, Barbara -- 23

MR. FORTE:  Barbara Winns. 24

MR. BRISKE:  Winns.  So that's why I was 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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basically asking a little bit of the background on 1

it.  I'm not quite sure I understand a house cannot 2

be replaced by a mobile home in R-3 zoning; what 3

does that mean?  4

MR. FORTE:  I believe it's a nonconforming use 5

right now, and with it being out for over a year.  6

MR. KERR:  If there was a house existing on the 7

site and because it's zoned R-3, he would have to 8

rebuild a house.  As an R-5 zone he would be 9

permitted to put a mobile home on that particular 08:59 10

piece of property.  And that's what the land use 11

certificate was indicating, that a mobile home could 12

not be placed in that zoning category.  13

MR. BRISKE:  Okay.  All right.  At this time, 14

David, we'll have you proceed with the Staff's 15

findings.  16

(David Forte, previously sworn.) 17

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir.  18

This is staff's Findings-of-Fact for Z-2010-19.  19

Criterion (1), consistent with the 08:59 20

Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed amendment to R-5 21

is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 22

Commercial Future Land Use category.  The limited 23

office uses permitted in R-5 are commercial in 24

nature which is consistent with the commercial FLU 25
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as set forth in Comprehensive Plan Policy 7.A.4.7.g.  1

though the Commercial Future Land Use policy states 2

that second floor and/or secondary residential uses 3

are only allowed when part of a predominately 4

commercial development or a multi-story structure 5

with residential units above the first floor, the 6

subject property is a "lot of record" which will 7

also allow the owner to use the property for a 8

single-family residence as set forth in 9

Comprehensive Plan Policy 9.A.7.10.  09:00 10

Criterion (2), consistent with the code.  The 11

proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and 12

purpose of the Land Development Code.  The proposed 13

amendment of R-5 is also a residential district, 14

therefore, the purpose and intent stated in LDC 15

6.00.01 is the same as it is for the current zoning 16

of R-3.  17

When applicable, further review from the 18

Development Review Committee will be needed to 19

ensure the buffer requirements and other performance 09:00 20

standards have been met should this amendment be 21

granted.  Note LDC 7.01.06.A.2.  22

Criterion (3), compatible with the surrounding 23

uses.  The proposed amendment is compatible with the 24

surrounding and existing uses in the area.  Within 25
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the 500-foot radius impact area staff observed a 1

total of 67 parcels zoned either R-3 or C-2.  There 2

are 41 single-family residences, two multifamily 3

residences, one mobile home, one church, one store, 4

17 vacant properties, one billboard, one county 5

parcel and two Escambia County School Board 6

properties.  7

Criterion (4), changed conditions.  Staff found 8

no changed conditions that would impact the 9

amendment or property.  09:01 10

Criterion (5), effect on the natural 11

environment.  According to the National Wetland 12

Inventory wetlands and hydric soils were not 13

indicated on the subject property.  When applicable, 14

further review during the Development Review 15

Committee process will be necessary to determine if 16

there will be any significant adverse impact on the 17

natural environment.  18

Criterion (6), development patterns.  The 19

proposed amendment would result in a logical and 09:02 20

orderly development pattern.  Though the proposed 21

amendment would result in an isolated zoning 22

district, it is compatible with the uses of 23

surrounding and nearby parcels such as the mobile 24

home across the street and the small store on the 25
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corner of Texar Street and Roosevelt Street.  All 1

the properties north of Texar Street within the 2

impact area are within the Commercial FLU; 3

therefore, the proposed amendment of R-5 is the most 4

compatible zoning district with both the Future Land 5

Use and surrounding uses without detracting from the 6

character and quality of life of the neighborhood.  7

I would like to state this is in the Community 8

Redevelopment Area, Palafox.  I did speak -- we did 9

speak with the CRA and they had no objections to the 09:02 10

rezoning application.  11

MR. BRISKE:  Any questions of staff from the 12

Board?  13

Mr. Walker, did you have any questions of the 14

staff?  15

MR. WALKER:  No, sir, no questions. 16

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  We do have two 17

speakers signed up to speak on this.  And we'll 18

start with Ms. Della Cruse.  Good morning, 19

Ms. Cruse.  If you would, state your name and 09:03 20

address for the record, please.  21

MS. CRUSE:  My name is Della Cruse, 2948 Rhythm 22

Street. 23

MR. BRISKE:  The court reporter will swear you 24

in.25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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(Della Cruse sworn.) 1

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, ma'am.  Proceed, please. 2

MS. CRUSE:  I just -- I received this card and 3

I just wanted to know what was the reason.  And I 4

didn't know Mr. Walker's house had got burned and I 5

wanted to know when it said rezoning, I have a lot 6

over there and I learned now since I've been here 7

I'm across the street from him.  8

MR. BRISKE:  Did the presentation give you what 9

you were looking for?  09:04 10

MS. CRUSE:  Yes, it did.  11

MR. BRISKE:  Did you have any other questions 12

for the Board?  13

MS. CRUSE:  No.  Nothing.  No.  No, I don't 14

have no objection to him -- you know, he can't put a 15

trailer there.  He could put him a house.  So I 16

don't have no objection.  I would just like to have 17

the place fixed up and built up.  I have an empty 18

lot and I would like to see something done there.  I 19

would like to see some improvements, some 09:04 20

development in that area because I won't be able to 21

do it.  That's all.  22

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, ma'am.  Were there any 23

questions for Ms. Cruse?  All right.  Thank you, 24

ma'am for coming out.  25
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MS. CRUSE:  Thank you.  1

MR. BRISKE:  Is there anyone else here who 2

wishes to speak on this matter today?  All right.  3

We'll hereby close the public comment section of the 4

meeting and go back to the Board for 5

recommendations.  6

MR. TATE:  I have a question before a 7

recommendation and I don't mind making a 8

recommendation either, but it's a clarification 9

issue and it goes back to our regular Planning Board 09:05 10

meeting of last month.  And I don't think this has 11

totally been ratified yet, but what was the 12

definition that we settled on for spot zoning?  13

MR. FORTE:  It was nearby zoning districts and 14

uses.  It's going to the Board of County 15

Commissioners January 6th. 16

MR. TATE:  We did include uses?  17

MR. FORTE:  And uses.  18

MR. TATE:  Okay.  Good.  In a situation like 19

this, I mean it's very clear to me, but I think it 09:05 20

would be very beneficial if we stated or staff 21

stated that this is not spot zoning because, rather 22

than just saying it's an isolated zoning district 23

that's compatible with surrounding uses.  I mean, 24

that's what we say -- isn't it in the LDC you have 25
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to prove that it's not?  1

MR. FORTE:  Currently it still states that way, 2

but the Board will be -- 3

MR. TATE:  Right.  I'm talking about -- 4

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir. 5

MR. TATE:  -- in the future so there's just no 6

issue because we have the two issues, both zoning 7

and uses.  This case, obviously, it is not the same 8

zoning, but it is compatible use and that's, I 9

think, an issue this Board has strongly supported, 09:06 10

is surrounding uses.  11

MR. FORTE:  Correct. 12

MR. TATE:  Mr. Commissioner -- I'm sorry.13

MR. BRISKE:  Don't give me that title.  I don't 14

want that one.  15

MR. TATE:  Mr. Chairman, I move that we accept 16

this rezoning from R-3 to R-5 and recommend approval 17

to the Board of County Commissioners and accept 18

staff's Findings-of-Fact. 19

MS. DAVIS:  I second that. 09:06 20

MR. BRISKE:  We have a motion and a second.  21

Any discussion?  All those in favor, say aye. 22

(Aye.)23

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed.24

(None.)  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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(The motion passed unanimously.) 1

MR. BRISKE:  All right, Mr. Walker, it has been 2

approved.  Staff members will get with you and help 3

you through the rest of the process.  4

MR. WALKER:  Thank you.  5

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you for coming out, sir.6

MR. WALKER:  I thank all of y'all.  7

MR. BRISKE:  At this point we will close the -- 8

MR. TATE:  Can I ask a question? 9

MR. BARRY:  Before we close?  09:07 10

MR. TATE:  Yes.  When does his -- when does 11

this zoning package go to the BCC?  What's the next 12

step?  13

MR. FORTE:  Rezonings always go the following 14

month, so it will go in January, the first meeting 15

of January, January 6th.  16

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  At this time we will 17

close the quasi-judicial hearing of the Planning 18

Board.  19

(Quasi-judicial proceedings concluded at 9:07 09:07 20

a.m.)21

22

23

24

25
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REZONING CASE: Z-2010-19 
December 13, 2010 

I. SUBMISSION DATA: 

BY: Leonard and Carrie Walker, Owners 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 04-2S-30-6001-005-021 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 3407 N Tarragona Street 

FUTURE LAND USE: C, Commercial 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AREA: Palafox 

COMMISSIONER DISTRICT: 3 

BCC MEETING DATE: January 6, 2011 

II. REQUESTED ACTION:   REZONE 

FROM: R-3, One-family and Two-family 
District (cumulative) Medium Density 
(10 du/acre) 

TO: R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office 
District (Cumulative) High Density (20 
du/acre) 

III. RELEVANT AUTHORITY: 
(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code 
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 

627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993) 
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings) 
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications) 



CRITERION (1) 
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) 7.A.4.7.g: Uses allowed within the Commercial 
Future Land Use category “include all types of commercial activities including 
shopping centers, professional offices, medical offices and facilities, educational and 
religious uses, public utilities and facilities, convenience retail uses and other similar 
uses of a commercial nature. This category will be implemented by the inclusion of 
two or more zoning districts and zoning designations on the zoning maps consistent 
with the future land use map. The intensity of use within the category shall be 
defined by limiting the maximum amount of impervious cover to 85 percent and a 
floor area ratio of 1.1. The purpose of the category is to encourage and promote 
concentrations of commercial uses which have historically developed in response to 
market conditions and influences. It is the intent of this category that intensive 
commercial uses be generally confined to the areas depicted on the future land use 
map thereby creating compact commercial development and "infill" commercial 
development opportunities and minimize the opportunity for continued ribbon or strip 
commercial development. Second floor and/or secondary residential uses are only 
allowed when part of a predominately commercial development or a multi-story 
structure with residential units above the first floor. The maximum density for 
residential uses is 25 dwelling units per acre.” 
CPP 9.A.7.10 Lots of Record.  Nothing in this comprehensive plan shall be 
interpreted to deny the use of a lot of record or parcel which existed at the time of 
adoption of this plan (as amended) provided, however, that existing lots of record do 
not include contiguous multiple lots under single ownership. This policy does not 
exempt parcels or lots of record from the concurrency requirements of this plan. 

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment to R-5 is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
Commercial Future Land Use (FLU) category. 
The limited office uses permitted in R-5 are commercial in nature which is consistent 
with the Commercial FLU as set forth in CPP 7.A.4.7.g.  Though the Commercial 
FLU policy states that “second floor and/or secondary residential uses are only 
allowed when part of a predominately commercial development or a multi-story 
structure with residential units above the first floor”, the subject property is a “lot of 
record” which will also allow the owner to use the property for a single family 
residence as set forth in CPP 9.A.7.10. 

CRITERION (2) 
Consistent with this Code. 
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is 
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.  



Land Development Code Section (LDC) 6.00.01 Legislative intent of residential 
districts states that residential districts are designed to promote and protect the 
health, safety, convenience, order, prosperity and other aspects of the general 
welfare. 
A.   To provide sufficient space in appropriate locations for residential development 

to adequately meet the housing needs of the present and expected future 
population of the county. 

B.   To efficiently utilize existing public ways and to mitigate the effects of heavy 
traffic, especially through traffic, in residential areas. 

C.   To protect residential areas against flood, fire, explosions, toxic and noxious 
matter, radiation, and other hazards, as well as offensive noise, vibration, 
smoke, dust and other particulate matter, glare and other objectionable 
influences. 

D.   To protect residential areas against undue congestion, by regulating the density 
of population, the intensity of activity and the bulk of buildings in relation to the 
surrounding land and to one another and by providing for off-street parking. 

E.   To require the provision of open space and landscaping in residential areas 
wherever practical in order to provide for air, light and wind dynamics, to provide 
open areas for recreation, to enhance scenic quality, to facilitate surface 
drainage, and thereby to provide a more desirable environment for residential 
areas. 

F.   To provide for access of light and air to windows and provide for privacy by 
controls over the height of buildings or other structures. 

G.   To provide appropriate space in accessible locations for public and private 
educational, religious, recreational and similar facilities and public utilities which 
serve the needs of nearby residents, generally function more effectively in a 
residential environment and do not create objectionable influence; and to 
coordinate the intensity of residential land use with community facilities which 
are appropriately located and designed.  

H.  To promote the most desirable use of land as well as the appropriate location 
and density of development, to promote stability of residential areas by providing 
for smooth transitions in residential density, to effectuate and maintain adequate 
levels of public services, to conserve the value of land and buildings, to protect 
the county’s present and future tax revenues and to achieve the objectives of 
the Comprehensive Plan. 

LDC 6.05.09. R-3, One-family and Two-family District:  This district is intended to 
provide for a mixture of one-family and two-family dwellings, including townhouses, 
with a medium density level compatible with single-family residential development.  
The maximum density is ten dwelling units per acre. 
LDC 6.05.12. R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District: This district is 
intended to provide for high density urban residential uses and compatible 
professional office development, and designed to encourage the establishment and 
maintenance of a suitable higher density residential environment and low intensity 
services. These uses form a transition area between lower density residential and 
commercial development. 



FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land 
Development Code.  The proposed amendment of R-5 is also a residential district 
therefore, the purpose and intent stated in LDC 6.00.01 is the same as it is for the 
current zoning of R-3. 
 
When applicable, further review from the Development Review Committee (DRC) 
will be needed to ensure the buffering requirements and other performance 
standards have been met, should this amendment be granted. Note: LDC Section 
7.01.06.A.2 

CRITERION (3) 
Compatible with surrounding uses. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with 
existing and proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s). 

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. 
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed a total of 67 parcels zoned either 
R-3 or C-2.  There are 41 single-family residences, two multi-family residences, one 
mobile home, one church, one store, 17 vacant properties, one billboard, one county 
parcel, and two Escambia School Board properties.  

CRITERION (4) 
Changed conditions. 
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the 
amendment or property(s). 

FINDINGS 
Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s). 

CRITERION (5) 
Effect on natural environment. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant 
adverse impacts on the natural environment. 

FINDINGS 
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not 
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the 
Development Review Committee (DRC) process will be necessary to determine if 
there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural environment. 



CRITERION (6) 
Development patterns. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical 
and orderly development pattern. 

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development 
pattern. Though the proposed amendment would result in an isolated zoning district, 
it is compatible with the uses of surrounding and nearby parcels such as the mobile 
home across the street and the small store on the corner of Texar St and Roosevelt 
St.  All the properties north of Texar Street within the impact area are within the 
Commercial FLU; therefore, the proposed amendment of R-5 is the most compatible 
zoning district with both the FLU and surrounding uses without detracting from the 
character and quality of life of the neighborhood. 

Note: The above technical comments and conclusion are based upon the information 
available to Staff prior to the public hearing; the public hearing testimony may reveal 
additional technical information. 
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BELLAMY GEORGIA B 

C/O ASBURY PLACE  

4916 MOBILE HWY 

 PENSACOLA  FL 32506 
 

 BONNER LINELL JR 

12515 BERRY LAUREL LN  

HOUSTON  TX 77014 
 

 CALBERT PAT JR 

3206 N MILLER ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

CALHOUN NATHANIEL & BARBARA 

7441 CORA LN  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 CHANDLER JOHN R EST OF 

C/O JOHN CHANDLER JR  

3413 W HERNANDEZ ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 COLLIE DOROTHY J 

1261 KRAMER ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32534 
 

CRUSE DELLA 

2948 RHYTHM DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32505 
 

 DABNEY BROOMER JR EST OF 2/4 INT & 

C/O BROWN MINNIE C  

10461 MILLTOWER DR  

RANCHO CORDOVA  CA 95670 
 

 DIXON LOWARN & ADA 

4040 GARCON POINT RD  

MILTON  FL 32583-9015 
 

DOE ARIA & 

1414 WHEATLEY ST FAR  

ROCKAWAY  NY 11691 
 

 ENGLISH NED J 

211 ARIOLA AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 WOS PROPERTIES LLC 

PO BOX 422  

MILTON  FL 32572 

FAILS CORTIE 

PO BOX 17979  

PENSACOLA  FL 32522-7979 
 

 FORNEY ROBERT JR 

2015 N 7TH AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 FORTUNE LILLIE I 4/6 INT 

8521 ELBERT ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32514 
 

FOUNTAIN SHELLY & 

10307 KUPPERTON CT 
FREDERICKSBURG  VA 22408 
 

 GARDNER JAMES & 

1600 E YONGE ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 GIPSON SYLVIA M 

3217 N TARRAGONA  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

HALE HOUSTON & CARRIE B 

3413 N TARRAGONA ST  

  PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 HALE HOUSTON & CARRIE BELL 

3210 1/2 N ROOSEVELT ST 
PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 HALE MARY J & 

3410 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

HALE THELMA 

3400 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 HALE WILLIE & 

3402 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 HARRIS JAMES & GEORGIA B 

3213 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

HARRIS JAMES JR 

3216 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 HILL PHINNIE A 

1306 E BAARS ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 JENKINS LILLIE 

3120 N ROOSEVELT ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

JILES JOSEPH N & ROBBIE L 

211 E TEXAR DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 JOHNSON JAMES H & DELORES 

107 TEXAR DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 JOHNSON WILLIE MAE 

C/O MICHAEL D JOHNSON  

3406 N TARRAGONA ST  

  PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 



JONES EDMOND 

3125 N ROOSEVELT ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 JONES HOSEA JR & 

3118 N ROOSEVELT ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 JORDAN JACQUELINE H 

202 E TEXAR DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

KNIGHT STENSON JR 

700 COLLEGE BLVD # E201 
PENSACOLA  FL 32504 
 

 MCINTOSH VERNON B & 

203 TEXAR DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 MCKNIGHT WALTER L & IRMA J 

711 W LLOYD ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32501 
 

MILLER CYNTHIA E & 

2317 SILVERSIDES LOOP  

PENSACOLA  FL 32526 
 

 MISSION OF TRUE 

6094 CEDARTOWN RD  

MOLINO  FL 32577 
 

 MONTGOMERY ETHEL 

3010 N 6TH AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

MOORER FRANCES 

3065 BLUE STAR AVE  

PENSACOLA  FL 32514 
 

 MORGAN ED EST OF 

C/O CARRIE M SOUTHERLAND  

3212 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 OLIVER LEO & 

3113 NORTH ROOSEVELT ST 
PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

PEAKS PAUL S JR 1/2 INT 

C/O OLA MAE PEAKS  

3211 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 PENSACOLA HABITAT FOR 
HUMANITY INC 

PO BOX 13204  

PENSACOLA  FL 325913204 
 

 RILEY MICHAEL A & 

2317 SILVERSIDES LOOP  

PENSACOLA  FL 32526-1509 
 

ROBINSON LILLIE REE LAMBERT 

300 BAYOU BLVD # 308  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 ROPER ANNIE MARIE 

3411 1/2 N TARRAGONA ST 
PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 ROPER EMMA LOUISE 

3411 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

S & D INVESTMENT PROPERTIES LLC 

3435 N DR MARTIN LUTHER KING DR 
PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 SALTER EDWIN S 

PO BOX 422  

MILTON  FL 32572 
 

 SAN INOCENCIO GLORIA 

8376 TABAID LN  

PENSACOLA  FL 32506 
 

SCHOOL BOARD OF ESCAMBIA CO 

215 W GARDEN ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32502 
 

 SCOTT SAMUEL A & MARY L 

305 E TEXAR DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 SIBERT JOANN H INTER VIVOS 

1416 ALAMANCE CHURCH RD 
GREENSBORO  NC 27406 
 

SIMONS WILLIAM A & 

4316 ACACIA DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 SIMPKINS ANNIE M EST OF 

C/O DUDLEY SIMPKINS  

200 E TEXAR DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 SMALL JOHNNIE BELL 1/8 INT 

204 E TEXAR DR  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

SMALL WILLIAM & MARY JEAN 

3410 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 STEWART MARION & JOANN 

3114 N ROOSEVELT ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 T L C PROPERTIES INC 

1401 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32501 
 



THOMAS THEYUKA T & NIKKI L 

3218 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 WALKER JOHN Q 

820 W BLOUNT ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32501 
 

 WALKER LEONARD T & CARRIE 

3407 N TARRAGONA ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

WILLIAMS ELIZABETH ANN 

8347 CAMINITTI LN  

PENSACOLA  FL 32514 
 

 WILLIAMS PERCY LIFE EST & 

3214 N ROOSEVELT ST  

PENSACOLA  FL 32503 
 

 WILLIAMS RUTH V 

2317 SILVERSIDES LOOP  

PENSACOLA  FL 32526 
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    Public Hearing    Item #:  2.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: 5:45 p.m. – Thursday, January 6, 2011 – Public Hearing – Amendment to the
Official Zoning Map

From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the rezoning
cases heard by the Planning Board on December 13, 2010 and approved during the previous
agenda item and to provide for severability, inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

BACKGROUND:
Rezoning cases Z-2010-18 and Z-2010-19 were heard by the Planning Board on December 13,
2010. Under the Land Development Code (LDC), the Board of County Commissioners reviews
the record and the recommended order of the Planning Board and conducts a Public Hearing for
adoption of the LDC Zoning Map Amendment. 
 
As a means of achieving the Board’s goal of “decreasing response time from notification of
citizen needs to ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning
Board’s recommendation and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning cases.
The previous report item addresses the Board’s determination regarding the Planning Board’s
recommendation. This report item addresses only the Public Hearing and adoption of the
Ordinance amending the LDC Official Zoning Map.
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impacts are expected as a result of the recommended Board action.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
A copy of the standardized Ordinance has initially been provided to the County Attorney’s office
for review regarding compliance with rezoning requirements in Florida Statutes and the Land
Development Code.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this recommended Board
action.
 



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board Chairman will need to sign the Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Land Development Code Official Zoning Map, will be filed with
the Department of State following adoption by the Board.
 
This Ordinance is coordinated with the County Attorney’s Office, the Development Services
Bureau and interested citizens. The Development Services Bureau will ensure proper
advertisement.

Attachments
Map Ordinance_Draft



DRAFT 
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 
AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.02.00, THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent. 

The Official Zoning Map of Escambia County, Florida, as adopted by reference and 
codified in Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999), the Land 
Development Code of Escambia County, Florida, as amended:  Article 6, Section 
6.02.00, and all notations, references and information shown thereon as it relates to the 
following described real property in Escambia County, Florida, is hereby amended as 
follows. 
 

Case No.: Z-2010-18 

Location: 300 Beverly Parkway 
Property Reference No.:  46-1S-30-2001-001-037 
Property Size: 0.34 (+/-) acres 
From: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential 

District (cumulative), High Density (25 du/acre) 
To: C-2, General Commercial and Light Manufacturing 

District (cumulative) (25 du/acre) 
FLU Category: MU-1, Mixed Use 1 & C, Commercial 
 
Case No.: Z-2010-19 

Location: 3407 N Tarragona Street 
Property Reference No.:  04-2S-30-6001-005-021 
Property Size: 0.16 (+/-) acres 
From: R-3, One-family and Two-family District 

(cumulative) Medium Density (10 du/acre) 
To: R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District 

(Cumulative) High Density (20 du/acre) 
FLU Category: C, Commercial 
 



DRAFT 
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Section 2. Severability. 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2010); and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 

DONE AND ENACTED by the Board of County Commissioners of  

Escambia County Florida, this ________day of __________________, 2011. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
____________________________ 

Kevin W. White, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  ERNIE LEE MAGAHA 
       CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 
                ____________________________ 
                                  Deputy Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   



    Public Hearing    Item #:  3.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: 5:46 p.m. – Thursday, January 6, 2011 – Public Hearing – LDC Ordinance –
Articles 2 & 3 “Spot Zoning”

From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board review and adopt an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) amending
Article 2 “Administration,” to amend the language describing what constitutes “spot zoning”; and
amending Article 3 “Definitions,” to add a definition for “spot zoning.”

BACKGROUND:
This Ordinance was created by County Planning staff after it became apparent that the County
needs to amend the language for what constitutes “spot zoning” and also needs to define “spot
zoning” in the LDC. Regarding to rezoning cases, staff has noticed several instances where it is
unclear to rezoning applicants/agents as to what “spot zoning” means and how it should be
implemented throughout the County rezoning process. Staff has developed the proposed
Ordinance addressing these issues allowing the rezoning process to move forward more
efficiently.

The Planning Board reviewed and recommended approval of the Ordinance at the November 8,
2011 meeting.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance was reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Stephen West,
Assistant County Attorney. Any suggested legal comments are attached herein with the
respective Ordinance to which they pertain.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in,
access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a
copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared in cooperation with the Development Services Bureau
and the County Attorney’s Office. The Development Services Bureau will ensure proper
advertisement.

Attachments
Legal Approval; Ordinance Draft 2A; Ordinance (clean copy); PB Summary Minutes



 

 

 

 

 

5:46pm BCC LDC Ordinance  

Art. 2 & 3 “Spot Zoning” 

Legal Approval 
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From: Allyson Cain
To: David V. Forte
Subject: FW: spot zoning ordinance
Date: Tuesday, December 07, 2010 8:30:43 AM

Steve’s comments
 
 
From: Stephen G. West 
Sent: Monday, December 06, 2010 4:26 PM
To: Allyson Cain
Cc: Brenda J. Spencer
Subject: RE: spot zoning ordinance
 
Allyson:
 
In section 2.08.02.D.7.a., “therefore” should not be hyphenated. 
The hyphen was inserted as part of the formatting when the
original ordinance was codified.
 
Also, note that the definition of spot zoning is well developed in
the Florida caselaw.  As such, there is no need to define spot
zoning in the LDC, and I certainly would not recommend that the
County attempt this.  While it is legal for the County to create
its own unique definition, this will inevitably cause more
problems than it resolves.
 
Subject to the above, I approve the ordinance as to form and legal
sufficiency. 
 
 
 
From: Allyson Cain 
Sent: Monday, December 06, 2010 10:17 AM
To: Stephen G. West
Cc: Brenda J. Spencer
Subject: spot zoning ordinance
 
Good morning!
I sent you the legal review form and the ordinance for spot zoning a couple of weeks ago and I realize
you probably have not had a chance to review.  If we could receive this back from you by the end of
this week, it would meet or schedule.
Thank you and hope you have a good week.
 
 
 
Allyson Cain, Planner II
Long Range Planning Division
Development Services Bureau
595-3547
 
 
Escambia County is striving to maintain a high level of Customer Service and we would love to hear
about your experience with us. Please complete the attached customer service survey and fax it to
595-3481.
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Art. 2 & 3 “Spot Zoning” 

Ordinance Draft 2A 
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DRAFT 

BCC 01-06-11 
RE: Art. 2 & 3 „Spot Zoning‟  
Ordinance Draft 2A Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011- _____ 1 

 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, 3 

AMENDING PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF 4 

ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF 5 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING 6 

ARTICLE 2, “ADMINISTRATION,” SECTION 2.08.02 TO AMEND 7 

THE LANGUAGE DESCRIBING WHAT CONSTITUTES “SPOT 8 

ZONING”; AND AMENDING ARTICLE 3, “DEFINITIONS,” 9 

SECTION 3.02.00 TO DEFINE “SPOT ZONING”; PROVIDING 10 

FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 11 

CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 12 

 13 

 WHEREAS, the intent of this Ordinance is to define “spot zoning” for 14 

clarity purposes, particularly when dealing with rezoning cases. 15 

 16 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 17 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 18 

 19 

Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land 20 

Development Code of Escambia County, Article 2, “Administration”, Section 21 

2.08.02.d.7.b, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and 22 

words stricken are deletions):  23 

 24 
2.08.02. Quasi-judicial rezonings.  25 
 26 

 D. Notice and public hearing. 27 

 28 

7. An applicant for a proposed rezoning has the burden of proving 29 

by substantial, competent evidence that the proposed rezoning: is 30 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; furthers the goals, 31 

objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and is not in 32 

conflict with any portion of the county's Land Development Code.  33 

  34 

Upon the applicant proving the proposed rezoning complies with 35 

these criteria, the planning board shall recommend approval of the 36 

rezoning request to the board of county commissioners unless the 37 

planning board determines that there is substantial, competent 38 

evidence that maintaining the current zoning designation 39 

accomplishes a legitimate public purpose. For purposes of this 40 

section, a legitimate public purpose shall include but not be limited 41 

to preventing the following or as may be determined by law from 42 

time to time:  43 

 44 
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BCC 01-06-11 
RE: Art. 2 & 3 „Spot Zoning‟  
Ordinance Draft 2A Page 2 

a. The proposed rezoning and the development permitted 1 

there-under is premature or otherwise creates or contributes 2 

to an urban sprawl pattern of development; 3 

   4 

b. The proposed rezoning will constitute "spot zoning," that is 5 

an isolated zoning district that is unrelated to may be 6 

incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts 7 

and uses; 8 

 9 

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land 10 

Development Code of Escambia County, Article 3, “Definitions”, Section 3.02.00, 11 

is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 12 

stricken are deletions): 13 

 14 

3.02.00. Terms defined. 15 

 16 

Spot zoning. Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an isolated zoning 17 

district that may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts 18 

and uses. 19 

 20 

Section 3. Severability. 21 

 22 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid 23 

or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall 24 

in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 25 

 26 

Section 4. Inclusion in Code. 27 

 28 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 29 

this Ordinance shall be codified as required by 125.68, Fla. Stat. (2010); and that 30 

the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be 31 

renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” 32 

“article,” or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such 33 

intentions. 34 

 35 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

 45 
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BCC 01-06-11 
RE: Art. 2 & 3 „Spot Zoning‟  
Ordinance Draft 2A Page 3 

Section 5. Effective Date. 1 

 2 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 3 

 4 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2011. 5 

 6 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 7 

OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 8 

  9 

       By: ______________________________ 10 

   Kevin W. White, Chairman 11 

 12 

ATTEST:    ERNIE LEE MAGAHA                                             13 

    Clerk of the Circuit Court 14 

 15 

  By: ____________________    16 

    Deputy Clerk  17 

 18 

(SEAL) 19 

 20 

ENACTED: 21 

 22 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    23 

 24 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  25 
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Ordinance (clean copy) 
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011- _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING 
ARTICLE 2, “ADMINISTRATION,” SECTION 2.08.02 TO AMEND 
THE LANGUAGE DESCRIBING WHAT CONSTITUTES “SPOT 
ZONING”; AND AMENDING ARTICLE 3, “DEFINITIONS,” 
SECTION 3.02.00 TO DEFINE “SPOT ZONING”; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the intent of this Ordinance is to define “spot zoning” for 
clarity purposes, particularly when dealing with rezoning cases. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land 
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 2, “Administration”, Section 
2.08.02.d.7.b, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and 
words stricken are deletions):  
 
2.08.02. Quasi-judicial rezonings.  
 

 D. Notice and public hearing. 
 

7. An applicant for a proposed rezoning has the burden of proving 
by substantial, competent evidence that the proposed rezoning: is 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; furthers the goals, 
objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and is not in 
conflict with any portion of the county's Land Development Code.  

  
Upon the applicant proving the proposed rezoning complies with 
these criteria, the planning board shall recommend approval of the 
rezoning request to the board of county commissioners unless the 
planning board determines that there is substantial, competent 
evidence that maintaining the current zoning designation 
accomplishes a legitimate public purpose. For purposes of this 
section, a legitimate public purpose shall include but not be limited 
to preventing the following or as may be determined by law from 
time to time:  
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a. The proposed rezoning and the development permitted 
there-under is premature or otherwise creates or contributes 
to an urban sprawl pattern of development; 

   
b. The proposed rezoning will constitute "spot zoning," that is 
an isolated zoning district that is unrelated to may be 
incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts 
and uses; 

 
Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land 
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 3, “Definitions”, Section 3.02.00, 
is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 
stricken are deletions): 
 
3.02.00. Terms defined. 
 
Spot zoning. Rezoning of a lot or parcel of land that will create an isolated zoning 
district that may be incompatible with the adjacent and nearby zoning districts 
and uses. 

 
Section 3. Severability. 
 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid 
or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall 
in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 4. Inclusion in Code. 

 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of 
this Ordinance shall be codified as required by 125.68, Fla. Stat. (2010); and that 
the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be 
renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” 
“article,” or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such 
intentions. 
 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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Section 5. Effective Date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 
 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2011. 

 
 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

  
       By: ______________________________ 

   Kevin W. White, Chairman 
 

ATTEST:    ERNIE LEE MAGAHA                                             
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 

 
  By: ____________________    
    Deputy Clerk  
 
(SEAL) 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  

GMR: 01-06-11 LDC Ordinance 'Spot Zoning' Attachments Page 11 of 17



 

 

 

 

 

5:46pm BCC LDC Ordinance  

Art. 2 & 3 “Spot Zoning” 

Planning Board Summary Minutes 
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SUMMARY OF THE  

ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 

HELD ON NOVEMBER 8, 2010 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE, FIRST FLOOR 
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 

 
(8:32 A.M. – 10:55 A.M.) 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Wayne Briske, Chair 
 Tim Tate, Vice Chair 
 Steven Barry 
 Dorothy Davis 
 Vann Goodloe 
 Karen Sindel (arrived @ 9:05 a.m.) 
 Alvin Wingate 
 Patty Hightower, School Board Representative (non-voting) 
 Bruce Stitt, Navy Representative (non-voting) 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Stephen West, Assistant County Attorney 
 T. Lloyd Kerr, Bureau Chief, Development Services 
 Horace Jones, Division Manager, Development Review 
 Andrew Holmer, Senior Planner, Development Review 
 Allyson Cain, Planner II, Projects & Comprehensive Planning 
 John Fisher, Planner II, Development Review  
 David Forte, Planner I, Projects & Comprehensive Planning 
 Lynette Harris, Urban Planner I, Projects & Comprehensive Planning 
 Karen Spitsbergen, SOSA, Development Review  
 
 8:32 AM Quasi-Judicial Meeting Convened 

   
1. The meeting was called to order at 8:32 a.m. with 6 voting members present.  
 
2. Invocation and pledge was given by Wingate. 
 
3. Proof of Publication was given by David Forte. 
 
4. Rezoning Public Hearings 

A. Case No.: Z-2010-12 
 Location: 3010 North F Street (18-2S-30-6000-001-058) 
 From: R-4, Multiple-family District (cumulative), 

Medium-High Density (18 du/acre)  
 To:  R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District 

(cumulative) High Density, (20 du/acre) 
 Requested by: Tinnie Bonner McCants, Owners 
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Page 2 of 5 
 

 Speakers: Tinnie Bonner McCants, Owner 
David Forte 

 
Motion was made by Tate, seconded by Davis and passed unanimously (6-0) 
to recommend approval of the R-5 request. 

B. Case No.: Z-2010-13 
 Location: 4606 W Jackson Street (34-2S-30-0201-006-

010) 
 From: R-6 Neighborhood Commercial and Residential 

District, (cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre) 
 To:  C-1, Retail Commercial District, (cumulative)  

(25 du/acre) 
 Requested by: M. D. French, Owners 
 Speakers: M.D. French, Owner 

David Forte 
 
Motion was made by Davis, seconded by Wingate, and passed unanimously 
(6-0) to recommend approval of the C-1 request. 
 

C. Case No.: Z-2010-14 
 Location: 9015 Fowler Ave (10-1S-30-1101-124-002) 
 From: R-3, One-family and Two-family District, 

(cumulative) Medium Density (10 du/acre) 
 To:  R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District, 

(cumulative) High Density (20 du/acre) 
 Requested by: Jennifer Bell, Agent 
 Speakers: Jennifer Bell, Agent 

David Forte 
 
Motion was made by Goodloe, seconded by Tate, and passed unanimously (6-
0) to recommend approval of the R-5 request. 

D. Case No.: Z-2010-15 
 Location: 306 Beverly Parkway (46-1S-30-2001-002-037) 
 From: R-6 Neighborhood Commercial and Residential 

District, (cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre) 
 To:  C-2, General Commercial and Light 

Manufacturing District, (cumulative) (25 du/acre) 
 Requested by: Tom Hammond, Agent 
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Page 3 of 5 
 

 Speakers: Tom Hammond, Agent 
  David Forte 
 
Motion was made by Barry, seconded by Wingate, and passed unanimously 
(6-0) to recommend approval of the C-1 request. 

E. Case No.: Z-2010-16 
 Location: 165 Chaseville Street (38-2S-30-3000-000-001) 
 Overlay: C-3(OL) Warrington Commercial Overlay District 
 From: C-1, Retail Commercial District, (cumulative)   

(25 du/acre) 
 To:  C-2, General Commercial and Light 

Manufacturing District, (cumulative) (25 du/acre) 
 Requested by: Tom Hammond, Agent 
 Speakers: Tom Hammond, Agent 
  Keith Wilkins, Deputy Bureau Chief, Community 

and Redevelopment Agency 
David Forte 

 
Motion was made by Tate, seconded by Davis, and passed unanimously (6-0 
{Barry abstaining due to conflict of interest}) to accept applicant’s 
compatibility analysis for approval of locational criteria, amending staff’s 
findings on criterion 2, the request is consistent with the Land Development 
Code and recommend approval of the C-1 request. 
 

F. Case No.: Z-2010-17 
 Location: 7422 Pine Forest Road (24-1S-31-1301-000-

011) 
 From: R-6 Neighborhood Commercial and Residential 

District, (cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre) 
 To:  C-1, Retail Commercial District, (cumulative) 

(25 du/acre) 
 Requested by: Buddy Page, Agent 
 Speakers: Buddy Page, Agent 
  David Forte 
 
Motion was made by Davis, seconded by Tate, and passed unanimously (7-0) 
to recommend approval of the C-1 request. 
 

 
 9:30 AM Quasi-Judicial Meeting Adjourned 
 9:36 AM Regular Meeting Convened 

GMR: 01-06-11 LDC Ordinance 'Spot Zoning' Attachments Page 15 of 17



PB Meeting Summary 
November 8, 2010 
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3.  Board Minutes 

A. RECOMMENDATION:  That the Planning Board review and approve the 
Meeting Summary Minutes of the October 11, 2010 Planning Board Meeting. 

Motion was made by Goodloe, seconded by Tate and passed 
unanimously (7-0) to approve the meeting minutes. 

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2010. 
 

 C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for November 2010. 
 
5. Public Hearings 
 

A. LDC Ordinance – Article 2 & 3 “Spot Zoning” presented by David Forte, 
Urban Planner I, Projects & Comprehensive Planning 

 
  Recommendation: That the Board review and recommend to the Board of 

County Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land 
Development Code (LDC) amending Article 2 “Administration,” to amend the 
language describing what constitutes “spot zoning “; and amending Article 3 
“Definitions,” to add a definition for “spot zoning.” 

 
  Motion was made by Barry, seconded by Tate and passed unanimously 

(7-0) to waive the reading of the legal advertisement of the ordinance. 
 
  Motion was made by Sindel, seconded by Tate, and passed 

unanimously (7-0) to recommend approval for adoption the ordinance 
with the recommended changes: 

   Changing “is” on line 6 and line 17, pg. 2 to “may be” 
   Adding “and uses” on line 7 and line 17, pg. 2 
   
6. Bureau Chief’s Report 
 

 Mr. Kerr gave a brief update on the status of the EAR Based amendments 
and the LDC revisions. 

8. County Attorney’s Report 

Mr. West acknowledged there will be some ex parte communication that will 
have to be recorded at the next meeting regarding the potential rezoning on 
Beverly Parkway submitted by Mr. Hammond due to his mentioning it in the 
case heard this morning as well as Mr. Page mentioning potential cases for 
Tom Thumb in the future.   

9. Scheduling of Future Meetings 
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A. The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, 
December 13, 2010 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office 
Complex, Board Meeting Room, Room 104, 3363 West Park Place, 
Pensacola, Florida. 

11. Announcements/Communications 

12.  Adjournment 

10:55 AM – Regular Board Meeting Adjourned 
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Errata Sheet 
Art. 2 & 3 ‘Spot Zoning’ 

 
1. Page 2, line 8 - after and uses add “, or as spot zoning is otherwise defined by 

Florida law” 
 
2. Page 2, line 19 - after and uses add “, or as spot zoning is otherwise defined by 

Florida law” 



    Consent    Item #:  1.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Schedule of Public Hearings
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings: 

A.  Thursday, January 20, 2011

1.  5:45 p.m. - Public Hearing - Compliance Agreement with the Florida Department of
Community Affairs regarding the EAR Based Amendments to the Escambia County
Comprehensive Plan.
 
2.  5:46 p.m. - Public Hearing - Comprehensive Plan Evaluation & Appraisal Report (EAR)
Based Amendments Adoption Hearing Remedial Amendments. 
 

B.  Thursday, February 3, 2011 

1.  5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the following
Rezoning Case to be heard by the Planning Board on January 10, 2011.
 
Case No.: Z-2011-01
Location: 300 Highway 95-A
Property Reference No.: 14-1N-31-1004-001-004
Property Size: 13.3 (+/-) acres
From: VM-1, Villages Mixed Residential/Commercial District 

(gross density for residential uses 4 du/per acre)
To: GBD, Gateway Business District
FLU Category: I, Industrial & MU-6, Mixed-Use 6
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Wiley C. “Buddy” Page, Agent for Universal Fabricators, Inc.

2.  5:46 p.m. - Public Hearing - LDC Ordinance - Articles 3 & 6 “Wind Turbines”



AI-264     Item #:  9.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 01/06/2011  

Information
SUBJECT:
County Administrator's Report

Attachments
County Administrator's Report



               
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

January 6, 2011
             

 

I.   Technical/Public Service Consent Agenda
 

1. Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing to Consider the
Petition to Vacate a Portion of Maywood Avenue - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public
Works Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the scheduling and advertising of a Public Hearing for
February 3, 2011, at 5:31 p.m., to consider the Petition to Vacate a portion of
Maywood Avenue (25 feet x approximately 565 feet = 14,125 square feet or 0.32
acres), as petitioned by the School Board of Escambia County (the School Board).

 

 

2. Recommendation Concerning the Property Exchange with the Emerald Coast
Utilities Authority - Fayal Drive - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief  

That the Board take the following action concerning the property exchange with the
Emerald Coast Utilities Authority - Fayal Drive:

A. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the conveyance of a drainage Easement to the
Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) over the northern shoulder of the western
portion of Fayal Drive in exchange for a Deed from ECUA to the eastern portion of
Fayal Drive, subject to a drainage Easement retained in favor of ECUA; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute all documents, subject to Legal review and
sign-off, necessary to complete the property exchange with ECUA.

 

 

3. Recommendation Concerning the District Three appointee to the Escambia County
Mass Transit Advisory Committee - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County
Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the District Three appointee to
the Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee (MTAC):

A. Confirm the appointment of Ira L. Jones as the District Three representative to the
Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee, with the term of the
appointment to be effective January 6, 2011, and to run concurrent with the term
of Commissioner Marie Young; and

B. Request the County Administrator's Office to provide a letter of appreciation to Sr.
Chaplain Freddie Augustine for his  service.

 

 

4. Recommendation Concerning Public Hearing Request - Fund Balance Carry  



4. Recommendation Concerning Public Hearing Request - Fund Balance Carry
Forwards - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the scheduling and advertising of a Public Hearing on
January 20, 2011, at 5:34 p.m., to amend the Fiscal Year 2010/2011 Budget to
include the fund balance carry forwards.

 

 

5. Recommendation Concerning the Disposition of Surplus County Property from the
Community & Environment Bureau - Sandra P. Jennings, P. E., Community &
Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the four Requests for Disposition of Property indicating 12
items, (i.e. computers, tractors and various other equipment), all of which are
described and listed on the  Request Forms with reasons for disposition stated on
each.  The items are to be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of. 

 

 

6. Recommendation Concerning the Florida State Legislature’s Honorary Designation of
the Section of Sorrento Road from Blue Angel Parkway to Innerarity Point Road/Gulf
Beach Highway as “Perdido Key Parkway” - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant
County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the Florida State Legislature’s
honorary designation of the section of Sorrento Road from Blue Angel Parkway to
Innerarity Point Road/Gulf Beach Highway as “Perdido Key Parkway”:

A. Adopt the Resolution that states the Board’s support of the honorary designation of
“Perdido Key Parkway” for the section of Sorrento Road from Blue Angel Parkway to
Innerarity Point Road/Gulf Beach Highway; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Resolution.

 

 

7. Recommendation Concerning Scheduling and Advertising First of Two Public
Hearings Designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a Brownfield Area - Sandra P.
Jennings, P.E., Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the  scheduling and advertising the first of two Public
Hearings on January 20, 2011, at 5:33 p.m., to consider adoption of a Resolution of
the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, designating 7220
North Palafox Street as a Brownfield area within Escambia County, for the purpose of
economic development and environmental rehabilitation; authorizing the Community
& Environment Deputy Bureau Chief to notify the Department of Environmental
Protection of said designation; and providing for an effective date.
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II.  Budget/Finance Consent Agenda
 

1. Recommendation Concerning Enterprise Agreement with Microsoft Corporation -
Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning an Enterprise Agreement with
Microsoft Corporation:

A. Approve the Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment, State and Local Amendment, which
authorizes the termination of the current three-year Microsoft Enterprise Agreement
(Enrollment Number 8568879), approved by the Board on September 18, 2008, and
authorizes a new enrollment, with an effective date of November 1, 2010;

B. Approve the Enterprise Enrollment (Indirect) State and Local, Microsoft Business
Agreement Number U0275474;

C. Authorize the County to piggyback off the Florida State Contract 252-001-09-1 and
award a Purchase Order, in the amount of $181,086, to SHI as the authorized
reseller for Microsoft Corporation;
 
D. Approve and authorize the County Administrator to execute the Purchase Order,
with not-to-exceed second and third year payments of $200,000; and

E. Authorize the Chairman to execute all documents related to the termination and
acceptance of the Enterprise Agreements with Microsoft Corporation.

[Funding:  Fund 001, General Fund, Cost Center 140101 Information Technology -
$181,086]

 

 

2. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #69 - Payment in
Lieu of Taxes Agreement with Sacred Heart Health System, Inc. - Amy Lovoy,
Management & Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#69, General Fund (001), in the amount of $5,331,309, to recognize funds received
from a Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement with Sacred Heart Health System, Inc.,
and to appropriate these funds in the current year's Budget.

 

 

3. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #70 - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#70, CRA Expendable Trust Fund (151) and the General Fund (001), to recognize a
decrease, in the amount of $9,286, in the General Fund transfer to the Community
Redevelopment Agency - Tax Increment Finance (CRA-TIF) Districts in Escambia
County and appropriate this decrease among the County's Five CRA-TIF Districts.
This adjustment reflects the difference in the amount budgeted for the five County
TIF Districts, the City of Pensacola TIF Districts, and the amount collected from
property taxes.
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4. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #71 - Jones
Swamp Tree Harvesting - Amy Lovoy,Management and Budget Services Bureau
Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#71, Escambia County Restricted Fund (101), in the amount of $17,926, to recognize
proceeds from the sale of surplus timber from tree harvesting and to appropriate
these funds to be used for maintenance costs at the Jones Swamp Wetland
Preserve.

 

 

5. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #80 - State
Homeland Security Grant Program Sub-recipient Agreement - Amy
Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#80, Other Grants and Projects Fund (110), in the amount of $69,295, to recognize
proceeds from a State of Florida Homeland Security Grant Program and to
appropriate these funds to be used for continued training for team members and
upkeep of equipment for the Urban Search & Rescue and Hazardous Material
Teams.

 

 

6. Recommendation Concerning Amendment #1 to the Contract between the State
of Florida and Escambia County - Amy Lovoy, Management & Budget
Services Bureau Chief  

That the Board approve Amendment #1 to the Contract between the State of Florida,
Department of Revenue and Escambia County, increasing the total Contract by
$10,000, to allow additional reimbursement from the State for services of process. 
This Amendment will allow the County to receive an additional $10,000 in
reimbursements from the State of Florida.

 

 

7. Recommendation Concerning Contract Assignment for Escambia County Sector
Plan, PD 06-07.043 - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning Contract PD 06-07.043,
Escambia County Sector Plan:

A.   Authorize the assignment of Contract PD 06-07.043, Escambia County Sector
Plan, originally awarded to MSCW,Inc., to Vanassee Hangen Brustlin, Inc., in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract; and

B.   Authorize the Chairman to sign the Assignment of Agreement.
 
[Funding:  Fund 001, General Fund, Cost Center 240206]
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8. Recommendation Concerning Cantonment Athletic Park Expansion - Amy Lovoy,

Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board award an Indefinite Quantity, Indefinite Delivery Contract, 
PD 10-11.006, Cantonment Athletic Park Expansion, to Roads, Inc., of NWF, for a
total amount of $492,197.50.  [Funding: Fund 352 LOST III, Cost Center 210802,
Object Code 56301, Project No. 11PR0965]

 

 

9. Recommendation Concerning the Release of Three County Liens at 13 Linda Street -
Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action to assist Pensacola Habitat for Humanity,
Inc., in the purchase of real property at 13 Linda Street, Account Number
07-2955-000, Reference Number 35-2S-30-6000-009-004:

A. Authorize release of two Municipal Services Benefit Unit (MSBU) Liens from 1998
and 1999, recorded in Official Records Book 4316, at Page 1650, and Official
Records Book 4451, at Page 1275, respectively, in the total amount of $516.60, and
the 2010 Nuisance Abatement Lien, in the amount of $258.59, recorded in Official
Records Book 6557, at Page 1626, of the Public Records of Escambia County,
Florida; and

B. Habitat for Humanity, Inc., will pay for the resolution and recording fees related to
these Liens and will receive approval from the County of the design for any structure
to be constructed prior to the County’s release of Liens. 

 

 

10. Recommendation Concerning the State of Florida, Division of Emergency
Management, Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security Grant Program Award -
Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the State of Florida, Division of
Emergency Management (FDEM), Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security
Grant Program award, allocating to Escambia County a Grant in the amount of
$62,997, for the period of August 1, 2010, through January 31, 2013:

A. Approve the FDEM Award Letter allocating funding that will be identified in Fund
110, Other Grants and Projects, Cost Center 330459, Domestic Security Grant;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Grant Award Letter; and

C. Authorize the County Administrator to execute the subsequent Grant Agreement.
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11. Recommendation Concerning Issuance of a Purchase Order on Contract PD

05-06.048, Purchase of Ambulances – Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Bureau
Chief

That the Board authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order to Horton Emergency
Vehicles, in the amount of $609,984, on Contract PD 05-06.048, “Purchase of
Ambulances”, for the purchase of three 2011 Navistar ambulances, Model 603A. 
[Funding Source: Fund 352 – LOST III, Project No. 08PS0028 – Ambulances, Cost
Center 330435, Account 56401]

 

 

12. Recommendation Concerning the County's Acceptance of Property for Road
Rights-of-Way and Drainage Improvements on Nicholson Drive - Joy D. Blackmon,
P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning acquisition of property by
donation for road rights-of-way and drainage improvements on Nicholson Drive:  

A. Authorize staff to negotiate and resolve any matters related to, or associated with
the acquisition of property by donation for road rights-of-way and Easements, located
on or adjacent to Nicholson Drive, gather information and conduct inspections as
needed, to allow the Board’s acceptance of the real property; 

B. Authorize the payment of documentary stamps because the property is being
acquired for governmental use, which is for road rights-of-way and drainage
Easements, and the County benefits from these acquisitions because they facilitate
the installation of road and drainage improvements, which will result in a more
efficient and safer roadway, which will enhance the quality of life for the citizens of
Escambia County; 

C. Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the acquisition of
these properties; which includes, but is not limited to, a title search, documentary
stamp tax and recording of documents; and 

D. Authorize staff to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the
Deeds or Easements as of the day of delivery of the Deeds or Easements to the
Chairman or Vice Chairman, and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to
acknowledge the Board’s acceptance at that time, subject to Legal review and
sign-off.  

[Funding Source: Fund 351, LOST II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project
#05EN1605, "Nicholson Drive"] 
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13. Recommendation Concerning General Paving, Drainage, and Resurfacing Pricing

Agreement 2010 - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the issuance of individual or Blanket Purchase Orders, per
PD 07-08.134, "General Paving, Drainage, and Resurfacing Pricing Agreement", in
accordance with Chapter 46 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, to the
following list of contractors in Fiscal Year 2010/2011, to be issued for the Public
Works Bureau - Infrastructure/Engineering Division, not to exceed $2,000,000 in total:

APAC Mid-South, Inc.                                                
Gulf Atlantic Constructors, Inc.                                  
Panhandle Grading and Paving, Inc.
Pensacola Concrete Construction Co.
Roads, Inc., of NWF
Starfish, Inc., of Alabama

[Funding Source:  Fund 001, "General Fund", Account 211106/56301 - Santa Rosa
Island Drainage Improvements]

 

 

14. Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Real Property Located at 1664 Eagle
Terrace, in Brookhollow Subdivision from Ronald E. and Theresa Maloy Schaefer -
Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action regarding the purchase of a parcel of real
property located at 1664 Eagle Terrace, in Brookhollow Subdivision (approximately
0.58 acres) from Ronald E. and Theresa Maloy Schaefer:

A. Authorize the purchase of a parcel of real property (approximately 0.58 acres) from
Ronald E. Schaefer and Theresa Maloy Schaefer, for the appraised value of $37,000,
in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in the Contract for Sale and
Purchase; and

B. Authorize the County Attorney to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to
execute any documents, subject to Legal review and sign-off, necessary to complete
the purchase, without further action of the Board.

[Funding Source: Fund 351, Lost II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project
10EN0275 and Fund 352, Lost III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455]
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15. Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Real Property Located in the 1700

Block of Eagle Street in Brookhollow Subdivision from Pensacola Bar and Harbor
Pilots, Inc. - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action regarding the purchase of  three parcels of
real property (totaling approximately 1.08 acres) located in the 1700 Block of Eagle
Street, in Brookhollow Subdivision from Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc.: 

A. Authorize the purchase of three parcels of real property (totaling approximately
1.08 acres) from Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc., for the appraised value of
$80,000, in accordance with the terms and conditions contained in the Contract for
Sale and Purchase; and 

B. Authorize the County Attorney to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to
execute any documents, subject to Legal review and sign-off, necessary to complete
the purchase, without further action of the Board.

[Funding Source:  Fund 351, Lost II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project
10EN0275 and Fund 352, Lost III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455]

 

 

16. Recommendation Concerning a Local Agency Program Agreement with the State of
Florida Department of Transportation, for Funding (not to exceed $550,000), for
Construction of Paved Shoulders on 2nd Street between Interbay Avenue and
Barrancas Avenue (SR-292) - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County
Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning a Local Agency Program
Agreement with the State of Florida Department of Transportation, for funding (not to
exceed $550,000), for construction of paved shoulders on 2nd Street between
Interbay Avenue and Barrancas Avenue (SR-292):

A. Approve the State of Florida Department of Transportation, Local Agency
Program (LAP) Agreement, between the State of Florida Department of
Transportation (FDOT) and Escambia County, for a design of paved shoulders on
2nd Street, between Interbay Ave and Barrancas Avenue (SR-292); 

B. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the execution of the LAP Agreement; and

C. Authorize the Chairman to sign the LAP Agreement and Resolution for this
project.

[Funding:  The reimbursement from FDOT to the County will take place over a
three-year period.  This is due to the box funding being allocated as such:  current
Fiscal Year $125,000; FY 2011-12 $125,000; FY 2012-13 $300,000]
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17. Recommendation Concerning a Railroad Reimbursement Agreement to Improve the

Alabama Gulf Coast Railway, LLC, Railroad Crossing Controls Located on Arthur
Brown Road - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning a Railroad Reimbursement
Agreement to improve the Alabama Gulf Coast Railway, LLC, (A&GCR) railroad
crossing controls located on Arthur Brown Road:

A. Adopt the Resolution that authorizes the County to enter into the Agreement with
the State of Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and A&GCR;

B. Approve the Railroad Reimbursement Agreement between the State of Florida
Department of Transportation, Alabama Gulf Coast Railway, LLC, and Escambia
County, Florida, that specifies FDOT will fund the $250,000, estimated cost to
improve the railroad crossing controls on Arthur Brown Road, at the A&GCR
crossing, in the Walnut Hill area, and further specifies A&GCR and the County will
equally share the $3,146, annual maintenance cost for the crossing controls; and 

C. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Resolution and the
Agreement.

[Funding: Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Account 270201/54601]

 

 

18. Recommendation Concerning Brent Park Beautification & Restoration 2010 Project
- Sandra P. Jennings, P.E., Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) funded Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Mini-Grant Agreement
with BBYSA, Inc.:

A. Approve the Agreement and award a Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Grant, in
the maximum amount of $500, for the Brent Park Beautification and Restoration
2010 Project, sponsored by BBYSA, Inc., located in the Palafox Community
Redevelopment Area; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Agreement and all
related documents as required to implement the project.

[Funding: Fund 129/2009 CDBG, Cost Center 220410]
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19. Recommendation Concerning Escambia County Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef

Monitoring Project Grant Agreement with Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission
(FWC) – Grant No. 10263 - Sandra P. Jennings, P.E., Community & Environment
Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Escambia County
Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring Project Grant Agreement with the Florida
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) – Grant No. 10263:

A. Approve the Grant Agreement between Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners and FWC, for the Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring
Project, in the amount of $53,000, from the date of execution through December 30,
2012; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Agreement and any documents related to
acceptance, execution, reporting, and amendments to this Grant, pending Legal
review and approval, without further action of the Board.

[Funding Source: Fund 110, Other Grants & Projects; Cost Center/Revenue Code –
TBD at time of Supplemental Budget Amendment]

 

 

20. Recommendation Concerning Interlocal Agreement with Santa Rosa County for
Permitted Artificial Reef Sites - Sandra P. Jennings. P.E., Community & Environment
Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning an Interlocal Agreement
between the County and Santa Rosa County for permitted artificial reef sites:

A. Approve the Interlocal Agreement allowing Santa Rosa County to contribute
appropriate reef materials and monetary compensation towards management of the
artificial reef construction, for the purpose of enhancing the County’s existing artificial
reef sites; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement and any documents
related to acceptance, without further action of the Board.

[Funding: Fund 108, Tourist Promotion Fund, Revenue Account TBD (new) –
($1,000 minimum)]
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21. Recommendation Concerning a Purchase Order to Thompson Tractor Company,

Inc., for One Caterpillar D3K LGP Track Type Tractor, in the Amount of $81,967. for
Solid Waste Management - Sandra P. Jennings, P.E., Community & Environment
Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the County to Piggyback off the National Joint Powers
Alliance (NJPA) Contract IFB# 092409, in accordance with the Escambia County
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 46, Article II, Section 46-44, Applications, exemptions:
and Section 46-64, Board approval, and award a Purchase Order to Thompson
Tractor Company, Inc., for one Caterpillar D3K LGP Track Type Tractor, in the
amount of $81,967, for Solid Waste Management.  [Funding: Fund 401, Solid Waste
Fund, Cost Center 220603]

 

 

22. Recommendation Concerning Agreement for Operation of Job Access and Reverse
Commute and New Freedom Programs - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County
Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the Agreement for operation of
Job Access and Reverse Commute and New Freedom Programs:

A. Approve the Agreement between Escambia County and the Transportation
Planning Organization for Operation of Job Access and Reverse Commute and New
Freedom Programs; and
 
B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Agreement and all related documents.

[Funding:  Fund 104, Mass Transit; no additional cost to the County]

 

 

23. Recommendation Concerning the Agreement between ECAT, the Florida-Alabama
Transportation Planning Organization and the University of South Florida’s Center
for Urban Transportation Research, for the 2011 Major Update to the Escambia
County Ten Year Transit Development Plan - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant
County Administrator

That the Board accept for the Official Record, the Agreement between ECAT
(Escambia County Area Transit), the Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning
Organization (TPO), and the University of South Florida’s Center for Urban
Transportation Research (CUTR), for the 2011 Major Update to the Escambia
County Ten Year Transit Development Plan (TDP), ensuring that ECAT services are
eligible for the State Transit Block Grant and other transit funding available from the
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT).
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III. For Discussion
 

1. Recommendation Concerning Appointment to the Escambia County Board of
Adjustment - Charles R. "Randy" Oliver, CPA PE, County Administrator

That the Board approve appointing one of the following nominees to the Escambia
County Board of Adjustment at-large position, effective January 6, 2011, through
April 15, 2011, to fill the unexpired term of Robert R. Penfold, who resigned:

A. Jesse Casey; or
B. David Karasek

 

 

2. Recommendation Concerning Resolution Requesting Assistance in Getting BP
Claims for Economic Losses Caused by the BP Oil Spill Approved, Expedited and
Settled - Charles R. "Randy" Oliver, CPA PE, County Administrator

That the Board adopt the Resolution requesting assistance from the President of the
United States and the Northwest Florida Legislative Delegation to take action to
ensure BP holds true on its promise, in a timely manner, to make Escambia County
and its citizens whole for any economic losses caused by the BP Oil Spill.
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    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  1.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Schedule a Public Hearing to Consider the Petition to Vacate a Portion of
Maywood Avenue

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing to Consider the Petition to
Vacate a Portion of Maywood Avenue - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the scheduling and advertising of a Public Hearing for February 3,
2011, at 5:31 p.m., to consider the Petition to Vacate a portion of Maywood Avenue (25 feet x
approximately 565 feet = 14,125 square feet or 0.32 acres), as petitioned by the School Board of
Escambia County (the School Board).

BACKGROUND:
The School Board owns property in Section 39, Township 1 South, Range 31 West, Escambia
County, Florida, which is the site of Bellview Middle School. The School Board is requesting that
the Board of County Commissioners vacate any interest the County has in the unopened portion
of Maywood Avenue (25 feet x approximately 565 feet = 14,125 square feet or 0.32 acres),
which extends east to west through the School property.  The portion of Maywood Avenue
requested to be vacated is a 25’ wide unopened right-of-way, as shown on the plat of Bellview
Heights Subdivision as recorded in Plat Book 1 at Page 27 of the public records of Escambia
County, Florida.  Staff has made no representations to the Petitioner or Petitioner’s agent that
Board approval of this request operates to confirm the vesting or return of title to the land to the
Petitioner or to any other interested party.

There are no encroachment issues involved with this vacation request.  Staff has reviewed the
request and has no objections to the proposed vacation.  All utility companies concerned have
been contacted and have no objection to the requested vacation, provided a utility easement is
retained with the understanding that the County will not be responsible for the maintenance of
the easement.  No one will be denied access to his or her property as a result of this vacation.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Indirect staff cost associated with preparation of documents and recommendation.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A



N/A

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is based on the Board’s Vacating, Abandoning, and Closing Existing
Public Streets, Rights-of-Way, Alleyways, Roads, Highways, Other Places Used for Travel or
Other Lands Dedicated for Public Use or Purposes, or Any Portions Thereof to Renounce and
Disclaim Any Right of the County and The Public In and To Said Lands Policy for closing,
vacating and abandoning County owned property – Section III, and Florida Statutes, Chapter
336.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Once the Public Hearing has been scheduled, the Petitioner will be notified, the date and time
will be advertised, and all property owners within 500 feet will be notified.

Staff has been in contact with Donald P. Jehle, P.E., jehle-halstead, inc., as agent for the
Petitioner. It is the responsibility of the Petitioner or Petitioner’s agent to advertise the Notice of
Public Hearing.

Attachments
Petition
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    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  2.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Property Exchange with the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority - Fayal Drive
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Property Exchange with the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority
- Fayal Drive - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief 

That the Board take the following action concerning the property exchange with the Emerald
Coast Utilities Authority - Fayal Drive:

A. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the conveyance of a drainage Easement to the Emerald
Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) over the northern shoulder of the western portion of Fayal Drive
in exchange for a Deed from ECUA to the eastern portion of Fayal Drive, subject to a drainage
Easement retained in favor of ECUA; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute all documents, subject to Legal review and
sign-off, necessary to complete the property exchange with ECUA.

BACKGROUND:
ECUA requires drainage easements along the northern portion of Fayal Drive to accommodate
the expansion of its Bayou Marcus Wastewater Treatment Plant. The County acquired the
western portion of Fayal Drive in September 1980 by the Quitclaim Deed recorded in Official
Record Book 1496 at page 903 of the public records of Escambia County, Florida. ECUA
subsequently acquired the eastern portion of Fayal Drive in June 1987 by the Warranty Deed
recorded in Official Record Book 2420 at page 926, although the County has apparently
maintained the right-of-way over ECUA’s property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Costs associated with recording the easement and deed in the public records and other closing
costs will be paid by ECUA.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney’s Office drafted the Drainage Easement and the Special Warranty Deed
and will handle the closing on the property exchange.



PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The exchange is consistent with the requirements of Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of
Ordinances and Sections 125.37, Florida Statutes.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Notice of Intent to Exchange County Property has been advertised in the Pensacola News
Journal once a week for two weeks prior to the date of this meeting.

Attachments
Resolution
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 RESOLUTION R2011-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
AUTHORIZING THE EXCHANGE OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY WITH THE EMERALD COAST UTILITIES 
AUTHORITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida (the County) 

owns certain real property (County Property) more particularly described in Exhibit A attached to 
this Resolution; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA),  a local governmental entity, 

corporate and politic, has requested that the County convey to it an easement over a portion of the 
County Property described in the attached Exhibit B; and 

 
WHEREAS, in exchange for a conveyance of an easement over the County Property, ECUA 

proposes to  convey to the County certain real property (ECUA Property) more particularly 
described in the attached Exhibit C, subject to a drainage easement retained in favor of  ECUA over 
a portion of the ECUA Property described in  the attached Exhibit D; and 

 
WHEREAS, such an exchange of property is authorized by Section 125.37, Florida Statutes; 

 and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has determined that it is in the best interest 

of the citizens of Escambia County to authorize and approve the proposed exchange under the terms 
and conditions set forth herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 

Section 1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 2. That the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, hereby 

authorizes conveyance to ECUA of a drainage easement as described in the attached Exhibit B in 

exchange for conveyance by ECUA of  the ECUA Property described in the attached Exhibit C, 

subject to a drainage easement retained in favor of ECUA  as described in the attached Exhibit D 

with all costs associated with closing and recording the documents in the public records being borne 

by ECUA. 



Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board of County 

Commissioners. 

ADOPTED this _______ day of _________________, 2011. 
 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
 

 ______________________________________ 
       Kevin W. White, Chairman 

ATTEST: ERNIE LEE MAGAHA 
Clerk of the Circuit Court 

 
 
____________________________________ 

Deputy Clerk 
 

 
  
BCC Approved: _____________________ 



     
 

Exhibit “A” 

     
 

A parcel of land 60 feet in width for road right-of-way purposes more particularly 
described as follows: 
 

COMMENCING at the Southeast corner of Block “H” of Santa Clara, a subdivision of a 
portion of the Santiago Coleman Grant, Section 8, Township 2 South, Range 31 West, Escambia 
County, Florida as recorded in Plat Book 5 at Page 44 of the public records of said County; 
thence run South 79° 20' 00" West along the South line of said Santa Clara for 269.00 feet for the 
POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue South 79° 20' 00" West along the South line of said 
Santa Clara and an extension thereof for 217.00 feet; thence run South 10° 40' 00" East for 60.00 
feet; thence run North 79° 20' 00" East for 217.00 feet; thence run North 10° 40' 00" West for 
60.00 feet to the point of beginning. All lying and being in Section8, Township 2 South Range 
31 West, Escambia County, Florida containing 0.298 acres, more or less. 
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Exhibit “C” 

     
 
A portion of Section 8, Township 2 South, Range 31 West, Escambia County, Florida, being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the Southeast corner of Block “H” of Santa Clara, a subdivision of a portion of the 
Santiago Coleman Grant as recorded in Plat Book 5 at Page 44 of the public records of said 
County; thence run South 79° 20' 00" West along the South line of said Santa Clara for 269.00 
feet; thence run South 10° 40' 00" East for 60.00 feet; thence run South 79° 20' 00" West for 
217.00 feet; thence run South 10° 40' 00" East for 6.00 feet; thence run North 79° 20' 00" East 
for 486.00 feet; thence run North 10° 40' 00" West for 66.00 feet to the point of beginning. 
Containing 0.44 acres, more or less. 
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This document was prepared by: 
Stephen G. West, Assistant County Attorney 
Escambia County Attorney’s Office 
221 Palafox Place, Suite 430 
Pensacola, Florida 32502  
(850) 595-4970 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 
 
 SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
 

THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED is made and entered into this _____ day of 
________________, 2011, by and between Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (f/k/a Escambia 
County Utilities Authority), a local governmental entity, corporate and politic, whose address is 
9255 Sturdevant Street, Pensacola, Florida 32514 (Grantor), and Escambia County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Florida, acting by and through its duly authorized Board of County 
Commissioners, whose address is 221 Palafox Place, Pensacola, Florida 32502 (Grantee). 
 

WITNESSETH that Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars $10.00), and 
other good and valuable consideration in hand paid by Grantee, receipt of which is acknowledged, 
conveys to Grantee and its successors and assigns forever, the following described land situated in 
Escambia County, Florida: 
 

See Exhibit A (Property) 
 
THIS CONVEYANCE IS SUBJECT TO taxes for the year 2011 and subsequent years; 

conditions, easements, and restrictions of record, if any, but this reference does not operate to 
reimpose them; and zoning ordinance and other restrictions and prohibitions imposed by applicable 
governmental authorities. 

 
GRANTOR will warrant and defend against the lawful claims and demands of all persons 

claiming by, through or under Grantor, but against none other. 
 

Grantor reserves a perpetual drainage easement over that portion of the Property described in 
the attached Exhibit B (Drainage Easement), which is incorporated by reference, for ingress and 
egress over and across the Drainage easement, and the right to excavate, construct and maintain 
drainage structures in the Drainage Easement. 

 
 

 



 
 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED 
IN THE PRESENCE OF: 
       
 

EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
 

Witness ________________________________  
Print Name _____________________________ 
 
Witness ________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Print Name _____________________________ By:  Stephen E. Sorrell, Executive Director 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

____________, 2011, by Stephen E. Sorrell, Executive Director, Emerald Coast Utilities 
Authority.  He (_) is personally known to me, or has (_) produced current 
__________________________ as identification. 
 
      ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Notary Public 
 
      ______________________________________ 
(Notary Seal)      Printed Name of Notary Public 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE 
 

TITLE TO THE ABOVE PROPERTY is accepted for public use by Escambia County, 
Florida on this _____ day of _________________ 2011, as authorized by action of the Board of 
County Commissioners at its meeting held on _____ day of ___________________, 2011. 

 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA by and 
through its duly authorized BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
       Kevin W. White, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: Ernie Lee Magaha 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 
 
__________________________________ 
 Deputy Clerk 



 
 
     
 

Exhibit “C” 

     
 
A portion of Section 8, Township 2 South, Range 31 West, Escambia County, Florida, being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the Southeast corner of Block “H” of Santa Clara, a subdivision of a portion of the 
Santiago Coleman Grant as recorded in Plat Book 5 at Page 44 of the public records of said 
County; thence run South 79° 20' 00" West along the South line of said Santa Clara for 269.00 
feet; thence run South 10° 40' 00" East for 60.00 feet; thence run South 79° 20' 00" West for 
217.00 feet; thence run South 10° 40' 00" East for 6.00 feet; thence run North 79° 20' 00" East 
for 486.00 feet; thence run North 10° 40' 00" West for 66.00 feet to the point of beginning. 
Containing 0.44 acres, more or less. 
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This document prepared by: 
Stephen G. West, Assistant County Attorney 
221 Palafox Place, Suite 430 
Pensacola, Florida 32502 
(850) 595-4970 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 

 
DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

 
 THIS GRANT OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of 
_______________, 2011, by and between Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State 
of Florida, whose address is 221 Palafox Place, Pensacola, Florida 32502 (Grantor) and the 
Emerald Coast Utilities Authority, a local governmental entity, corporate and politic, whose 
address is 9255 Sturdevant Street, Pensacola, Florida 32514 (Grantee). 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of certain land located in Escambia County, Florida, 
more particularly described in the Quitclaim Deed recorded in Official Record Book 1496 at 
page 903 of the public records of Escambia County, Florida (Grantor’s Property); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee desires a perpetual easement over a portion of Grantor’s Property 
for construction and maintenance of drainage structures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor has agreed to grant an easement to Grantee over and across a 
portion of Grantor’s Property under the terms and conditions set forth below. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars 
($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, does grant to Grantee and Grantee's 
successors and assigns a perpetual easement, as described in the attached Exhibit A (Drainage 
Easement), which is incorporated by reference, for ingress and egress over and across the 
Drainage Easement, and the right to excavate, construct and maintain drainage structures in the 
Drainage Easement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has set its hand and seal the day and year first 
written above. 
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Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of:      
       GRANTOR: 
        

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA by and 
through its duly authorized BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ATTEST: Ernie Lee Magaha 
Clerk of the Circuit Court  

          Kevin W. White, Chairman  
Deputy Clerk    
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
       GRANTEE: 
 
       EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
Witness ______________________________ 
Print Name ___________________________ By:_________________________________ 
             Stephen E. Sorrell, Executive Director 
Witness _______________________________ 
Print Name ____________________________  
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _______________, 
2011, by Stephen E. Sorrell, Executive Director, Emerald Coast Utilities Authority.  He is (_)  personally 
known to me, (_) produced current ________________________________ as identification. 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
        Signature of Notary Public 
(SEAL)      ____________________________________________ 
        Printed Name of Notary Public 
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY 
PUBLIC WORKS BUREAU 
LWG   08/10/10   DISTRICT  1

ECUA PROPERTY / BAYOU MARCUS  PLANT

ECUA PARCEL TO BE CONVEYED TO COUNTY
COUNTY PROPERTY / FAYAL DRIVE R/W
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF PROPOSED DRAINAGE EASEMENTS TO ECUA

PROPOSED EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS BETWEEN ESCAMBIA COUNTY AND ECUA



    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  3.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: District Three Appointment to the Mass Transit Advisory Committee
From: Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Adm
Organization: Transportation & Traffic
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the District Three appointee to the Escambia County Mass
Transit Advisory Committee - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the District Three appointee to the
Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee (MTAC):

A. Confirm the appointment of Ira L. Jones as the District Three representative to the Escambia
County Mass Transit Advisory Committee, with the term of the appointment to be effective
January 6, 2011, and to run concurrent with the term of Commissioner Marie Young; and

B. Request the County Administrator's Office to provide a letter of appreciation to Sr. Chaplain
Freddie Augustine for his  service.

BACKGROUND:
The previous representative, Sr. Chaplain Freddie Augustine has resigned his appointment due
to other obligations.  Ira L. Jones has submitted her resume expressing interest in the
appointment to serve on the Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires that all established committee appointments have Board Approval.



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the Board, this appointment shall become effective.

Attachments
Ira L. Jones Resume





    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  4.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Public Hearing Request– Fund Balance Carry Forwards
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Public Hearing Request - Fund Balance Carry Forwards - Amy
Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the scheduling and advertising of a Public Hearing on January 20,
2011, at 5:34 p.m., to amend the Fiscal Year 2010/2011 Budget to include the fund balance
carry forwards.

BACKGROUND:
During the budget process an estimate is made for the amount of unspent monies that will be
remaining at the end of the fiscal year. This amount is budgeted as a fund balance estimate. At
the close of every fiscal year a reconciliation is made between the estimate of fund balance, or
funds remaining from the previous year and the actual fund balance. The difference is then
appropriated into the budget. A public hearing is required to amend the County's budget in this
manner.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A



    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  5.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Disposition of Surplus County Property
From: Sandra Jennings
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Disposition of Surplus County Property from the Community &
Environment Bureau - Sandra P. Jennings, P. E., Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the four Requests for Disposition of Property indicating 12 items, (i.e.
computers, tractors and various other equipment), all of which are described and listed on the 
Request Forms with reasons for disposition stated on each.  The items are to be auctioned as
surplus or properly disposed of. 

BACKGROUND:
All surplus property listed on the attached Requests for Disposition of Property has been
checked and declared either surplus to be auctioned, or surplus to be properly disposed of.  The
Requests have been signed by all applicable authorities including Division Manager, Bureau
Chief, Interim Assistant/County Administrator, and if applicable, Information Technology
Technician.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Possible recoup of funds if/when property goes to auction. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in conpliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1, 2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the BCC, the Disposing Bureau, Constitutional Officer, or Outside Agency



Upon approval by the BCC, the Disposing Bureau, Constitutional Officer, or Outside Agency
must put items in good condition on the  "Pensacola Community Auction" website for 30 days. 
All other property will be disposed of according to the Disposition of County Property policies of
the BCC.

Attachments
SWMD Dispositions 01062011 











    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  6.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Approval of a Resolution Supporting the State Legislature's Honorary
Designation of a Section of Sorrento Road as "Perdido Key Parkway"

From: Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Adm
Organization: Transportation & Traffic
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Florida State Legislature’s Honorary Designation of the
Section of Sorrento Road from Blue Angel Parkway to Innerarity Point Road/Gulf Beach Highway
as “Perdido Key Parkway” - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the Florida State Legislature’s honorary
designation of the section of Sorrento Road from Blue Angel Parkway to Innerarity Point
Road/Gulf Beach Highway as “Perdido Key Parkway”:

A. Adopt the Resolution that states the Board’s support of the honorary designation of “Perdido
Key Parkway” for the section of Sorrento Road from Blue Angel Parkway to Innerarity Point
Road/Gulf Beach Highway; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Resolution.

BACKGROUND:
The Perdido Key Chamber of Commerce requested Senator Don Gaetz support renaming this
section of Sorrento Road as “Perdido Key Parkway”. Senator Gaetz presented Senate Bill 1948,
during the 2010 legislative session, to designate this section of Sorrento Road with the honorary
name of “Perdido Key Parkway”. This honorary designation was approved by the 2010
legislature with an effective date of July 1, 2010.

Section 334.071, Florida Statutes, 2010 establishes the process for legislative designation of
transportation facilities for honorary or memorial purposes. The statute states that such
designations shall not require any action by local government or private parties regarding
changing street signs, mailing addresses, or 911 emergency telephone number system listing.
The statute requires the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) to place appropriate
markers identifying such designations. The statute further states the placement of markers is
contingent upon the appropriate city or county commission passing a resolution in support of the
honorary designation.



BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Resolution has been reviewed and approved by the County Attorney as to form and legal
sufficiency on December 9, 2010.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Resolution for Perdido Key Drive Honorary Designation







    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  7.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Schedule and Advertise First of Two Public Hearings Designating 7220 North
Palafox Street as a Brownfield Area

From: Sandra Prince Jennings, P.E. Bureau Chief
Organization: Comm & Env Neigh Redevelopment
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Scheduling and Advertising First of Two Public Hearings
Designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a Brownfield Area - Sandra P. Jennings, P.E.,
Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the  scheduling and advertising the first of two Public Hearings on
January 20, 2011, at 5:33 p.m., to consider adoption of a Resolution of the Board of County
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a
Brownfield area within Escambia County, for the purpose of economic development and
environmental rehabilitation; authorizing the Community & Environment Deputy Bureau Chief to
notify the Department of Environmental Protection of said designation; and providing for an
effective date.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County has received an Application for Brownfield Site Designation for the property
located at 7220 N. Palafox Street by Robert Slate of Strategic Systems Inc., on behalf of the
Carlisle Development Group, Inc. The Carlisle Group plans to build new affordable housing units
on the site. The project will be consistent with the land use plan by reducing slum and blight, and
increasing the availability of affordable housing. 

As an affordable housing project, the site meets the requirements for State Brownfield
redevelopment incentives. The applicant will not request any local funding but will use the
designation to apply for incentives available through Enterprise Florida.
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Florida Statute requires two advertised public hearings to allow for public comment. All
advertisements to be funded through CRA Admin, Fund 151, Cost Center 220523, Object Code
54901. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Escambia County Legal Office has reviewed and approved the Resolution as to form and legal



Escambia County Legal Office has reviewed and approved the Resolution as to form and legal
sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Florida Statute requires two advertised public hearings to allow for public comment. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A 

Attachments
Resolution_ Map_Legal Descriptions_Map

















    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  1.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Enterprise Agreement with Microsoft Corporation
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Enterprise Agreement with Microsoft Corporation - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning an Enterprise Agreement with Microsoft
Corporation:

A. Approve the Microsoft Enterprise Enrollment, State and Local Amendment, which authorizes
the termination of the current three-year Microsoft Enterprise Agreement (Enrollment Number
8568879), approved by the Board on September 18, 2008, and authorizes a new enrollment,
with an effective date of November 1, 2010;

B. Approve the Enterprise Enrollment (Indirect) State and Local, Microsoft Business Agreement
Number U0275474;

C. Authorize the County to piggyback off the Florida State Contract 252-001-09-1 and award a
Purchase Order, in the amount of $181,086, to SHI as the authorized reseller for Microsoft
Corporation;
 
D. Approve and authorize the County Administrator to execute the Purchase Order, with
not-to-exceed second and third year payments of $200,000; and

E. Authorize the Chairman to execute all documents related to the termination and acceptance
of the Enterprise Agreements with Microsoft Corporation.

[Funding:  Fund 001, General Fund, Cost Center 140101 Information Technology - $181,086]

BACKGROUND:
At the July 17, 2008 Committee of the Whole, the Board directed staff to proceed with a
three-year enterprise agreement with Microsoft in order to alleviate both ongoing and anticipated
issues with the County's email and calendar services.  The enterprise agreement was approved
at the September 18, 2008 BCC Meeting.  

The current Microsoft Enterprise Agreement to purchase device licenses for the Exchange and



Sharepoint products is restricted to one device per user and related server licenses.  This new
agreement entitles the County to utilize the purchased products on unlimited devices for the
identified number of users.  Additionally, this agreement entitles the County to migrate all of our
desktop and laptop computers to Windows 7.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in General Fund 001, Cost Center 140101 Information Technology for the
current fiscal year and will need to be appropriated in each of the next two fiscal years.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney has approved the documents related to the termination and restart of
the Enterprise Agreement as to form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provision of the Code of Ordinances of
Escambia County, Florida, 1999 Chapter 46, Article ll, Division 3, Sections 87-90, Purchases
and Contracts and F. S. 255-20.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Information Technology Division of the Management and Budget Services Bureau will
coordinate efforts on behalf of the County.

Attachments
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement



































    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  2.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #69 - Payment in Lieu of Taxes
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #69 - Payment in Lieu of
Taxes Agreement with Sacred Heart Health System, Inc. - Amy Lovoy, Management & Budget
Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #69, General
Fund (001), in the amount of $5,331,309, to recognize funds received from a Payment in Lieu of
Taxes Agreement with Sacred Heart Health System, Inc., and to appropriate these funds in the
current year's Budget.

BACKGROUND:
On December 9, 2010 the Board approved a Payment in Lieu of Taxes Agreement with Sacred
Heart Health Systems.  This Supplemental Budget Amendment recognizes the $5,331,309 that
will result and appropriates these funds into the General Fund.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This Supplemental Budget Amendment increases the General Fund by $5,331,309

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



Attachments
011SA069



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, the County and Sacred Heart Health Systems have entered into a Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Agreement, and the resulting revenues must be recognized and appropriated in the current year's budget.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

General Fund 1
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Payment in Lieu of Taxes/SHH 1 366xxx $5,331,309

Total $5,331,309

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Aids to Government Agencies 001/110201 58101 5,321,151
Reserves for Operating 001/110201 59805 10,158

Total 5,331,309

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
# 069



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  3.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #070 - TIF Adjustments
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #70 - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #70, CRA
Expendable Trust Fund (151) and the General Fund (001), to recognize a decrease, in the
amount of $9,286, in the General Fund transfer to the Community Redevelopment Agency - Tax
Increment Finance (CRA-TIF) Districts in Escambia County and appropriate this decrease
among the County's Five CRA-TIF Districts. This adjustment reflects the difference in the
amount budgeted for the five County TIF Districts, the City of Pensacola TIF Districts, and the
amount collected from property taxes.

BACKGROUND:
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) provides an avenue to increase property values in what is
considered blighted areas within the County. The County has (5) CRA-TIF Districts they are:
Warrington, Brownsville, Englewood, Palafox, and Barrancas. Each year as property values
increase/decrease so does the dollar amounts that fund the special programs in these districts.
The current year's decrease is due to an adjustment in the final tax roll received from the
Property Appraiser for FY10/11.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This will decrease the CRA Expendable Trust Fund (151) by $9,286.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Increases or decreases in funding must be approved by the Board of County Commissioners.



Increases or decreases in funding must be approved by the Board of County Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
SBA#070- TIF Adjustments



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, the final value certification was received from the Property Appraiser for the Ecambia 
County TIF Areas, and these funds must be recognized and appropriated accordingly.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

CRA Exendable Trust Fund 151
General Fund 1
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Transfers General Fund (001) 151 381001 ($9,286)

Total ($9,286)

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Warrington/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220516 56301 49,492
Brownsville/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220515 56301 (19,156)
Englewood/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220520 56301 (7,058)
Palafox/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220517 56301 (44,774)
Barrancus/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220519 56301 12,210p g ,
Transfers Out (TIF) 001/110215 59115 (9,286)
Reserves for Operating 001/110201 59805 58,053
Tax Increment Financing/ City 001/110201 54910 (48,767)

Warrington/Other Current Charges 151/220516 54901 2,475
Warrington/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220516 56301 (2,475)
Brownsville/Other Current Charges 151/220515 54901 (958)
Brownsville/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220515 56301 958
Englewood/Other Current Charges 151/220520 54901 (353)
Englewood/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220520 56301 353
Palafox/Other Current Charges 151/220517 54901 (2,239)
Palafox/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220517 56301 2,239
Barrancus/Other Current Charges 151/220519 54901 611
Barrancus/Improv. Other than Bldgs. 151/220519 56301 (611)
Total (9,286)

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
# 070



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  4.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #071 - Jones Swamp Tree Harvesting
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #71 - Jones Swamp Tree
Harvesting - Amy Lovoy,Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #71,
Escambia County Restricted Fund (101), in the amount of $17,926, to recognize proceeds from
the sale of surplus timber from tree harvesting and to appropriate these funds to be used for
maintenance costs at the Jones Swamp Wetland Preserve.

BACKGROUND:
On May 7, 2009, the Board of County Commissioners approved the sale of surplus timber from
tree harvesting at the Jones Swamp Wetland Preserve. As part of the Land Management Plan,
the practice of controlling forest establishment, composition, structure, and growth is required.
The funds received from this sale will be used for maintenance such as repairing boardwalks,
maintaining fire lines and routine maintenance. These funds must be recognized and
appropriated.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase Fund 101 by $17,926.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
SBA# 071



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, Escambia County receives proceeds from the sale surplus timber at the Jones Swamp 
Wetland Preserve, and these revenues must be recognized and appropriated

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

Escambia County Restricted Fund 101
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Jones Swamp Wetland Preserve 101 365002 $17,926

Total $17,926

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Other Contractual Services 101/2210xx (new) 53401 $4,000
Rental & Leases 101/2210xx (new) 54401 3,000
Repair & Maintenance Services 101/2210xx (new) 54601 $9,926
Operating Supplies 101/2210xx (new) 55201 1,000

Total $17,926

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
# 071



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  5.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #080 - State Homeland Security Grant
Program Subrecipient Agreement

From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #80 - State Homeland Security
Grant Program Sub-recipient Agreement - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services
Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #80, Other
Grants and Projects Fund (110), in the amount of $69,295, to recognize proceeds from a State
of Florida Homeland Security Grant Program and to appropriate these funds to be used for
continued training for team members and upkeep of equipment for the Urban Search & Rescue
and Hazardous Material Teams.

BACKGROUND:
On November 20, 2008, the Board approved the 2007-2010 State Homeland Security Grant
Program Sub-recipient Agreement for Expenditure of Local Government Unit Funding for
Florida. The grant provides funds for continued training and equipment for the Urban Search &
Rescue and Hazardous Material Teams. This amendment recognizes and appropriates the
funds.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase Fund 110 by $69,295.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Hazmat Grant SBA#080



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, Escambia County was awarded funds by the State of Florida Department of Financial Services
and these revenues must be recognized and appropriated.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

Other Grants and Projects 110
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Homeland Security Hazmat Grant 110 new $69,295

Total $69,295

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Overtime 110/3302xx 51401 $20,000
Travel & Per Diem 110/3302xx 54001 7,600
Operating Supplies 110/3302xx 55201 $34,695
Books, Pubs & Subs 110/3302xx 55401 3,500
Training & Registration 110/3302xx 55501 3,500

Total $69,295

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
#080



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  6.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Amendment #1 - Service of Process
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Amendment #1 to the Contract between the State of Florida and
Escambia County - Amy Lovoy, Management & Budget Services Bureau Chief 

That the Board approve Amendment #1 to the Contract between the State of Florida,
Department of Revenue and Escambia County, increasing the total Contract by $10,000, to
allow additional reimbursement from the State for services of process.  This Amendment will
allow the County to receive an additional $10,000 in reimbursements from the State of Florida.

BACKGROUND:
When the Sheriff's process servers serve child support enforcement orders, the Department of
Revenue reimburses the County up to a certain amount.  This amendment increases the total
reimbursement to $116,090.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will allow the County to receive an additional $10,000 in reimbursements from
the State of Florida.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Approved for form.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



Attachments
Service of Process Amendment





    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  7.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Contract Assignment for Escambia County Sector Plan
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Contract Assignment for Escambia County Sector Plan, PD
06-07.043 - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning Contract PD 06-07.043, Escambia County
Sector Plan:

A.   Authorize the assignment of Contract PD 06-07.043, Escambia County Sector Plan,
originally awarded to MSCW,Inc., to Vanassee Hangen Brustlin, Inc., in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Contract; and

B.   Authorize the Chairman to sign the Assignment of Agreement.
 
[Funding:  Fund 001, General Fund, Cost Center 240206]

BACKGROUND:
By Board action on May 9, 2007, the Board awarded a contract to MSCW Inc. MSCW, Inc.
merged with and is now a wholly owned subsidiary of Vanassee Hangen Brustlin, Inc.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding: Fund 001 General Fund, Cost Center 240206

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Assistant County Attorney, Kristin D. Hual prepared the Assignment of the Agreement
documents.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A



N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Contract Assignment Document











    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  8.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Cantonment Athletic Park Expansion
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Cantonment Athletic Park Expansion - Amy Lovoy, Management
and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board award an Indefinite Quantity, Indefinite Delivery Contract, 
PD 10-11.006, Cantonment Athletic Park Expansion, to Roads, Inc., of NWF, for a total amount
of $492,197.50.  [Funding: Fund 352 LOST III, Cost Center 210802, Object Code 56301, Project
No. 11PR0965]

BACKGROUND:
The Cantonment Athletic Park Expansion Improvements Project consists of the addition of 2
multi-use practice fields to the existing Cantonment Athletic Park complex located in District 5.
The proposed site is currently wooded and almost completely surrounded by wetlands. The
proposed site activities are associated with the FDEP wetland permit #17-0179665-002-DF.
Access to the site will consist of proposed paved entrance road with a culvert structure
consisting of two open bottom culverts and guardrail. The proposed site will consist of the
grassed ballfields with a grass parking area and a concrete handicap parking area. Stormwater
management for the site will consist of grassed swales directing runoff towards a proposed dry
retention stormwater pond.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Fund 352 LOST III, Cost Center210802, Object Code 56301, Project No. 11PR0965

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
County Attorney's Legal Standard Form Contract D will be used.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provision of the Escambia County, FL  Code of



This recommendation is in compliance with the provision of the Escambia County, FL  Code of
Ordinances, 1999 Chapter 46, Article II, Division 3, Sections 87-90, Purchases and Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon receipt of post award compliance documents from the awarded contractor, the Office of
Purchasing shall notify the Public Works Bureau, Parks Division that they may issue a Notice to
Proceed to Roads, Inc. of NWF.

Attachments
Bid Tabulation





    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  9.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Authorize release of three County Liens at 13 Linda Street 
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Release of Three County Liens at 13 Linda Street - Amy
Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action to assist Pensacola Habitat for Humanity, Inc., in the
purchase of real property at 13 Linda Street, Account Number 07-2955-000, Reference Number
35-2S-30-6000-009-004:

A. Authorize release of two Municipal Services Benefit Unit (MSBU) Liens from 1998 and 1999,
recorded in Official Records Book 4316, at Page 1650, and Official Records Book 4451, at Page
1275, respectively, in the total amount of $516.60, and the 2010 Nuisance Abatement Lien, in
the amount of $258.59, recorded in Official Records Book 6557, at Page 1626, of the Public
Records of Escambia County, Florida; and

B. Habitat for Humanity, Inc., will pay for the resolution and recording fees related to these Liens
and will receive approval from the County of the design for any structure to be constructed prior
to the County’s release of Liens. 

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County acquired this property through foreclosure in September 2010.  The Property
Appraiser’s 2010 Certified Roll Assessment value for the property is $17,575.  The County does
not need this property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney’s Office will handle the closing. The purchaser will pay all closing costs.

PERSONNEL:
NA



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
NA

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
NA

Attachments
13 Linda St backup























    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  10.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: State of Florida Division of Emergency Management Federal Fiscal Year 2010
Homeland Security Grant Program Award

From: Mike Weaver
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the State of Florida, Division of Emergency Management, Federal
Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security Grant Program Award - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety
Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the State of Florida, Division of Emergency
Management (FDEM), Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security Grant Program award,
allocating to Escambia County a Grant in the amount of $62,997, for the period of August 1,
2010, through January 31, 2013:

A. Approve the FDEM Award Letter allocating funding that will be identified in Fund 110, Other
Grants and Projects, Cost Center 330459, Domestic Security Grant;

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign the Grant Award Letter; and

C. Authorize the County Administrator to execute the subsequent Grant Agreement.

BACKGROUND:
As Federal Domestic Security Funds filter down to the local governments, Escambia County is
being provided a grant in the amount $62,997 from the Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security
Grant Program to implement various planning, exercise, and training activities in the effort to
improve domestic security preparedness for Escambia County. The grant has no local match
requirement. Funds must be expended by January 31, 2013.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Federal funds are designed as a reimbursement program to the Escambia County Emergency
Management Division for costs associated with eligible domestic security planning, training, and
exercise activities. There is no local match requirement. The funds will be identified in Fund
110, Cost Center 330459.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, has reviewed the award letter and approved it as to form



Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, has reviewed the award letter and approved it as to form
and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
FDEM requires the Board Chairman to sign the Award Letter and Board of County
Commissioners’ policies require grant contracts and signature authorization be approved by it.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
John Dosh, Emergency Management Division Manager, will oversee implementation upon
approval of the Award Letter and subsequent agreement.

Coordination of this grant will be between the FDEM, Escambia County Emergency
Management Division, and any additional organizations or agencies identified in the grant
implementation process.

Attachments
Award Letter













    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  11.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Issuance of a Purchase Order on Contract PD 05-06.048, “Purchase of
Ambulances”

From: Mike Weaver
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Issuance of a Purchase Order on Contract PD 05-06.048,
Purchase of Ambulances – Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the issuance of a Purchase Order to Horton Emergency Vehicles, in
the amount of $609,984, on Contract PD 05-06.048, “Purchase of Ambulances”, for the
purchase of three 2011 Navistar ambulances, Model 603A.  [Funding Source: Fund 352 – LOST
III, Project No. 08PS0028 – Ambulances, Cost Center 330435, Account 56401]

BACKGROUND:
This planned purchase of ambulances is necessary to guarantee deployment of the most
reliable and safest emergency vehicles. The life expectancy of these vehicles will vary
contingent upon mileage, maintenance history, usage conditions, etc., but, ideally, they should
be replaced every three to four years. The aggressive maintenance program for our vehicles
enables Public Safety to achieve the maximum life expectancy of each vehicle in its fleet. This
purchase will allow replacement of three ambulances: Unit 15 (PN #52616) and Unit 17 (PN
#52618), both acquired November 2003, and Unit 18 (PN #53011), acquired May 2004.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding for this purchase was allocated in the FY 2010/2011 budget in Fund 352 (LOST III),
Cost Center 330435.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances of



This recommendation is in compliance with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances of
Escambia County, Florida, Chapter 46, Finance, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This has been coordinated with Purchasing Manager Claudia Simmons. Trisha Pohlmann,
Public Safety Business Operations Manager, will coordinate preparation/implementation of the
necessary documents.



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  12.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: County's Acceptance of Property for Road Rights-of-Way and Drainage
Improvements on Nicholson Drive

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the County's Acceptance of Property for Road Rights-of-Way and
Drainage Improvements on Nicholson Drive - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning acquisition of property by donation for road
rights-of-way and drainage improvements on Nicholson Drive:  

A. Authorize staff to negotiate and resolve any matters related to, or associated with the
acquisition of property by donation for road rights-of-way and Easements, located on or adjacent
to Nicholson Drive, gather information and conduct inspections as needed, to allow the Board’s
acceptance of the real property; 

B. Authorize the payment of documentary stamps because the property is being acquired for
governmental use, which is for road rights-of-way and drainage Easements, and the County
benefits from these acquisitions because they facilitate the installation of road and drainage
improvements, which will result in a more efficient and safer roadway, which will enhance the
quality of life for the citizens of Escambia County; 

C. Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the acquisition of these
properties; which includes, but is not limited to, a title search, documentary stamp tax and
recording of documents; and 

D. Authorize staff to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the Deeds or
Easements as of the day of delivery of the Deeds or Easements to the Chairman or Vice
Chairman, and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to acknowledge the Board’s
acceptance at that time, subject to Legal review and sign-off.  

[Funding Source: Fund 351, LOST II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project #05EN1605,
"Nicholson Drive"] 

BACKGROUND:
Nicholson Drive is a County maintained road of varying width, which extends north off Molino



Nicholson Drive is a County maintained road of varying width, which extends north off Molino
Road for approximately 4,000 feet. The southerly 2,000 feet, which lies between Molino Road
and Bet Raines Road is unpaved. Due to limited right-of-way in some areas and to facilitate a
proposed paving and drainage project for this portion of Nicholson Road, will require the
acquisition, by donation, of additional property for road rights-of-way or easements. Board
approval is required to authorize staff to proceed with the acquisitions, and for the Board’s
acceptance of the acquired rights-of-way and easements.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for incidental expenses associated with these projects are available in Fund 351, LOST
II, Account 210105/56101/ 56301, Project #05EN1605 “Nicholson Drive.”

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Deed and Easement forms to be used in the acquisition process have been previously approved
by the County Attorney’s Office.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
After Board approval to start the acquisition process, County Staff will proceed in compliance
with Section 46-139 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Once Board approval is granted, staff will proceed with the acquisition of required road
rights-of-way and easements associated with this project.

Attachments
Map



ESCAMBIA COUNTY 
PUBLIC WORKS BUREAU 
LWG   08/10/10   DISTRICT  5

DIRT PORTION OF NICHOLSON DRIVE (R/W VARIES)

RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS ON NICHOLSON DRIVE

VICINITY MAP



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  13.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: General Paving, Drainage and Resurfacing Pricing Agreement
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning General Paving, Drainage, and Resurfacing Pricing Agreement
2010 - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the issuance of individual or Blanket Purchase Orders, per PD
07-08.134, "General Paving, Drainage, and Resurfacing Pricing Agreement", in accordance with
Chapter 46 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, to the following list of contractors in
Fiscal Year 2010/2011, to be issued for the Public Works Bureau - Infrastructure/Engineering
Division, not to exceed $2,000,000 in total:

APAC Mid-South, Inc.                                                
Gulf Atlantic Constructors, Inc.                                  
Panhandle Grading and Paving, Inc.
Pensacola Concrete Construction Co.
Roads, Inc., of NWF
Starfish, Inc., of Alabama

[Funding Source:  Fund 001, "General Fund", Account 211106/56301 - Santa Rosa Island
Drainage Improvements]

BACKGROUND:
This solicitation provides for small-scale paving, drainage and resurfacing projects up to
$350,000.00 with no more than the value of a project exceeding 10% in Balance of Line (BOL)
items.  This solicitation meets the intent of Florida Statutes relating to competitive sealed bids of
road paving, drainage and resurfacing while allowing for the expedition of award for such
contracts.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding is available in Fund 001 "General Fund", Account 211106/56301 - Santa Rosa Island
Drainage Improvements.



LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
No legal consideration was required.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel will be required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 46, Article II, Section 46-64 requires Board
approval of contracts of $50,000 or greater.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A.



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  14.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Purchase of Real Property Located at 1664 Eagle Terrace in Brookhollow
Subdivision from Ronald E. and Theresa Maloy Schaefer

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Real Property Located at 1664 Eagle Terrace, in
Brookhollow Subdivision from Ronald E. and Theresa Maloy Schaefer - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.,
Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action regarding the purchase of a parcel of real property
located at 1664 Eagle Terrace, in Brookhollow Subdivision (approximately 0.58 acres) from
Ronald E. and Theresa Maloy Schaefer:

A. Authorize the purchase of a parcel of real property (approximately 0.58 acres) from Ronald E.
Schaefer and Theresa Maloy Schaefer, for the appraised value of $37,000, in accordance with
the terms and conditions contained in the Contract for Sale and Purchase; and

B. Authorize the County Attorney to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute any
documents, subject to Legal review and sign-off, necessary to complete the purchase, without
further action of the Board.

[Funding Source: Fund 351, Lost II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project 10EN0275 and Fund
352, Lost III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455]

BACKGROUND:
Meeting in regular session on September 17, 2009, the Board approved the recommendation
presented to the Committee of the Whole on September 10, 2009, authorizing staff to initiate the
purchase process for a parcel of property located in the Brookhollow Subdivision. This area in
Brookhollow Subdivision at the intersection of Ten Mile Road and Haley Lane and the
intersection of Haley Lane and Eagle Street has a history of stormwater drainage problems. The
acquisition of this property will facilitate design of corrective measures to eliminate the drainage
problems. Ronald E. Schaefer and Theresa Maloy Schaefer own a vacant parcel of property
located at 1664 Eagle Terrace in Brookhollow Subdivision (approximately 0.58 acres) and have
indicated a willingness to sell. Staff had an appraisal performed by Brantley & Associates, dated
December 9, 2009, which placed a value of $37,000 on the property. The property owners have
indicated to staff that they are amendable to this appraised value. Meeting in regular session on
April 22, 2010, the Board authorized staff to make an offer to purchase the Schaefer’s property



for the appraised value of $37,000. Mr. and Mrs. Schaefer have agreed to the offer and the
terms and conditions contained in the Contract for Sale and Purchase. Staff is requesting Board
authorization to proceed with this acquisition.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for this project are available in Fund 351, Lost II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project
10EN0275 and Fund 352, Lost III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Contract for Sale and Purchase was approved as to form and legal sufficiency by Stephen
West, Assistant County Attorney on December 3, 2010. The County Attorney’s Office will
prepare the closing documents and conduct the closing for the purchase of this property.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
These actions are consistent with the provisions of Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of
Ordinances.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval, Staff will maintain compliance with Section 46-139 of the County Codes.

Attachments
Contract for Sale and Purchase
Acquisition Checklist
Board Action 09/17/09
Board Action 04/22/10
Parcel Information
Appraisal
Map
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 
 
 
REGULAR BCC AGENDA – Continued 
 
 12. Committee of the Whole Recommendation(s)
 
  Motion made by Commissioner White, seconded by Commissioner Valentino, and 

carried 4-0, with Commissioner Robertson absent, taking the following action, as 
recommended by the Committee of the Whole (C/W), at the September 10, 2009, C/W 
Workshop: 

 
  A. Approving to direct staff to proceed with researching more data and securing a 

funding source for the shortfall the Board is unable to cover this year for the Beach 
Renourishment Effort (C/W Item 10); 

 
  B. Adopting a policy that the Board will not waive labor fees or any other hard costs 

incurred by the County for use of The Pensacola Civic Center, but will consider 
waiving rental fees/soft costs (C/W Item 14); 

 
  C. Authorizing staff to proceed with pursuing the acquisition, by purchase, of lots in 

Brookhollow Subdivision and negotiate and perform surveys, assessments, and 
appraisals, to facilitate design of corrective measures to eliminate drainage issues in 
the Subdivision (C/W Item 15); 

 
  D. Approving to amend the Agreement to reflect that the 14 days notice for eviction of 

the caretakers at Wedgewood School and Molino School property is subject to 
Board approval (on July 9, 2009, the Board approved retaining caretakers on-site, 
for security purposes, and directed the County Attorney to negotiate Agreements 
[C/W Item 17]); and 

 
  E. Approving that Wayne R. Briske, Commissioner White's appointee, was absent from 

four Planning Board Meetings for reasons beyond Mr. Briske's control (C/W 
Item 18). 
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 

 II. BUDGET/FINANCE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 

 1-29. Approval of Various Consent Agenda Items – Continued 

 24. See Page 29. 

 25. Taking the following action regarding the acquisition of three parcels of real property, 
located in the 1700 Block of Eagle Street, in Brookhollow Subdivision, from The 
Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc., to correct stormwater drainage problems in 
Brookhollow Subdivision, at the intersection of Ten Mile Road and Haley Lane, and at 
the intersection of Haley Lane and Eagle Street (Funding Source:  Fund 351, Local 
Option Sales Tax [LOST] II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project 10EN0275, and 
Fund 352, LOST III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455): 

  A. Authorizing staff to make an offer to The Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc., to 
purchase three parcels of property (totaling approximately 1.08 acres), for the total 
appraised amount of $80,000; and 

  B. Authorizing the County Attorney to prepare, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to 
execute, any documents necessary to complete the acquisition of this property. 

 26. Taking the following action regarding the acquisition of a parcel of real property, located 
at 1664 Eagle Terrace, in Brookhollow Subdivision, from Ronald E. Schaefer and 
Theresa Maloy Schaefer, to correct stormwater drainage problems in Brookhollow 
Subdivision at the intersection of Ten Mile Road and Haley Lane, and at the intersection 
of Haley Lane and Eagle Street (Funding Source:  Fund 351, Local Option Sales 
Tax [LOST] II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project 10EN0275, and Fund 352, 
LOST III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455): 

  A. Authorizing staff to make an offer to Ronald E. Schaefer and Theresa Maloy 
Schaefer to purchase a parcel of property (approximately 0.58 acre), for the 
appraised amount of $37,000; and 

  B. Authorizing the County Attorney to prepare, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to 
execute, documents necessary to complete the acquisition of this property. 

1809
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Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser     Restore Full Page Version

General Information

Reference: 211N303500029001

Account: 110565150

Owners: SCHAEFER RONALD E & 
THERESA MALOY TRUSTEES 

Mail: 3645 MOLAREE DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32503

Situs: 1664 EAGLE TER

Use Code: VACANT RESIDENTIAL  

Taxing 
Authority:

COUNTY MSTU 

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window

Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley, 
Escambia County Tax Collector

2009 Preliminary Roll Assessment

Improvements: $0

Land: $19,000

Total: $19,000

Save Our Homes: $0

 
Disclaimer

Amendment 1 Calculations

Sales Data

Sale 
Date

Book Page Value Type

Official 
Records 

(New 
Window)

08/1999 4453 1150 $100 WD View Instr

05/1999 4419 0745 $100 WD View Instr

10/1987 2467 0198 $56,000 WD View Instr

02/1987 2353 0364 $172,000 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Ernie Lee Magaha, 
Escambia County Clerk of the Court

2009 Preliminary Roll Exemptions

None

Legal Description

LT 29 BLK A BROOKHOLLOW S/D 
PB 10 P 1 OR 2467 P 198 OR 4453 
P 1150

Extra Features

None

Parcel 
Information

View Online Map

 
Section 
Map Id: 
21-1N-30-2 
 
Approx. 
Acreage: 
0.5800 
 
Zoned: 

V-3   
 

     

Page 1 of 2escpaDetail 1664 EAGLE TER

9/9/2009http://www.escpa.org/Detail_a.aspx?s=211N303500029001



  

 
 

 

Buildings

 Images

None

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No 
responsibility or liability is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.
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ESCAMBIA COUNTY         
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

LWG  04/02/10        DISTRICT 5

BROOKHOLLOW S/D  /  SCHAEFER PROPERTY

PARCEL OF PROPERTY OWNED BY RONALD E. & THERESA  MALOY SCHAEFER  

VICINITY MAP



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  15.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Purchase of Real Property Located in the 1700 Block of Eagle Street in
Brookhollow Subdivision from Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc. 

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Purchase of Real Property Located in the 1700 Block of
Eagle Street in Brookhollow Subdivision from Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc. - Joy D.
Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action regarding the purchase of  three parcels of real property
(totaling approximately 1.08 acres) located in the 1700 Block of Eagle Street, in Brookhollow
Subdivision from Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc.: 

A. Authorize the purchase of three parcels of real property (totaling approximately 1.08 acres)
from Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc., for the appraised value of $80,000, in accordance
with the terms and conditions contained in the Contract for Sale and Purchase; and 

B. Authorize the County Attorney to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute any
documents, subject to Legal review and sign-off, necessary to complete the purchase, without
further action of the Board.

[Funding Source:  Fund 351, Lost II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project 10EN0275 and
Fund 352, Lost III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455]

BACKGROUND:
Meeting in regular session on September 17, 2009, the Board approved the recommendation
presented to the Committee of the Whole on September 10, 2009, authorizing staff to initiate the
purchase process for property located in the Brookhollow Subdivision. This area in Brookhollow
Subdivision at the intersection of Ten Mile Road and Haley Lane and the intersection of Haley
Lane and Eagle Street has a history of stormwater drainage problems. The acquisition of these
properties will facilitate design of corrective measures to eliminate the drainage problems.
Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc., owns three vacant parcels of property located in the 1700
Block of Eagle Street in Brookhollow Subdivision (totaling approximately 1.08 acres) and have
indicated a willingness to sell. Staff obtained an appraisal from Brantley & Associates, dated
December 9, 2009, which placed a value of $80,000 for the three parcels. The property owners
have indicated to staff that they are amendable to this appraised value. Meeting in regular
session on April 22, 2010, the Board authorized staff to make an offer to purchase the



Pensacola Bar and Harbor, Inc., property for the appraised value of $80,000. Pensacola Bar and
Harbor, Inc., have agreed to the offer and the terms and conditions contained in the Contract for
Sale and Purchase. Staff is requesting Board authorization to proceed with this acquisition.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for this project are available in Fund 351, Lost II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project
10EN0275 and Fund 352, Lost III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Contract for Sale and Purchase was approved as to form and legal sufficiency by Stephen
West, Assistant County Attorney on December 3, 2010. The County Attorney’s Office will
prepare the closing documents and conduct the closing for the purchase of this property.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
These actions are consistent with the provisions of Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of
Ordinances.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval, Staff will maintain compliance with Section 46-139 of the County Codes.

Attachments
Contract for Sale and Purchase
Acquisition Checklist
Board Action 09/17/09
Board Action 04/22/10
Parcel Information; Parcel 1
Parcel Information; Parcel 2
Parcel Information; Parcel 3
Appraisal
Map
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 
 
 
REGULAR BCC AGENDA – Continued 
 
 12. Committee of the Whole Recommendation(s)
 
  Motion made by Commissioner White, seconded by Commissioner Valentino, and 

carried 4-0, with Commissioner Robertson absent, taking the following action, as 
recommended by the Committee of the Whole (C/W), at the September 10, 2009, C/W 
Workshop: 

 
  A. Approving to direct staff to proceed with researching more data and securing a 

funding source for the shortfall the Board is unable to cover this year for the Beach 
Renourishment Effort (C/W Item 10); 

 
  B. Adopting a policy that the Board will not waive labor fees or any other hard costs 

incurred by the County for use of The Pensacola Civic Center, but will consider 
waiving rental fees/soft costs (C/W Item 14); 

 
  C. Authorizing staff to proceed with pursuing the acquisition, by purchase, of lots in 

Brookhollow Subdivision and negotiate and perform surveys, assessments, and 
appraisals, to facilitate design of corrective measures to eliminate drainage issues in 
the Subdivision (C/W Item 15); 

 
  D. Approving to amend the Agreement to reflect that the 14 days notice for eviction of 

the caretakers at Wedgewood School and Molino School property is subject to 
Board approval (on July 9, 2009, the Board approved retaining caretakers on-site, 
for security purposes, and directed the County Attorney to negotiate Agreements 
[C/W Item 17]); and 

 
  E. Approving that Wayne R. Briske, Commissioner White's appointee, was absent from 

four Planning Board Meetings for reasons beyond Mr. Briske's control (C/W 
Item 18). 
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 

 II. BUDGET/FINANCE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 

 1-29. Approval of Various Consent Agenda Items – Continued 

 24. See Page 29. 

 25. Taking the following action regarding the acquisition of three parcels of real property, 
located in the 1700 Block of Eagle Street, in Brookhollow Subdivision, from The 
Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc., to correct stormwater drainage problems in 
Brookhollow Subdivision, at the intersection of Ten Mile Road and Haley Lane, and at 
the intersection of Haley Lane and Eagle Street (Funding Source:  Fund 351, Local 
Option Sales Tax [LOST] II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project 10EN0275, and 
Fund 352, LOST III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455): 

  A. Authorizing staff to make an offer to The Pensacola Bar and Harbor Pilots, Inc., to 
purchase three parcels of property (totaling approximately 1.08 acres), for the total 
appraised amount of $80,000; and 

  B. Authorizing the County Attorney to prepare, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to 
execute, any documents necessary to complete the acquisition of this property. 

 26. Taking the following action regarding the acquisition of a parcel of real property, located 
at 1664 Eagle Terrace, in Brookhollow Subdivision, from Ronald E. Schaefer and 
Theresa Maloy Schaefer, to correct stormwater drainage problems in Brookhollow 
Subdivision at the intersection of Ten Mile Road and Haley Lane, and at the intersection 
of Haley Lane and Eagle Street (Funding Source:  Fund 351, Local Option Sales 
Tax [LOST] II, Account 210105/56101/56301, Project 10EN0275, and Fund 352, 
LOST III, Account 210107/56101/56301, Project 10EN0455): 

  A. Authorizing staff to make an offer to Ronald E. Schaefer and Theresa Maloy 
Schaefer to purchase a parcel of property (approximately 0.58 acre), for the 
appraised amount of $37,000; and 

  B. Authorizing the County Attorney to prepare, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to 
execute, documents necessary to complete the acquisition of this property. 
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Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser     Restore Full Page Version

General Information

Reference: 211N303500005002

Account: 110565320

Owners: PENSACOLA BAR & HARBOR 
PILOTS INC PENSION & PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN 

Mail: 3645 MOLAREE DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32503

Situs: 1718 W TEN MILE RD

Use Code: VACANT RESIDENTIAL  

Taxing 
Authority:

COUNTY MSTU 

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window

Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley, 
Escambia County Tax Collector

2009 Preliminary Roll Assessment

Improvements: $0

Land: $19,000

Total: $19,000

Save Our Homes: $0

 
Disclaimer

Amendment 1 Calculations

Sales Data

Sale 
Date

Book Page Value Type

Official 
Records 

(New 
Window)

08/1987 2445 0305 $200,000 WD View Instr

02/1987 2353 0364 $172,000 WD View Instr

09/1986 2277 0977 $136,300 WD View Instr

10/1981 1583 0322 $138,800 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Ernie Lee Magaha, 
Escambia County Clerk of the Court

2009 Preliminary Roll Exemptions

None

Legal Description

LT 5 BLK B BROOKHOLLOW S/D PB 
10 P 1 OR 2445 P 305

Extra Features

None

Parcel 
Information

View Online Map

 
Section 
Map Id: 
21-1N-30-2 
 
Approx. 
Acreage: 
0.3500 
 
Zoned: 

V-3   
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Buildings

 Images

None

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No 
responsibility or liability is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.
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Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser     Restore Full Page Version

General Information

Reference: 211N303500006002

Account: 110565325

Owners: PENSACOLA BAR & HARBOR 
PILOTS INC PENSION & PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN 

Mail: 3645 MOLAREE DR 
PENSACOLA, FL 32503

Situs: 1700 W 10 MILE RD BLK

Use Code: VACANT RESIDENTIAL  

Taxing 
Authority:

COUNTY MSTU 

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window

Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley, 
Escambia County Tax Collector

2009 Preliminary Roll Assessment

Improvements: $0

Land: $19,000

Total: $19,000

Save Our Homes: $0

 
Disclaimer

Amendment 1 Calculations

Sales Data

Sale 
Date

Book Page Value Type

Official 
Records 

(New 
Window)

08/1987 2445 0305 $200,000 WD View Instr

02/1987 2353 0364 $172,000 WD View Instr

09/1986 2277 0977 $136,300 WD View Instr

10/1981 1583 0322 $138,800 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Ernie Lee Magaha, 
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2009 Preliminary Roll Exemptions

None

Legal Description
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The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No 
responsibility or liability is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.
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Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser     Restore Full Page Version

General Information

Reference: 211N303500007002

Account: 110565330

Owners: PENSACOLA BAR & HARBOR 
PILOTS INC PENSION & PROFIT 
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PENSACOLA, FL 32503
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Taxing 
Authority:

COUNTY MSTU 

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window

Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley, 
Escambia County Tax Collector

2009 Preliminary Roll Assessment

Improvements: $0

Land: $19,000

Total: $19,000

Save Our Homes: $0

 
Disclaimer

Amendment 1 Calculations

Sales Data

Sale 
Date

Book Page Value Type

Official 
Records 

(New 
Window)

08/1987 2445 0305 $200,000 WD View Instr

02/1987 2353 0364 $172,000 WD View Instr

09/1986 2277 0977 $136,300 WD View Instr

10/1981 1583 0322 $138,800 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Ernie Lee Magaha, 
Escambia County Clerk of the Court

2009 Preliminary Roll Exemptions

None

Legal Description

LT 7 BLK B BROOKHOLLOW S/D PB 
10 P 1 OR 2445 P 305

Extra Features

None

Parcel 
Information

View Online Map

 
Section 
Map Id: 
21-1N-30-2 
 
Approx. 
Acreage: 
0.3600 
 
Zoned: 

V-3   
 

     

Page 1 of 2escpaDetail 1700 EAGLE ST BLK

9/9/2009http://www.escpa.org/Detail_a.aspx?s=211N303500007002



  

 
 

 

Buildings

 Images

None

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No 
responsibility or liability is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.

Page 2 of 2escpaDetail 1700 EAGLE ST BLK

9/9/2009http://www.escpa.org/Detail_a.aspx?s=211N303500007002











ESCAMBIA COUNTY         
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

LWG  04/02/10        DISTRICT 5

12

3

BROOKHOLLOW S/D  / PENSACOLA BAR AND HARBOR PILOTS, INC. PROPERTY

THREE PARCELS OWNED BY PENSACOLA BAR AND HARBOR PILOTS, INC.

VICINITY MAP



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  16.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Approve LAP Agreement for the Construction of Paved Shoulders on 2nd Street
between Interbay Avenue and Barrancas Avenue

From: Larry Newsom
Organization: Transportation & Traffic
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning a Local Agency Program Agreement with the State of Florida
Department of Transportation, for Funding (not to exceed $550,000), for Construction of Paved
Shoulders on 2nd Street between Interbay Avenue and Barrancas Avenue (SR-292) - Larry M.
Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning a Local Agency Program Agreement with
the State of Florida Department of Transportation, for funding (not to exceed $550,000), for
construction of paved shoulders on 2nd Street between Interbay Avenue and Barrancas Avenue
(SR-292):

A. Approve the State of Florida Department of Transportation, Local Agency Program (LAP)
Agreement, between the State of Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and Escambia
County, for a design of paved shoulders on 2nd Street, between Interbay Ave and Barrancas
Avenue (SR-292); 

B. Adopt the Resolution authorizing the execution of the LAP Agreement; and

C. Authorize the Chairman to sign the LAP Agreement and Resolution for this project.

[Funding:  The reimbursement from FDOT to the County will take place over a three-year
period.  This is due to the box funding being allocated as such:  current Fiscal Year $125,000;
FY 2011-12 $125,000; FY 2012-13 $300,000]

BACKGROUND:
This project is listed on the Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning Organization’s
bicycle/pedestrian priority list. The boxed funding for bike/ped projects has become available to
begin implementing projects on the priority list. The submittals must include a resolution
supporting the project adopted, in conjunction with the approval to submit.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



BUDGETARY IMPACT:
A supplemental budget amendment will be prepared by the Office of Management and Budget
to recognize the funding for the LAP Agreement. The reimbursement from FDOT to the county
will take place over a three year period. This is due to the box funding being allocated as such:
current fiscal year $125,000; FY 2011-12 $125,000; FY 2012-13 $300,000.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, reviewed and approved the Resolution and the LAP
Agreement as to form and legal sufficiency on December 15, 2010.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The FDOT will issue a Notice to Proceed after execution of the Agreement. Escambia County
will advertise a RLI after agreement execution. Transportation & Traffic Operations staff will
continue to coordinate this project with Keith Shores, FDOT and the Purchasing Department for
procurement of construction contract.

Attachments
2nd St LAP Resolution
2nd Street LAP Agreement
2nd St Map
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    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  17.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Approval of a Railroad Reimbursement Agreement for the Arthur Brown Road at
Alabama Gulf Coast Railroad

From: Larry M. Newsom
Organization: Transportation & Traffic
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning a Railroad Reimbursement Agreement to Improve the Alabama
Gulf Coast Railway, LLC, Railroad Crossing Controls Located on Arthur Brown Road - Larry M.
Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning a Railroad Reimbursement Agreement to
improve the Alabama Gulf Coast Railway, LLC, (A&GCR) railroad crossing controls located on
Arthur Brown Road:

A. Adopt the Resolution that authorizes the County to enter into the Agreement with the State of
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and A&GCR;

B. Approve the Railroad Reimbursement Agreement between the State of Florida Department of
Transportation, Alabama Gulf Coast Railway, LLC, and Escambia County, Florida, that specifies
FDOT will fund the $250,000, estimated cost to improve the railroad crossing controls on Arthur
Brown Road, at the A&GCR crossing, in the Walnut Hill area, and further specifies A&GCR and
the County will equally share the $3,146, annual maintenance cost for the crossing controls;
and 

C. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Resolution and the Agreement.

[Funding: Fund 175, Transportation Trust Fund, Account 270201/54601]

BACKGROUND:
This is a standard agreement FDOT uses for all railroad crossing controls on county roads to
document the responsibilities for the railroad company, County and FDOT. This railroad crossing
currently has crossbuck warning signs. The improvements will replace the warning signs and
also add flashing lights and crossing gates to prohibit vehicles entering the crossing when
activated by trains.



BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The railroad crossing control improvements included in the agreement will cost $3,146 annually
for required maintenance and adjustment by A&GCR. The County portion of this cost is $1,573
per year, which was included in the current Transportation Bureau budget request for
maintenance and repair for FY 10/11.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Agreement and Resolution has been reviewed and approved by legal to form and legal
sufficiency on November 30, 2010.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
FDOT is coordinating execution of the Agreement and will coordinate with A&GCR on
construction of the improvements.

Attachments
RR Resolution
Arthur Brown RR Agreement



RESOLUTION NUMBER R2011-

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

SUPPORTING A RAILROAD REIMBURSEMENT

AGREEMENT FROM THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION FOR THE INSTALLATION OF

GRADE CROSSING TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND

FUTURE MAINTENANCE AND ADJUSTMENT OF SAID

DEVICES (FPID 42750915701); AUTHORIZING THE

CHAIRMAN TO SIGN THE AGREEMENT; PROVIDING

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of transportation is

constructing, reconstructing or otherwise changing a portion of the Public Road

System on Arthur Brown Road, which shall call for the installation and

maintenance of railroad grade crossing traffic control devices for railroad grade

crossing over or near said highway; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Board of County Commissioners finds the above stated

recitals to be true and correct and incorporates them herein by reference.

SECTION 2. That the Board hereby supports the proposed Project.

SECTION 3. That the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the Railroad

Reimbursement Agreement with the State of Florida Department of

Transportation and the Alabama Gulf Coast Railway, LLC (Company) for the

installation and maintenance of certain grade crossing traffic control devices

designated as Financial Project Number 42750915701 on Arthur Brown Road,

which crosses the right of way and tracks of said Company at FDOT/AAR

Crossing No. 663206F located near Walnut Hill, Florida.

SECTION 4. That the Chairman of the Escambia County Board of County

Commissioners is authorized to execute such Agreements on behalf of Escambia

County.

SECTION 5. That the County shall assume certain costs for future maintenance

and adjustment of said grade crossing control devices as set forth in the subject

Railroad Reimbursement Agreement.



SECTION 6. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by
the Board of County Commissioners.

ADOPTED this day of ^2011.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Kevin W. White, Chairman

ATTEST: ERNIE LEE MAGAHA

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Deputy Clerk

(SEAL)

This document approved as to fc

and legal^ufficjeacy.

By.

Title:

Date: J20M.
T



















    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  18.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: BBYSA, Inc. Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Mini-Grant Agreement
From: Sandra P. Jennings, PE
Organization: Comm & Env Neigh Redevelopment
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Brent Park Beautification & Restoration 2010 Project - Sandra P.
Jennings, P.E., Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) funded Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Mini-Grant Agreement with BBYSA, Inc.:

A. Approve the Agreement and award a Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Grant, in the
maximum amount of $500, for the Brent Park Beautification and Restoration 2010 Project,
sponsored by BBYSA, Inc., located in the Palafox Community Redevelopment Area; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Agreement and all related
documents as required to implement the project.

[Funding: Fund 129/2009 CDBG, Cost Center 220410]

BACKGROUND:
The Escambia Consortium 2009 Annual Plan approved by the Board on July 23, 2009, included
a CDBG allocation for Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Projects targeting the County’s
designated Community Redevelopment Areas (Englewood, Brownsville, Warrington, Barrancas,
and Palafox). The Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Grant, implemented through the
Neighborhood Redevelopment Branch of the Community & Environment Bureau, provides
grants of up to $5,000 from CDBG resources to encourage community and volunteer based
redevelopment efforts. 

The proposal submitted by BBYSA, Inc. (Association), targeting improvements in the Palafox
Redevelopment Area, has been reviewed by staff of the Community Redevelopment Agency
(CRA) and Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc. (NEFI). The Grant will assist the
Association with improvements to the Brent Baseball Park by helping fund needed signage. A
copy of the Agreement with the Association, which includes their original application, is attached
as Exhibit I. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



The funds for this project are budgeted in Fund 129/2009 CDBG, Cost Center 220410.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Agreement has been reviewed and approved by Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
N/A.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
An Agreement mutually approved and executed between the County and the project sponsor is
required to provide for implementation of the project.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation oversight will be provided by NEFI and the CRA, in consultation with the
Association.

Attachments
BBYSA CDBG MG2010
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NEIGHBORHOOD RENEWAL INITIATIVE MINI-GRANT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT,  made  and  entered  into  this  6th  day of  January  , 2011, by  
and between ESCAMBIA COUNTY,  P. O. Box 1591,  Pensacola,  Florida  32597   (the 
 "County")  and   BBYSA, INC.,  4711 North W Street, Pensacola,  Florida  32505 (the 
"Grantee") for the specific benefit of the Brent Park Beautification & Restoration 
2010 Project (the Project”).  
  
   
  P R O V I S I O N S   
 
A.          The County has established the Escambia Neighborhood Renewal Initiative 
(the "Program") to provide grants to qualified organizations to complete specified 
projects within the boundaries of the County’s designated Community Redevelopment 
Areas, which program and projects constitute a public purpose; and 
 
B. All grant monies, under this Program, shall be expended solely for the 
construction and completion of the specified project (the “Project”), and shall be 
expended in accordance with provisions of the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program Regulations at 24 CFR Part 570 and laws and regulations related 
thereto; and  
 
C.         The Program is conditioned upon satisfactory completion of the Project as 
outlined below. In consideration of the mutual covenants described herein, and other 
good and valuable consideration, which the parties hereby determine to be sufficient, 
the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Above Provisions: The above provisions are hereby incorporated into this 
Agreement. 

 
2.        Neighborhood Renewal Grant: County hereby awards Grantee a Program 

grant in the maximum amount of $ 500.00 for the project described in 
EXHIBIT I of this Agreement.  

            
3.        Conditions: The documentation of performance, supervision, and/or 

receipt of goods as specified in the Project as described in EXHIBIT I. 
 

4.        Project:  Grantee  agrees  to  perform,  or  supervise the  work   performed 
 as  a  part  of the  Project. Included as a part of the project is the 
guarantee for continued operation and/or maintenance of the project by 
the grantee. The parties hereto agree that the Project shall be defined as 
that described in EXHIBIT I. The work activities may not commence until 
the Grantee has been advised that the Project can proceed by the County. 
  

                
5.       Term: The work activities to be performed by the Grantee, as part of the  

Project, must be initiated on or before the  10th day of January, 2011, 
and all Project  activities  shall be fully complete on or  before  the  6th day 

Merideth
Text Box
      EXHIBIT Ifor copying only
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 of July, 2011.  Should an extension become necessary, Grantee shall 
submit a  written  request  to  the  County for such an extension at  least  
thirty (30)  days  prior  to  the termination  date cited  above.  The County's 
agreement to grant an extension shall not constitute a waiver of any of the 
other terms of the Agreement 

 
6.       Applicable Laws:  The Grantee must comply with all applicable  

ordinances and codes, and shall, at their own expense, secure and pay  for 
all permits and  be  responsible for all other fees or charges associated with 
the  performance  of  the Project or any  other  activities  under this 
Agreement. 

 
7.      Indemnification:  The Grantee   shall   indemnify   and hold   harmless the 

County,   and its agent, Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc. (NEFI),  
including its elected officials, board members,   agents   and employees, from 
and  against  all  claims,  damages,  losses,  and  expenses, including but not 
limited to, attorney's fees and costs,  arising out  of or resulting from the 
carrying  out  of  this  Agreement,  and out of any work activities performed 
under this Agreement, or constituting a breach of any  term  of this  
Agreement. Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement is attached as 
EXHIBIT II. 

 
8.     Termination:  The County shall have the right to terminate this      

Agreement for any breach of any term of this Agreement.  A breach shall 
include,  but  not  be  limited  to, failure to  begin work and  progress along 
the  schedule in the  time and  manner  specified in  paragraphs  4 and 5;  
failure to provide  equipment or materials adequate to perform the project; 
 or failure  to complete the  project by the designated dates.   

 
If a Project is terminated, and that project is located on public property or 
right-of-way, the County reserves the right to remove or require the grantee 
to remove any or all portions of the Project.  If a Project is terminated, and 
that Project is located on public property or right-of-way, the County reserves 
the right to claim as its own and use as it deems fit any improvements or 
materials remaining on the Project site.  If a Project is terminated, and that 
Project is located on private property, the Grantee shall be solely responsible 
for removing or completing the Project in consultation with the owner of said 
property.  

 
 9.      Notice of Termination: Upon the County's determination that Grantee has  

breached  any term of this Agreement, the County or its agent  will  provide 
Grantee  written  notice  by  certified mail of said breach, and provide, in the 
written notice, the corrective  action  that Grantee  must take. If Grantee does 
not take the above described corrective action within fifteen (15) days of 
Grantee's receipt of the written notice, this Agreement shall terminate without 
further notice. The corrective action must be acceptable to the County or its 
agent in order to avoid termination. 
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 10.      Subsequent to Termination: County shall provide Grantee a certified letter 
confirming termination of the Agreement.  Within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
the termination letter, the County may require the Grantee to submit a 
cashier's check to the County for the total amount of funds disbursed under 
this Agreement.  The decision to demand repayment in such instance shall 
rest solely with the County and/or the U. S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development.  

 
11.      Neighborhood Associations as Independent Contractors: It is agreed  

between the parties that  the  Grantee  is  an  independent  contractor  
and  is  not an   employee  or  agent  of the County, or its agent, 
Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc. Evidence of current corporate 
status is included in EXHIBIT IV. 

 
 12.  Inspectors: The Escambia County Community & Environment Bureau, 

Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc., or other County officials, as may 
be duly authorized by the County, reserve the right to place inspectors at the 
work site or at the place of shipment or delivery of materials under this 
Agreement, or at the factory, or in the neighborhood, in order to confirm the 
legitimacy of monies expended under this Agreement.  The County does not 
assume any liability for the quality of work performed or injuries incurred, in 
any manner, during the performance of the work described herein.  Further, 
the County or its agent does not act in a supervisory capacity in the carrying 
out of this Project.  

 
 13.    Monthly Reports: Monthly project reports must be submitted to the 

Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc. on or before the 1st calendar day 
of each month during construction of the project, excluding the month the 
project is initiated.  Revenue and expenditure documentation shall be 
provided for all sources and uses of funds described in this Agreement. 
Original receipts and/or invoices are required for payment/reimbursement by 
the County.  County, and its agent, NEFI, will not remit any drawdown on the 
grant without satisfactory supporting documentation, which decision will be 
made in the sole discretion of the County and its agent.  

 
14.      Payment Process.  The County prefers to provide direct payments to the 

vendor for pre-approved, eligible project costs under the mini-grant 
program. However, upon written request by the Grantee, the County will 
agree to provide direct payments to the Grantee for pre-approved 
eligible Project costs that are incurred in carrying out the Project 
activities as authorized hereunder.  The Grantee must select either the 
reimbursement or direct payment option prior to initiating any Project 
expenditures that are to be reimbursed or paid from Grant funds 
provided through this Agreement.  The Grantee accepts sole 
responsibility for ensuring that all Project expenses are reviewed and 
pre-approved by the County, through its agent, NEFI, prior to authorizing 
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delivery of the goods, services or equipment.   Failure to obtain such 
authorization shall release the County from any obligation to pay for 
unauthorized goods, services or equipment, and the liability for payment 
in such instances shall be the responsibility of the Grantee.   If 
applicable, direct vendor payments shall be processed through the 
County Office of Purchasing, and shall conform to County requirements 
as stipulated in the County’s Purchasing Ordinance. For all Grant related 
purchases or reimbursements, Grantee shall be required to provide the 
County with three written price quotes for each item to be purchased. In 
the event the Grantee elects to be reimbursed for Project related 
expenses, the Grantee shall provide the County with the names and 
signatures of persons authorized to purchase merchandise for the 
Project.  Reimbursements will be paid to these approved individuals 
ONLY, and shall be paid only after the Grantee submits vendor invoices, 
proof of payment, and other documentation as may be required by the    
County.  Grantee and County agree that the final determination 
regarding the acceptability of supporting documentation shall rest with 
the Clerk of the Circuit/Finance Division. 

 
15.     Maintenance of Records. Grantee shall maintain written records and 

accounts that document all expenditures related to this Project.  Such 
records and accounts shall be maintained for a minimum period of three (3) 
years from the date of final completion of the project, or until final resolution 
of matters involving any questioned costs, audit concerns, or related 
matters. The County, NEFI, the Clerk of the Circuit Court/Finance Division, 
or the U.  S. Department of Housing and Urban  Development  shall  have  
the  right to review  any and all records or any other  records pertaining  to  
this  Agreement,  at any time.  The Grantee acknowledges that this 
Agreement and any related financial records, audits, reports, plans, 
correspondence, and other documents may be subject to disclosure to 
members of the public pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, as 
amended.  In the event the Grantee fails to abide by the provisions of 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the County may, without prejudice to any 
right or remedy and after giving the Grantee and its surety, if any, seven (7) 
days written notice, during which period the Grantee still fails to allow 
access to such documents, terminate the employment of the Grantee.  In 
such case, the Grantee shall not be entitled to receive any further payment 
or benefit associated with this Agreement.  Reasonable terminal expenses 
incurred by the County may be deducted from any payments left owing the 
Grantee (excluding monies owed the Grantee for subcontractor work). 
 

16.     Audit: The County, NEFI, the Clerk of the Circuit Court/Finance Division, 
or the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development maintain 
the right to review and audit any and all financial records or any other 
records pertaining to this Agreement, at any time. 

 
17.     Utilization of Project Funds by Grantee.  In the event the Grantee fails to 

utilize the  Grant funds  provided  through this  Agreement  within  the  
contract  period and/or  in  accordance with the terms and conditions 
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hereunder, the County  shall  be  under no obligation to reserve or 
otherwise set-aside the remaining funds  for future use by the Grantee.  

  
18.    Equipment: Should the Grantee organization be dissolved before the 

Project is completed, or should any equipment purchased or received as 
part of the Project not be used in accordance with the Grant Agreement, 
the equipment purchased through the Grant will become the property of 
the County.  Further, Grantee shall inventory any equipment purchased 
through this Agreement and report the location, condition, and use of 
said equipment to the County, or its agent, NEFI, at least annually for the 
usable life of the equipment.  For equipment purchases under this 
Agreement, unless defined elsewhere, “usable life” shall be defined as 
two (2) years from the date of delivery of the equipment to the Grantee.  

 
19.    Amendments.   The County, or its agent, NEFI, shall have the authority 

to draft amendments to this Agreement.  Any such amendment must be 
mutually agreed upon by both parties in writing and will require the 
County Administrator’s approval before it becomes effective. 

 
 20.   Notices. Any notices to the Grantee, under this Agreement, shall be  

mailed to: Neighborhood  Renewal  Initiative Program,  NEFI,  P.O. Box 
18178,  Pensacola,  Florida 32523.    Any notices shall be sent by 
certified mail. 

 
 21.    No Discrimination.  All  activities  provided  hereunder shall be  

performed  and executed  in  a non-discriminatory manner in keeping 
with  the provisions of the Civil Rights  Act  of  1964 and  1968,  as 
amended. Services and   access hereto shall be available without regard 
to race, creed, color, handicap, familial status, disability, religion, or 
national origin.  The Grantee accepts sole responsibility for ensuring 
such non-discriminatory access to the services provided hereunder.   

 
 22.     Federal Requirements: Grantee and County agree to comply fully with 

governing Community Development Block Grant regulations found at 24 
CFR Part 570 and other related provisions cited therein and as 
stipulated in EXHIBIT III of this Agreement. 

 
23.     Control of Assets:  All purchases   under   this Agreement   that are paid 

with Federal funds shall be made by the County following the proper 
request and documentation by the Grantee.  No assets with a value in 
excess of $25,000 will be procured under this agreement.   Items to be 
purchased will generally have a per unit value of less than $500 and will 
have a usable maximum life of two (2) years.  

 
24.     Entire Agreement: This Agreement incorporates the entire Agreement, 

including any attached Exhibits or Amendments, between the parties 
hereto and no statements, representations, or terms, not included within 
the written terms of this Agreement, can be considered a part of this 
Agreement 
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25.      Waiver: This Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any applicable 

Codes or regulations, or requirements.  All applicable Codes and 
regulations remain in force. 

 
26.      This Agreement is executed in the City of Pensacola, Escambia 

County, State of Florida, and shall be construed under the laws of the 
State of Florida,  and the parties  agree that  any  action  relating  to  
this Agreement shall be instituted and prosecuted in the courts of  the 
County of  Escambia,  State of Florida, and  each party waives the right 
to change of venue. Further, it is mutually understood and agreed that 
this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, 
both as to interpretation and performance. 

 
27.      It is understood  and agreed by the parties that if any part, term, or 

provision  of this Agreement is  held by  the  courts to be illegal or in 
conflict  with any law  of the state where made,  the validity of the 
remaining  portions or  provisions  shall not be affected, and the rights 
and  obligations  of  the parties  shall  be construed and enforced as if 
the Agreement did not contain the particular part, term,  or provision 
held to be invalid. 

 
 28.    The clause headings appearing in this Agreement have been inserted 

for the purpose of convenience and for ready reference.  They do not 
purport to,  and  shall not be deeded to define, limit  or  extend  the 
scope or  intent  of  the  clauses  to which they appertain. 

 
29.     If any date  herein  set  forth  for  the  performance   of  any  

obligations, or  the delivery of any instrument, or for the giving of  any 
notice  by the parties  such as herein provided, shall be on  Saturday,  
Sunday, or legal holiday such compliance shall be deemed acceptable 
on the  next business  day  following  such  Saturday, Sunday,  or legal 
holiday.  All notices under this contract shall be in writing,  and shall be 
sent by certified mail  to  the  parties  at  the  respected  addresses  
stated  below. 

 
30.      Each individual executing this Agreement  on behalf  of a  corporate  or 

governmental party represents and warrants that he is  duly  authorized 
 to  execute  and deliver  this Agreement on behalf of said party,  in 
accordance with duly adopted action or authority of  the  governing  
Board  of  said  party  in  accordance  with applicable law, and  that this 
Agreement is binding upon said party in accordance with its terms. 

 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 
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BBYSA, INC., as sponsor of the Brent 
Park Beautification & Restoriation Project 
in the Palafox Community 
Redevelopment Area  

 
 
                                                                      By:_________________________________   

          Sam Ward,  President 
 

 
 

WITNESSED:                                                                                      
 
1. ________________________ 
 
________________________ 
Print Name 
 
2. ________________________ 
 
________________________ 
Print Name 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me  this _____ day of ________, 
2010, by Sam Ward, President, BBYSA, Inc. as sponsor of the Pony League Batting 
Cages Project, which will serve the Palafox Redevelopment Area, who did not take 
an oath and who: 
___ is/are personally known to me. 
___ produced current Florida driver's license as identification. 
___ produced current ______________________________ as identification. 

                                                                                       
 
 
                                                                                _________________________ 
                                                                                Signature of Notary Public  
 
 
   (Notary Seal must be affixed)            ________________________ 
                                                                                Name of Notary Printed                                       
                            
                                                                                My Commission Expires: ________ 
                                                                         
                                                                                Commission Number: ________
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NEIGHBORHOOD RENEWAL INITIATIVE MINI-GRANT 
PROJECT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  

 
 

 
 
THE PROJECT DESCRIBED IN THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN PRESENTED OR 
PROVIDED TO REPRESENTATIVES OF BBYSA, INC.   THE PROPOSAL IS IN 
KEEPING WITH THE NEEDS AND PRIORITIES OF THE COMMITTEE IN 
PROVIDING ENHANCED SERVICES FOR RESIDENTS OF THE PALAFOX 
COMMUNITY.    
 
EXECUTION OF THIS CERTIFICATION BY A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE BBYSA, 
INC. ACKNOWLEDGES THE COMMITTEE’S GENERAL FAMILIARITY WITH THE 
PROJECT AND THE PROJECT’S BENEFIT TO THE COMMUNITY. 
 
 
 
 
 
                          ACKNOWLEDGED BY:__________________________________ 
        BBYSA, INC. 
 
 
 
                                                        Date:________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
 10

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT   I  
 
 

Project Application and Budget 
 

       
 
   

 
SPONSORING AGENCY: BBYSA, INC. 

 
 
    PROJECT: Brent Park Beautification & Restoration Project 
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EXHIBIT B 
 
 
Minutes of the BBYSA INC Ball Park Board Meeting,  Oct 24th, 2010 
 
Call to Order: President Sam Ward called the meeting to order at 6:39 pm. 
The meeting was held at the Ballpark. 
Recognition of Guests: N/A 
Roll Call: Baseball Director Blaine Card announced (6) Board Members and (0) 
guests present. 
Blaine Card, CJ Byrd, Jayne Card, Kris Toohey, Trudy Valance, Jarvaris 
Lanier  
 
Minutes: N/A – Previous minutes from September 5th were not available for 
review/adoption. 
 
Treasurer’s Report:  The Balance in the General Fund Account at $1715.40. 
 
Fundraising: Blaine asked Adam if he had heard anything about money making 
ideas.  
CJ advised that he had talked with a skating rink to do an all night skate 
for 50% of the profit. vote on issue (6) YES (0) NO there was also a idea by 
Blaine to check on opening a ebay store to sell used items donated by teams 
for profit. 
 
Further discussions were held on adding a markee sign to the park let 
players know about signing up, games, events etc. We are open for a county 
grant to enhance the park for $500.00 to pay for the sign. 
 
If it doesn’t pay for all of it the balance can be paid from the $5000.00 
check we get from Lamars signs in January. VOTE: (6) Yes  NO (0) Also moving 
the coke machines and cleaning up the concessions stands should be started 
on in December to be ready for our season practices. 
Everyone agreed to that the idea for the patio was a good one. We will ask 
for help from parents ect. 
CJ or Sam  to talk with Mike Rhodes and ask when the lights can go up as 
well as the electric finished. 
 
Jayne to call Coke about fence banners for sign ups 
 
Park Website: Jayne will work on the website and get it updated before next 
registration for spring 2011 or earlier. 
 
Announcements: 
- The next work days would be held on December 11th 8:00 till 12:00 pm. 
-Next Board Meeting will be held on 12/11/2010 1:00 at the park. 
Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 7:35 P.M. 
(*Submitted by Blaine Card) 
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EXHIBIT II 
 
 
 

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
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INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
 
 

Voluntary Participation:   
The Grantee, BBYSA, INC.,   hereby asserts and affirms that the Grantee is a volunteer-based 
organization, and that said organization requested assistance from Escambia County’s 
Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Project to undertake activities developed, sponsored and 
implemented by the Grantee.  The Grantee accepts responsibility for coordination of all Project 
activities;  assuring the safety of its volunteers; providing proper training and instruction to 
volunteers in the use of equipment and supplies required to undertake the Project; and general 
oversight and management of the Project. 

 
Indemnification: 

The Grantee,  BBYSA, INC., shall, at all times throughout the duration of this Project,  indemnify 
and hold  harmless Escambia County, and its agent, Neighborhood  Enterprise Foundation,  Inc. 
(NEFI), including its elected officials,  board members,   agents   and  employees,  from  and  
against  all  claims,  damages,  losses,  and  expenses, including  but not limited to, attorney's 
fees and costs,  arising out  of or resulting from  the carrying  out  of  this  Agreement,  and out of 
any work  activities   performed under this Agreement, or constituting a breach of any  term  of  
this  Agreement.  Grantee assumes all responsibility for Project activities and related work, and 
shall provide and pay the costs of legal services in the event legal action is brought against the 
Grantee, the County or NEFI as a result of matters associated with this Project. This in no way 
shall prohibit the County or NEFI from securing legal services in addition to that provided by 
Grantee.   The duration of this Agreement shall be defined to mean the contract term as stated in 
the Project Agreement dated January 6, 2011; or the period during which any of the equipment or 
supplies provided under the Agreement remain in use by the Grantee, or agencies or individuals, 
affiliated with the Grantee, whichever is longer. In the event of litigation, the duration shall be 
extended through the date that any and all litigation actions are completed and legally or judicially 
settled. 

 
Independent Agency/Contractor: 

In carrying out the activities cited in the January 6, 2011, Project Agreement, BBYSA, INC., the 
Grantee, County, and NEFI agree and affirm that the Grantee is an independent 
agency/contractor and the Grantee is not an employee or agent of the County or NEFI.   
Implementation of the Project activities shall be at the direction of the Grantee. 

 
Liability for Claims/Insurance: 

Grantee, BBYSA, INC., acknowledges that the County nor NEFI shall be responsible for 
insurance claims, personal or injury claims, legal fees, medical or health care charges, or other 
costs of any kind that may result from the implementation of the Project activities.   Grantee 
assumes responsibility for properly ensuring its protection from such potential claims, and 
releases the County and NEFI from any responsibility for such claims or legal actions.  
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Grantee acknowledges and agrees to the terms and conditions cited herein, and the Grantee 
has caused this Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement to be executed by its duly 
authorized officer or agent as cited below. This Agreement was approved and authorized by 
the governing body of the BBYSA, INC. 
 
 

Executed this the ________ day of _____________________, 20___: 
 
 

   BBYSA, INC.    
                                              
 

By:  __________________________________          
                                                    

                                                              SAM WARD, President 
 
 

 
WITNESSED:          
  
 
1. ________________________ 
 
__________________________ 
Print Name 
 
 
2. ________________________ 
 
__________________________ 
Print Name 
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EXHIBIT III 
 

APPLICABLE   FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS  
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LISTING OF FEDERAL PROVISIONS 
 
All Federal provisions related to this contract are listed below for reference, and are 
to be complied with to the extent that each is applicable to this specific agreement. 
 

 1. Certification Regarding Non-Segregated Facilities 
 
 2. Compliance with Air and Water Acts 
 
 3. EEO Compliance and Anti-Discrimination Provisions 
 
 4. Copeland Anti-Kickback Act Provisions 
 
 5. Executive Order 11426, as amended by Executive Order 12086,  
     Concerning Affirmative Action in Employment and Employment  Practices 
 
 6. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and amendments thereto 
 
 7. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (the Fair Housing Act) 
 
 8. Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259 
 
 9. Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 and any 
     amendments  thereto 
 

10. Lead Based Paint Prohibition stipulated in Section 401(b) of the Lead-Based   
      Paint Poisoning  Prevention Act (as applicable) 
 
11. Section 202 (a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973and amendments  
       thereto regarding Flood Hazards Mitigation (as applicable) 
 
12. Architectural Barriers Act (as applicable) 
 
13. Americans with Disabilities Act Protections (as applicable) 
 
14. Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
 
15. Sections 503/504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
 
16. Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act as  
       applicable 
 
17. Labor Standards Provisions to the extent required by Section 110 of the Housing  
       and Community Development Act of 1974  and amendments thereto 
 

18. Minority and Women Owned Business Identification and Utilization 
 
19. Affirmative Action in Employment and Employment Matters 
 
20. Section 3 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1968, as amended 
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Standard Provisions (Continued) 
 
21. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
 
22. Provisions Regarding Access to and Maintenance of Records 
 
23. Conflict of Interest Provisions 
 
24. Anti-Lobbying Certification 
 
25. Relocation, Displacement and Acquisition Provisions of the Uniform Relocation  
      Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA) and HUD  
      Implementing Regulations at 24 CFR Part 42 to the extent applicable to Project  
      activities 
 
26.  Prohibition against the Use of Debarred, Suspended or Ineligible Contractors or  
       Subrecipients (24 CFR Part 24) 
   
27. Ownership of Project Copyrights and Patents (if applicable) 
 
28. Requirements of 24 CFR Part 24 concerning the Drug Free Workplace Act of  
      1988. 
 
29. Utilization of Program Income.  No program income will result from activities  
       undertaken through this project.  
 
THE FULL TEXT OF THE FEDERAL LAWS AND/OR REGULATIONS CAN BE 
REVIEWED AT THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT OFFICE OR 
BY VISITING THE HUD WEB SITE AT WWW.HUD.GOV.  EACH PROVISION IS 
AN INTEGRAL  PART OF  THE  AGREEMENT AND  IS FULLY BINDING UPON 
THE RECIPIENT. EACH PROVISION SHOULD BE CAREFULLY REVIEWED TO 
ASSURE EXISTING  COMPLIANCE  AND/OR  THE CAPACITY  TO  COMPLY 
WITH SAID PROVISIONS. 
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EXHIBIT IV 
 
 

DOCUMENTATION OF LEGAL CORPORATE STATUS 
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    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  19.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring Project Grant Agreement with
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) – Grant No. 10263

From: Sandra P. Jennings, P.E.
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Escambia County Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring
Project Grant Agreement with Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission (FWC) – Grant No. 10263 -
Sandra P. Jennings, P.E., Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Escambia County Ex-Oriskany PCB
Artificial Reef Monitoring Project Grant Agreement with the Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission (FWC) – Grant No. 10263:

A. Approve the Grant Agreement between Escambia County Board of County Commissioners
and FWC, for the Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring Project, in the amount of $53,000,
from the date of execution through December 30, 2012; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Agreement and any documents related to acceptance,
execution, reporting, and amendments to this Grant, pending Legal review and approval, without
further action of the Board.

[Funding Source: Fund 110, Other Grants & Projects; Cost Center/Revenue Code – TBD at time
of Supplemental Budget Amendment]

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County has been awarded $53,000 from Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission (FWC) for the monitoring of background PCB levels in fish tissue near the Oriskany
reef site in the Gulf of Mexico, as required by US Environmental Protection Agency. No local
matching funds are required for this grant.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This grant will require a Supplemental Budget Amendment to Fund 110 Other Grants & Projects.
No local funding is required for this grant project.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Grant Agreement was reviewed and approved, as to form and legal sufficiency, by the



The Grant Agreement was reviewed and approved, as to form and legal sufficiency, by the
County Attorney’s Office.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires approval of all such contracts, as well as those in excess of $50,000. 
Also, this recommendation is consistent with the County’s commitment to fiscal responsibility
and cost efficiency.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Community & Environment Bureau, Marine Resources Division, will continue coordination
with Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission on all activities associated with the
Grant Agreement.

Attachments
Grant Agreement FWC No. 10263



FWC Grant No. 10263
ESCAMBIA COUNTY

EX-ORISKANY PCB ARTIFICIAL REEF MONITORING PROJECT

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the FLORIDA FISH AND WILDLIFE
CONSERVATION COMMISSION, whose address is 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-1600, hereafter "COMMISSION", and the ESCAMBIA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS, whose address is 221 Palafox Place, Pensacola, FL 32502, hereafter "GRANTEE".

NOW THEREFORE, the COMMISSION and the GRANTEE, for the considerations hereafter set
forth, agree as follows:

DUTIES OF THE GRANTEE

1. Scope of Services

The GRANTEE shall perform the services and specific responsibilities as set forth in Attachment
A, entitled "Scope of Services", attached hereto and made a part hereof.

2. Contractor Eligibility

The GRANTEE shall be licensed as necessary to perform under this Grant Agreement as may be
required by law, rule, or regulation, and shall provide evidence of such compliance to the COMMISSION
upon request.

TERM OF AGREEMENT

3. This Agreement shall begin upon execution by both parties and end on December 30,
2012, Inclusive. The GRANTEE shall not be eligible for reimbursement for services rendered prior to the
execution date of this Agreement nor after the termination date of the Agreement.

COMPENSATION

4. As consideration for the services rendered by the GRANTEE under the terms of this Agreement.
the COMMISSION shall pay the GRANTEE on a fixed price basis in an amount not to exceed $53,000.00
as specific in Attachment A (Scope of Services).

PAYMENTS

5. The COMMISSION shall pay the GRANTEE for satisfactory service upon submission of invoices,
accompanied by required reports or deliverables, and after acceptance of services and deliverables in
writing by the COMMISSION's Contract Manager. Each invoice shall include the FWC Grant Number and
the GRANTEE's Federal Employer Identification (FEID) Number. An original and two (2) copies of the
invoice shall be submitted. The COMMISSION shall not provide advance payment. All bills for amounts
due under this Agreement shall be submitted in detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit
thereof. Invoices for reimbursement shall be submitted following successful completion of the artificial reef
project described in Attachment A, Scope of Services.

6. No travel expenses are authorized under the terms of this Agreement.

7. For Agreements whose term extends beyond the State fiscal year in which encumbered funds
were appropriated, the State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay is contingent upon an annual
appropriation by the Legislature.
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8. Invoices. including backup documentation, shall be submitted to:

Jon Dodrill, Environmental Administrator
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Division of Marine Fisheries Management
2590 Executive Center Circle East, Suite 203
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

CERTIFICATE OF PARTIAL PAYMENT

9. The GRANTEE will be required to complete a Certificate of Partial Payment form when payment
intervals have been noted in the Agreement. This form must be submitted to the COMMISSION's
Contract Manager starting with the second invoice and with each subsequent invoice requesting partial
payment. The COMMISSION's Contract Manager shall submit the executed form with the invoice to
Accounting Services.

TERMINATION

10. This Agreement shall terminate immediately upon the COMMISSION giving written notice to the
GRANTEE in the event of fraud, willful misconduct. or breach of this Agreement.

11. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the other party specifying
the termination date and justification for termination, by certified mail, return receipt requested, at least
forty·five (45) days prior to the termination date specified in the Agreement.

TAXES

12. The GRANTEE recognizes that the State of Florida, by virtue of its sovereignty, is not required to
pay any taxes on the services or goods purchased under the term of this Agreement.

NOTICE

13. Unless a change of address is given. any and all notices shall be delivered to the parties at the
following addresses:

GRANTEE

Robert Turpin, Division Manager
Marine Resources Division
County Community and Environment Bureau
3363 West Park Place.
Pensacola, FL 32505
(850) 595-3474; cell phone (850) 554-5869
FAX: (850) 595-3495
rkturpin@myescambia.com

COMMISSION

Jon Dodrill. Environmental Administrator
FWC Division of Marine Fisheries Management
2590 Executive Center Circle East, Suite 203
Tallahassee. Florida 32301
(850) 487-0580 x209; cell phone (850) 528-3613
FAX: (850) 487-4847
jon.dodrill@mvtwc.com

AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION

14. No waiver or modification of this Agreement or of any covenant. condition, or limitation herein
contained shall be valid unless in writing and lawfully executed by the parties. The COMMISSION may at
any time, by written order designated to be a Modification, make any change in the work within the
general scope of this Agreement (e.g. specifications, schedules, method or manner of performance.
requirements, etc.). However, all modifications are subject to the mutual agreement of both parties as
evidenced in writing. Any modification that causes an increase or decrease in the GRANTEE's cost or the
term of the Agreement shall require a formal amendment.
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RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

15. The GRANTEE shall perform as an independent agent and not as an agent, representative, or
employee of the COMMISSION.

16. The GRANTEE covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest
which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required.

17. The parties agree that there is no conflict of interest or any other prohibited relationship between
the GRANTEE and the COMMISSION.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

18. To the extent required by law, the GRANTEE will either be self-insured for Workers'
Compensation claims, or will secure and maintain during the life of this Contract, Workers' Compensation
Insurance for all of its employees connected with the work of this project. If any work is subcontracted,
the GRANTEE shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide Workers' Compensation Insurance for
all of the latter's employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the
GRANTEE. Such self-insurance program or insurance coverage shall comply fully with the Florida
Workers' Compensation law. In case any class of employees engaged in hazardous work under this
Contract is not protected under Workers' Compensation statutes, the GRANTEE shall provide, and cause
each subcontractor to provide, adequate insurance satisfactory to the COMMISSION, for the protection of
his employees not otherwise protected.

19. Employers who have employees who are engaged in work in Florida must use Florida rates,
rules. and classifications for those employees. In the construction industry, only corporate officers of a
corporation or any group of affiliated corporations may elect to be exempt from Workers' Compensation
coverage requirements. Such exemptions are limited to a maximum of three per corporation and each
exemption holder must own at least 10% of the corporation. Independent contractors, sole proprietors
and partners in the construction industry cannot elect to be exempt and must maintain Workers'
Compensation Insurance.

20. The GRANTEE. as an independent contractor and not an agent, representative, or employee of
the COMMISSION. agrees to carry adequate liability and other appropriate forms of insurance. The
COMMISSION shall have no liability except as specifically provided in this Agreement.

CANCELLATION UNDER CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES

21. This Agreement may be unilaterally canceled by the COMMISSION for refusal by the GRANTEE
to allow public access to all documents, papers. letters. or other material subject to the provisions of
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or received by the GRANTEE in conjunction with this
Agreement.

RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS

22. The GRANTEE shall maintain accurate books, records, documents and other evidence that
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of
this contract, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals. The GRANTEE shall allow
the COMMISSION. the State, or other authorized representatives, access to periodically inspect. review
or audit such documents as books. vouchers, records, reports. canceled checks and any and all similar
material. Such audit may include examination and review of the source and application of all funds
whether from the state, local or federal government. private sources or otherwise. These records shall be
maintained for five (5) years following the close of this contract. In the event any work is subcontracted,
the GRANTEE shall require each subcontractor to similarly maintain and allow access to such records for
audit purposes.

LIABILITY
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23. Each Party hereto agrees that it shall be solely responsible for the negligent or wrongful acts of its
employees and agents. However, nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by either party of its
sovereign immunity or the provisions of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

NON·DISCRIMINATION

24. No person, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, age, sex, or disability, shall be
excluded from participation in, be denied the proceeds or benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination in performance of this Agreement.

PROHIBITION OF DISCRIMINATORY VENDORS

25. In accordance with Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, an entity or affiliate who has been placed
on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any
goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal or reply on a contract with a public
entity for the construction or repair of a public building or pUblic work; may not submit bids, proposals, or
replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor,
supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact
business with any pUblic entity.

NON-ASSIGNMENT

26. This Agreement is an exclusive agreement for services and may not be assigned in whole or in
part without the written approval of the COMMISSION.

REMEDIES

27. The GRANTEE shall perform the services in a proper and satisfactory manner as determined by
the COMMISSION.

28. It is understood by the parties that remedies for damages or any other remedies provided for
herein shall be construed to be cumulative and not exclusive of any other remedy otherwise available
under law.

SEVERABILITY AND CHOICE OF VENUE

29. This Agreement has been delivered in the State of Florida and shall be construed in accordance
with the laws of Florida. Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such
manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement shall be
prohibited or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such
prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of
this Agreement. Any action in connection herewith, in law or equity, shall be brought in Leon County,
Florida.

NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

30. The parties hereto do not intend nor shall this Agreement be construed to grant any rights,
privileges or interest to any third party.

JURY TRIAL WAIVER
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31. As consideration of this Agreement. the parties hereby waive trial by jury in any action or
proceeding brought by any party against another party pertaining to any matter whatsoever arising out of
or in any way connected with this Agreement.

DIVISION OF MARINE FISHERIES REqUIREMENTS

32. The GRANTEE agrees to follow all requirements of Section 287.057, Florida Statutes, for the
procurement of commodities or contractual services under this Agreement. The GRANTEE will obtain a
minimum of two written quotes for any subcontracts required for Agreements in the amount of $25,000 or
less, and the GRANTEE will publicly advertise and send bid specifications to a minimum of five (5)
potential subcontractors for any subcontracts required for Agreements in excess of $25,000.

33. The use of a vendor registered with the Statewide Negotiated Agreement Price Schedule
(SNAPS) does not preclude the GRANTEE from the requirements of Paragraph 31.

34. The GRANTEE shall include Attachment A (Scope of Services) verbatim in all bid specifications.
All bid specifications must be approved, in writing, in advance by the COMMISSION's Contract Manager,
prior to public advertisement or distribution.

35. The GRANTEE shall submit a copy of the draft subcontract to the COMMISSION's Contract
Manager for approval within ninety (90) days following the execution date of this Agreement.

36. Any request to use a sole source vendor by the GRANTEE must be requested and justified in
writing and approved by the COMMISSION's Contract Manager prior to awarding a sole source
subcontract under this Agreement.

37. A summary of the vendor replies and recommended subcontractor must be sent by the
GRANTEE to the COMMISSION's Contract Manager for written approval prior to the awarding of any
subcontracts under this Agreement.

38. The GRANTEE shall include this entire Agreement and all attachments in all subcontracts issued
as a result of this Agreement. All such subcontracts in excess of $5,000 shall be in writing.

39. The GRANTEE agrees to acknowledge the role of Florida saltwater fishing license funding in any
publicity related to this Agreement.

40. The GRANTEE agrees to follow all provisions of Section 379.249, Florida Statutes and Rule 68E-
9, Florida Administrative Code during the term of this Agreement.

41. The GRANTEE agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, rules and
regulations in providing goods or services to the COMMISSION under the terms of this Agreement;
including the general and special conditions specified in any permits issued by the Department of the
Army, Corps of Engineers and/or the Florida Department of Environmental Protection. The GRANTEE
further agrees to include this as a separate provision in all subcontracts issued as a result of this
Agreement.

42. The harvest of all marine species for personal use regulated under Chapter 688, Florida
Administrative Code by any means whatsoever by any indiViduals operating from vessels during the work
days these individuals and/or vessels are hired to be engaged in the support of survey and monitoring
work funded under this agreement is prohibited. Harvest of marine organisms from monitoring sites
designated under this agreement by personnel or other individuals on board vessels supporting
monitoring activities on the same day as the survey/monitoring activity is occurring, shall result in
immediate termination of this agreement and nonpayment for any services undertaken on the day the
noncompliance with this paragraph was reported or otherwise identified. If harvest is required for
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research purposes, then a special request in writing must be made to the COMMISSION's Grant
Manager for written approval with guidance for the appropriate licensing requirements.

FEDERAL/FLORIDA SINGLE AUDIT ACTS REQUIREMENTS

43. The Florida Single Audit Act requires all non-state organizations (GRANTEE) who are recipients
of State financial assistance to comply with the audit requirements of the Act, pursuant to Section 215.97,
Florida Statutes. In addition, recipients and subrecipients (GRANTEE) of federal financial assistance must
comply with the Federal Single Audit Act requirements of OMS Circular A-133. Therefore, the GRANTEE
shall be required to comply with the audit requirements outlined in Attachment S, titled "Requirements of
the Federal and Florida Single Audit Acts", attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement, as
applicable.

44. In accordance with Section 216.347, Florida Statutes, the GRANTEE is hereby prohibited from
using funds provided by this Agreement for the purpose of lobbying the Legislature, the judicial branch or
a state agency.

CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACT COMPLETION

45. The GRANTEE will be required to complete a Certificate of Contract Completion form when all
work has been completed and accepted. This form must be submitted to the COMMISSION's Contract
Manager with the GRANTEE's invoice for payment to be authorized. The COMMISSION's Contract
Manager shall submit the executed form with the invoice to Accounting Services.

CERTIFICATE OF PARTIAL PAYMENT

46. The GRANTEE will be required to complete a Certificate of Partial Payment form when payment
intervals have been noted in the Agreement. This form must be submitted to the COMMISSION's
Contract Manager starting with the second invoice and with each subsequent invoice requesting partial
payment. The COMMISSION's Contract Manager shall submit the executed form with the invoice to
Accounting Services.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

47. This Agreement with all incorporated attachments and exhibits represents the entire Agreement
of the parties. Any alterations, variations, changes, modifications or waivers of provisions of this
Agreement shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, and duly signed by each of the
parties hereto, unless otherwise provided herein.

RIGHTS IN INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

48. All items, materials or products, of any description, produced or developed by the GRANTEE for
the COMMISSION in connection with this Grant Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the
COMMISSION and the State of Florida and may thereby be copyrighted, patented, or otherwise protected
as provided by law. Neither the GRANTEE, nor its employees, representatives or subcontractors, shall
have any proprietary interest in the products and materials developed under this Grant Agreement.
PUblishing rights to the information resulting from this grant agreement are hereby granted to the
GRANTEE, and to any not-for-profit subcontractors.

REST OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed through
their duly authorized signatories on the day and year last wntten below.

ESCAMBIA COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

By__...,..,-,=====,- _
(Authorized Signatory")

Kevin W. White, Chairman
(Print Signatory's Name and Title)

Date:""""'-;c=:7::::-u.:::::;:;: _
ATTEST: Ernie Lee Mag.ha

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Deputy Clerk

BCC Approved: ::--:---:-:,--:-::-_
Escambia County Board of County Commissioners

(Grantee)

221 Palafox Place
(Address)

Pensacola Fl, 32502
(City, State, and Zip Code)

FLORIDA FISH AND WILDLIFE
CONSERVATION COMMISSION

8y:_--",;=::--.====:-;o;==Director, Division of Marine Fisheries
or Designee

Date: _

This document approved as to form
and leg ffiei ney,f)
By: V.l1'a
TIlle:

Date: -":;':'~~'..!:f..jL"':::'_

59-6000598
(Federal Employer Identification Number)

Reimbursement Check Remillance Address:

221 Palafox Place, Alln:Finance Department
(Address)

Pensacola, FL 32502
(City, State, and Zip Code)

FWC Attorney

,

'If someone other than the Chairman signs this Agreement. a statement or other document authorizing
that person to sign the Agreement on behalf of the County must accompany the Agreement.

Ust of Attachments included as part of this Agreement:

Attachment A

Allachmenl B

Exhibit 1

Scope of Services

ReqUirements of the Federal- Florida Single Audit Acts

State and Federal Funds Awarded through the Florida FWC
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ATTACHMENT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

EX-ORISKANY PCB ARTIFICIAL REEF MONITORING PROJECT

The objective of this activity is to conduct post-deployment tissue sampling of recreationally targeted legal
size reef fish for polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) associated with the former Navy decommissioned
aircraft carrier the Ex-Oriskany (CVA-34) sunk May 17, 2006 as an artificial reef in federal waters off
Escambia County, Florida. The Oriskany Reef is located in 212 feet of water approximately 22.3 nautical
miles from Pensacola Pass on a heading of 138 degrees. The Oriskany Reef rests upright on the sand
seafloor, bow facing south, in a north-south orientation in the southeast quadrant of the 77 square
nautical mile Escambia East Large Area Artificial Reef Site (LAARS) The Oriskany Reef coordinates are:
30° 02.533' N. Latitude; 87° 00.397' West Longitude. Sampling methodologies and analysis will be in
compliance with the conditions of the February 16, 2006 EPA Region IV Risk based Disposal Permit as
amended July 16,2007, and the COMMISSION's Oriskany Reef monitoring plan (Revision 4, June 25,
2007).

A fixed-price payment is established below for polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) analysis of up to 70 reef
fish collected from the Oriskany Reef and if needed, from one or more control sites. For each reef fish
sample, there shall occur the analysis and reporting of total PCB concentrations (picograms/gram wet
weight in reef fish skin-on lateral muscle fillet,), percent lipids, concentrations of 209 individual PCB
congeners, and ten PCB homolog concentrations at a price not to exceed $750 per individual fish sample
(up to $52,500 for analysis of 70 fish). A laboratory generated report of the analysis results of each batch
of fish from a given sampling effort shipped to the analytical lab shall be provided by the lab both as a .pdf
file and Excel spread sheet at no additional cost. The GRANTEE shall deliver laboratory report results
electronically to the COMMISSION's Contract Manager within five working days after the receipt of the
reports from the analytical laboratory. A fixed price of $500 shall be provided to the GRANTEE upon
receipt and acceptance by the COMMISSION's Contract Manager of a formal field report documenting in
detail fish sampling activities undertaken during the April 2011 fish sampling event. Payment under this
Agreement may be made to the GRANTEE in the form of one partial and one final payment.

The reef monitoring to be funded consists of the following elements:

1. Sampling Methodology

a. Sampling methodologies and analysis will be in compliance with the conditions of the EPA
Region IV ex-OriSkany PCB Risk based Disposal Permit as amended, the COMMISSION's
Oriskany Monitoring Plan and any additional direction provided by the EPA, the Florida
Department of Health, or the COMMISSION.

b. The GRANTEE shall coordinate closely with the COMMISSION on all aspects of sample
collection activities.

2. Deliverables

a. A written draft report summarizing field, administrative, and sample storage and shipping
activities related to completion of the sampling event will be submitted to the Commission for
review within 30 days of the completion of the April 2011 field sampling trip.

b. A laboratory report of the PCB analysis results will be submitted electronically as an Excel
spreadsheet and .pdf file by the GRANTEE to the COMMISSION for review within 5 days of the
GRANTEE's receipt of the lab report.

3. Funds from this Agreement may not be expended on salaries, training, parts replacement or repairs
to rented or contractor owned equipment, sample storage and shipping, charter boat rental, or
miscellaneous laboratory or other supplies required to complete field sampling operations.
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4. Documentation of the field reports and all lab analysis results must be submitted with the closeout
package in order for reimbursement to be made.

PAYMENT SCHEDULE

5. For satisfactory completion of a field sampling report and a maximum of seventy (70) individual reef
fish PCB sample analyses with accompany laboratory results reports, the COMMISSION agrees to
pay the GRANTEE a maximum of $53,000 on a fixed price basis according to the cost per unit in the
following table:

Monitoring Deliverables Unit Cost
Number Per Unit Total Cost

PCB analysis of fish tissue 70 fish $750.00 $52,500.00
Field Report (April 2011) 1 $500,00 $500.00

TOTAL $53,000.00

6. The GRANTEE shall be reimbursed by the COMMISSION in the form of up to two partial payments
for all allowable laboratory analysis costs incurred under this Agreement, following satisfactory
completion of the events completed for which partial reimbursement is requested. Submission of all
required project close out documentation is required no later than forty-five (45) days after the ending
date of the Agreement. A timely reimbursement request following receipt of PCB sample analysis
results is strongly encouraged.

PERFORMANCE

7. Any published articles related to this artificial reef activity should reflect the role of the Florida
saltwater fishing license revenues in assisting in the funding of this activity.

REST OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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ATTACHMENT B
REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA AND FEDERAL SINGLE AUDIT ACTS

The administration of resources awarded by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
(Commission) to the Contractor/Grantee (recipient) may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the
Commission as described in this section.

MONITORING

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and Section 215.97,
F.S., as revised (see "AUDITS" below), monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited to, on-site
visits by Commission staff, limited scope audits as defined by OMB Circular A-133, as revised, and/or
other procedures. By entering into this agreement, the recipient agrees to comply and cooperate with
any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Commission. In the event the
Commission determines that a limited scope audit of the recipient is appropriate, the recipient agrees to
comply with any additional instructions provided by the Commission staff to the recipient regarding such
audit. The recipient further agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews. investigations,
or audits deemed necessary by the Comptroller or Auditor General.

AUDITS

PART I: FEDERALLY FUNDED

This part is applicable if the recipient is a State or local government or a non-profit organization as
defined in OMB Circular A-133, as revised.

In the event that the recipient expends $500,000 or more in Federal awards in its fiscal year, the recipient
must have a single or program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of OMB
Circular A-133, as revised. EXHIBIT 1 to this agreement indicates Federal resources awarded through
the Commission by this agreement. In determining the Federal awards expended in its fiscal year, the
recipient shall consider all sources of Federal awards, including Federal resources received from
Commission. The determination of amounts of Federal awards expended should be in accordance with
the guidelines established by OMB Circular A-133, as revised. An audit of the recipient conducted by the
Auditor General in accordance with the provisions OMB Circular A-133, as revised, will meet the
requirements of this part.

In connection with the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1., the recipient shall fulfill the
requirements relative to auditee responsibilities as provided in SUbpart C of OMB Circular A-133, as
revised.

If the recipient expends less than $500,000 in Federal awards in its fiscal year, an audit conducted in
accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, as revised, is not required. In the event that the
recipient expends less than $500.000 in Federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, as revised, the cost of the audit
must be paid from non-Federal resources (Le.. the cost of such an audit must be paid from recipient
resources obtained from other than Federal entities).

PART II: STATE FUNDED

This part is applicable if the recipient is a non-state entity as defined by Section 215.97(2)(1), Florida
Statutes.

In the event that the recipient expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess of
$500,000 in any fiscal year of such recipient, the recipient must have a State single or project-specific
audit for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, Florida Statutes: applicable rules of the
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Executive Office of the Governor and the Comptroller: and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities)
or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. EXHIBIT 1 to this
agreement indicates state financial assistance awarded through the Commission by this agreement. In
determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all
sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance received from the Commission
other state agencies, and other non-state entities. State financial assistance does not include Federal
direct or pass-through awards and resources received by a non-state entity for Federal program matching
requirements.

In connection with the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the recipient shall ensure that
the audit complies with the requirements of Section 215.97(7), Florida Statutes. This includes submission
of a financial reporting package as defined by Section 215.97(2)(d), Florida Statutes, and Chapters
10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor
General.

If the recipient expends less than $500,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year, an audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, is not required. In the
event that the recipient expends less than $500,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year and
elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, Florida Statutes,
the cost of the audit must be paid from the non-state entity's resources (Le., the cost of such an audit
must be paid from the recipient's resources obtained from other than State entities).

PART III: OTHER AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

None

PART IV: REPORT SUBMISSION

Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, as revised,
and required by PART I of this agreement shall be submitted, when required by Section .320 (d), OMB
Circular A-133, as revised, by or on behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following:

The Commission at the following address:

Trevor Phillips, Audit Director
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Bryant Building, Room 170
620 S. Meridian St.
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

The Federal Audit Clearinghouse designated in OMB Circular A-133, as revised (the number of copies
required by Sections .320 (d)(1) and (2), OMB Circular A-133, as revised, should be submitted to the
Federal Audit Clearinghouse), at the following address:

Federal Audit Clearinghouse
Bureau of the Census

1201 East 10th Street
Jeffersonville, IN 47132

Other Federal agencies and pass-through entities in accordance with Sections .320 (e) and (t), OMB
Circular A-133, as revised.
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Pursuant to Section .320 (f), OMB Circular A-133, as revised. the recipient shall submit a copy of the
reporting package described in Section .320 (c), OMB Circular A-133, as revised. and any management
letters issued by the auditor, to the Commission at the following address:

Trevor Phillips, Audit Director
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Bryant Building, Room 170
620 S. Meridian St.
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

Copies of financial reporting packages required by PART II of this agreement shall be submitted by or on
behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following:

The Commission at the following address:

Trevor Phillips, Audit Director
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Bryant Building, Room 170
620 S. Meridian St.
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

The Auditor General's Office at the following address:

Auditor General's Office
G74 Claude Pepper Building
111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450

Any reports, management letter, or other information required to be submitted to the Commission
pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with OMS Circular A-133, Florida
Statutes, and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable.

Recipients, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Commission for audits done in
accordance with OMS Circular A-133 or Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650
(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should indicate the date that the
reporting package was delivered to the recipient in correspondence accompanying the reporting package.

Contact the Commission's Audit Director, Trevor Phillips, by phone at (850) 488-6068 or by email at
trevor. phillips@myfwc.com

PART IV: RECORD RETENTION

The recipient shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of this
Agreement for a period of five (5) years from the date the audit report is issued. and shall allow the
Commission or its designee. Comptroller, or Auditor General access to such records upon request.
The recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the Commission or its
designee, Comptroller. or Auditor General upon request for a period of five (5) years from the date
the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Commission.

REST OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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EXHIBIT -1

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT
CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

NONE

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

NONE

STATE RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST
OF THE FOLLOWING:

MATCHING RESOURCES FOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS:

SUBJECT TO SECTION 215.97. FLORIDA STATUTES:

State Agency:
State Program:
CSFA No.:
Recipient
Amount:

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Division of Marine Fisheries Artificial Reef Grants Program
77.007
Escambia County
$53,000.00

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO
THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

8. Only the goods and/or services described within the attached Agreement and
Attachment A are eligible expenditures for the funds awarded.

9. All provisions of Section 379.249, Florida Statutes and Rule 68E-9, Florida
Administrative Code must be complied with in order to receive funding under this
Agreement.

NOTE: Section .400(d) of OMB Circular A-133, as revised, and Section 215.97(5)(a), Florida
Statutes, require that the Information about Federal Programs and State Projects Included In
Exhibit 1 be provided to the recipient.

REST OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  20.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Interlocal Agreement with Santa Rosa County for Permitted Artificial Reef Sites
From: Sandra P. Jennings, P.E.
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Interlocal Agreement with Santa Rosa County for Permitted
Artificial Reef Sites - Sandra P. Jennings. P.E., Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning an Interlocal Agreement between the
County and Santa Rosa County for permitted artificial reef sites:

A. Approve the Interlocal Agreement allowing Santa Rosa County to contribute appropriate reef
materials and monetary compensation towards management of the artificial reef construction, for
the purpose of enhancing the County’s existing artificial reef sites; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement and any documents related to
acceptance, without further action of the Board.

[Funding: Fund 108, Tourist Promotion Fund, Revenue Account TBD (new) – ($1,000 minimum)]

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County possesses permits from Florida Department of Environmental Protection
(FDEP) and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) for four artificial reef sites in the Gulf of
Mexico.  Community & Environment Bureau, Marine Resources Division manages the County’s
Artificial Reef Program in compliance with the FDEP and ACOE permits.  With Santa Rosa
County lacking permitted artificial reef sites, this Interlocal Agreement provides a mechanism for
Santa Rosa County to participate in increasing local marine life habitat.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Per the Interlocal Agreement, Santa Rosa County will compensate Escambia County $1000 per
day for Community & Environment Bureau, Marine Resources Division time and equipment used
to manage artificial reef construction.  The funds will be placed into Fund 108 Tourist Promotion
Fund, Revenue Account TBD.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Interlocal Agreement was reviewed and approved, as to form and legal sufficiency, by the



The Interlocal Agreement was reviewed and approved, as to form and legal sufficiency, by the
County Attorney’s Office.

PERSONNEL:
No additional staff is required to fulfill the obligations of this agreement.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
All such Interlocal Agreements must be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Community & Environment Bureau, Marine Resources Division will coordinate with Santa Rosa
County, Florida Fish and Wildlife Commissions (FWC), the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers
(ACOE), the U.S. Coast Guard and any other pertinent agencies on the disposal of appropriate
materials into the artificial reef sites and on all other activities associated with the Interlocal
Agreement.

Attachments
Interlocal Agreement with Santa Rosa County













    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  21.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Purchase of D3K LGP Track Type Tractor
From: Sandra Jennings
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning a Purchase Order to Thompson Tractor Company, Inc., for One
Caterpillar D3K LGP Track Type Tractor, in the Amount of $81,967. for Solid Waste
Management - Sandra P. Jennings, P.E., Community & Environment Bureau Chief

That the Board authorize the County to Piggyback off the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA)
Contract IFB# 092409, in accordance with the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Chapter
46, Article II, Section 46-44, Applications, exemptions: and Section 46-64, Board approval, and
award a Purchase Order to Thompson Tractor Company, Inc., for one Caterpillar D3K LGP
Track Type Tractor, in the amount of $81,967, for Solid Waste Management.  [Funding: Fund
401, Solid Waste Fund, Cost Center 220603]

BACKGROUND:
The Caterpillar D3K LGP Track Type Tractor is a replacement unit for a 1995 D3C Dozer,
property #47356.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in Fund 401 Solid Waste Fund, Cost Center 220603.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
Solid Waste Management will receive the D3K Track Tractor.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in accordance with the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, 1999,
Chapter 46, Finance, Article II, Section 46-44 Application; Exemptions and Section 46-64 Award
approval and threshold authority.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



The Office of Purchasing will be responsible for issuance of the purchase order.

Attachments
D3K Tractor Quote
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    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  22.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Escambia County Area Transit Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) and New
Freedom Grants

From: Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Adm
Organization: Transportation & Traffic
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Agreement for Operation of Job Access and Reverse Commute
and New Freedom Programs - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the Agreement for operation of Job Access
and Reverse Commute and New Freedom Programs:

A. Approve the Agreement between Escambia County and the Transportation Planning
Organization for Operation of Job Access and Reverse Commute and New Freedom Programs;
and
 
B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Agreement and all related documents.

[Funding:  Fund 104, Mass Transit; no additional cost to the County]

BACKGROUND:
The Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) program was established to address the unique
transportation challenges faced by persons receiving public assistance, other subsidies. and low
wage earners seeking to obtain and maintain employment. The New Freedom formula grant
program aims to provide additional tools to overcome existing barriers facing Americans with
disabilities seeking integration into the work force and full participation in society. Lack of
adequate transportation is a primary barrier to work for individuals with disabilities. The
Florida/Alabama TPO has applied for Federal Transit Administration Job Access and Reverse
Commute (JARC) Program and New Freedom Program funds in which the TPO wishes to
engage ECAT as a qualified management team with supporting assets and knowledge
appropriate to the conduct and operation of the JARC and New Freedom Programs.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding for this project is provided thru the Florida/Alabama TPO utilizing funds from the



Funding for this project is provided thru the Florida/Alabama TPO utilizing funds from the
Federal Transit Administration JARC (Section 5316) and New Freedom (Section 5317). The
funding available in the JARC Program is $20,000. The funding available in the New Freedom
Program is $85,000.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney has reviewed and signed off on this Agreement.

PERSONNEL:
ECAT will hire a “Mobility Manager” under the New Freedom Program. No additional personnel
will be needed for JARC.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is based upon the Board Comprehensive Plan – Mass Transit Element –
January 2006.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
ECAT personnel will administer this Agreement after final execution by the Board and
Florida/Alabama TPO.  ECAT will coordinate with The Florida/Alabama TPO, West Florida
Regional Planning Council, and the Federal Transit Administration.

Attachments
JARC/New Freedom Agreement

























    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  23.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Major Revision to the Escambia County Transit Development Plan (TDP)
From: Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Adm
Organization: Transportation & Traffic
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Agreement between ECAT, the Florida-Alabama
Transportation Planning Organization and the University of South Florida’s Center for Urban
Transportation Research, for the 2011 Major Update to the Escambia County Ten Year Transit
Development Plan - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board accept for the Official Record, the Agreement between ECAT (Escambia County
Area Transit), the Florida-Alabama Transportation Planning Organization (TPO), and the
University of South Florida’s Center for Urban Transportation Research (CUTR), for the 2011
Major Update to the Escambia County Ten Year Transit Development Plan (TDP), ensuring that
ECAT services are eligible for the State Transit Block Grant and other transit funding available
from the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT).

BACKGROUND:
Florida Statutes, Chapter 14-73, requires that grant program recipients prepare a planning,
development and operational guidance document based on a ten year planning horizon. This
TDP update, to be completed by August 2011, will meet the requirements of FDOT’s proposed
rule 14-73.  The following tasks are among the basic incorporated in CUTR’s Scope of Services
which includes  the Public Participation Program, Data Gathering/Analysis, Performance
Evaluation, Situational Appraisal, Update of Policy Framework, Goals and Objectives,
Definitions and Evaluations of Alternatives, and a Ten Year Action Plan.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Adoption of the Update is required to ensure the eligibility of Escambia County to receive federal
and state transit funding.  Funding will be eligible through Escambia County Area Transit’s 5307
FTA grant funds. The West Florida Regional Planning Council will also provide funding to
support the cost of this project.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:



No additional personnel will be required by ECAT.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is based on the Board of County Commissioners Comprehensive Plan –
Mass Transit Element.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
ECAT staff will ensure that all service are in compliance with the TDP and any
changes/revisions are submitted to the Board of County Commissioners for approval prior to
implementation.   ECAT staff will ensure that the Major Update is forwarded to FDOT and the
TPO upon adoption by the Board.

Attachments
Major Revisions to the Escambia County TDP



































    Discussion    Item #:  1.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Appointment to Escambia County Board of Adjustment
From: Charles R. (Randy) Oliver, CPA PE
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Appointment to the Escambia County Board of Adjustment -
Charles R. "Randy" Oliver, CPA PE, County Administrator

That the Board approve appointing one of the following nominees to the Escambia County Board
of Adjustment at-large position, effective January 6, 2011, through April 15, 2011, to fill the
unexpired term of Robert R. Penfold, who resigned:

A. Jesse Casey; or
B. David Karasek

BACKGROUND:
The nominees have expressed a desire to serve on the Escambia County Board of Adjustment,
and their Resumes are attached for your review.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
In accordance with Section I B, of the Board of County Commissioners' Policy Manual, Board
approval is required for all appointments / reappointments to Boards and Committees
established by the Board of County Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
BOA Resignation - Resumes











    Discussion    Item #:  2.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Resolution Concerning BP's Claims Process
From: Charles R. (Randy) Oliver, CPA PE
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Resolution Requesting Assistance in Getting BP Claims
for Economic Losses Caused by the BP Oil Spill Approved, Expedited and Settled - Charles R.
"Randy" Oliver, CPA PE, County Administrator

That the Board adopt the Resolution requesting assistance from the President of the United
States and the Northwest Florida Legislative Delegation to take action to ensure BP holds true
on its promise, in a timely manner, to make Escambia County and its citizens whole for any
economic losses caused by the BP Oil Spill.

BACKGROUND:
The Escambia County Board of County Commissioners (BCC) has been contacted by private
citizens and commercial businesses, who have suffered economic losses due to the BP Oil Spill,
requesting assistance in getting their BP claims, approved, expedited and settled. 

The BCC has first-hand experience, as well as reports from citizens that BP has chosen to “slow
walk” or play “hardball” regarding the consideration or settlement of claims.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Resolution was reviewed and signed off on by Charlie Peppler, Acting County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
BCC approval is required for all Resolutions.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



N/A

Attachments
BP Resolution - Claims Process







AI-241     Item #:  9.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 01/06/2011  

Information
SUBJECT:
County Attorney's Report

Attachments
CAT Report Jan 6 2011



               
COUNTY ATTORNEY'S REPORT

 

January 6, 2011
             

 

I.    FOR ACTION
 

1. Ruth Bradshaw Workers' Compensation Settlement
  Recommendation Concerning Ruth Bradshaw Workers' Compensation Settlement

That the Board approve a workers’ compensation washout settlement in the total amount of
$213,281.00, inclusive of attorney’s fees and costs.  The County will pay $174,000 of the total
settlement amount and an excess carrier shall reimburse the County for the remaining
$39,281.00.  

 

2. Correction of Reimbursement to Commissioner Gene Valentino for Attorney's Fees
  Recommendation Concerning Correction of Reimbursement to Commissioner Gene

Valentino for Attorney's Fees

That the Board ratify correction of the total amount of attorney's fees due Commissioner Gene
Valentino from $16,553.30 (as approved by the Board on December 9, 2010) downward to
$14,232.16 to reflect adjustments in supporting documentation. 

 

II.   FOR INFORMATION
 

1. Temporarily Delaying Preparation of Easements for Perdido Key Beach Restoration,
Nourishment, and Erosion Control Project

  Issue Concerning Temporarily Delaying Preparation of Easements for Perdido Key Beach
Restoration, Nourishment, and Erosion Control Project
 
That the Board accept the following information concerning temporarily delaying the preparation
of easements for Perdido Key Beach Restoration, Nourishment, and Erosion Control Project:  

The County Administrator has requested that the County Attorney's Office temporarily delay
preparation and transmission of easements to gulf front property owners in connection with the
Perdido Key Beach Restoration, Nourishment, and Erosion Control Project until staff has had the
opportunity to educate Perdido Key residents on the nature and scope of the project. 

At its October 21, 2010 meeting, the Board authorized the County Attorney's Office to prepare
easements for properties on Perdido Key adjacent to the Gulf of Mexico and to prepare any
other associated correspondence. The County Administrator feels that the Perdido Key
residents would be more likely to support the project if the County first conducts a public
education program, including holding public meetings and designing and installing an internet
webpage that can provide information on the nature and scope of the project and the associated
benefits that will accrue to the Perdido Key residents and the public at-large. 

In order to assist the public in understanding the project and cultivating support, the Community
& Environment Bureau will work with the Public Information Bureau to develop a County
informational internet webpage and community meetings. 
 

 



    Action    Item #:  1.     
County Attorney's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Ruth Bradshaw Workers' Compensation Settlement
From: Ryan E. Ross, Assistant County Attorney
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Ruth Bradshaw Workers' Compensation Settlement

That the Board approve a workers’ compensation washout settlement in the total amount of $213,281.00,
inclusive of attorney’s fees and costs.  The County will pay $174,000 of the total settlement amount and
an excess carrier shall reimburse the County for the remaining $39,281.00.  

BACKGROUND:
Former employee Ruth Bradshaw injured her back on April 28, 1998 when she slipped and fell down
some steps while carrying boxes.  Dr. Peter Szymoniak and Dr. Robert Sackheim treated her for chronic
low back pain.  Ms. Bradshaw suffered another injury on April 2, 2001 when she slipped on a wet floor
and injured her right knee and back. Dr. Szymoniak performed a total right knee arthroplasty and opined
that Ms. Bradshaw was permanently and totally disabled due to a combination of the 1998 and 2001
work-related injuries. As a result, the County voluntarily initiated permanent and total disability benefits to
Ms. Bradshaw.

The attorney for the County’s third-party adjuster has negotiated a washout settlement in the amount of
$213,281.00, inclusive of any attorney’s fees and costs. The County will directly contribute $174,000.00
to the settlement and an excess carrier shall reimburse the County for the remainder. A portion of this
settlement will be used to fund a Medicare set-aside annuity. The County’s adjuster notes that due to the
permanent total disability payments, the County will expend $174,000.00 over time until it reaches its
self-insured retention limit. The advantage of this settlement is that the County will make a one-time
payment and will not be liable for future medical procedures and treatments. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Reserves are coordinated through Risk Management and the County's third-party carrier, Preferred
Governmental Claims Solutions. Monies are paid out of Fund 501, Account 239898.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
This agreement was reviewed by Assistant County Attorney, Ryan E. Ross.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A



N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



    Action    Item #:  2.     
County Attorney's Report
Date: 01/06/2011  

Issue: Correction of Reimbursement to Commissioner Gene Valentino for Attorney's Fees
From: Alison Rogers
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

Information
RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Correction of Reimbursement to Commissioner Gene
Valentino for Attorney's Fees

That the Board ratify correction of the total amount of attorney's fees due Commissioner Gene
Valentino from $16,553.30 (as approved by the Board on December 9, 2010) downward to
$14,232.16 to reflect adjustments in supporting documentation. 

BACKGROUND:
The Board approved reimbursement to Commissioner Gene Valentino for attorney's fees at the
December 9, 2010 meeting in the amount of $16,553.30.  The downward adjustment by a total
of $2,321.14 is necessary due to duplicative counting requiring adjustments in supporting
documentation.  This recommendation is in regards to the accounting issue only; there are no
substantive changes.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



County Attorney's Report Item #:  1.           
Date: 01/06/2011  

From: Stephen G. West, Assistant County Attorney

Information
FOR INFORMATION:
Issue Concerning Temporarily Delaying Preparation of Easements for Perdido Key Beach
Restoration, Nourishment, and Erosion Control Project
 
That the Board accept the following information concerning temporarily delaying the preparation
of easements for Perdido Key Beach Restoration, Nourishment, and Erosion Control Project:  

The County Administrator has requested that the County Attorney's Office temporarily delay
preparation and transmission of easements to gulf front property owners in connection with the
Perdido Key Beach Restoration, Nourishment, and Erosion Control Project until staff has had
the opportunity to educate Perdido Key residents on the nature and scope of the project. 

At its October 21, 2010 meeting, the Board authorized the County Attorney's Office to prepare
easements for properties on Perdido Key adjacent to the Gulf of Mexico and to prepare any
other associated correspondence. The County Administrator feels that the Perdido Key
residents would be more likely to support the project if the County first conducts a public
education program, including holding public meetings and designing and installing an internet
webpage that can provide information on the nature and scope of the project and the associated
benefits that will accrue to the Perdido Key residents and the public at-large. 

In order to assist the public in understanding the project and cultivating support, the Community
& Environment Bureau will work with the Public Information Bureau to develop a County
informational internet webpage and community meetings. 
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